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CITY OF RAPID CITY

RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA 57701-5035

City Finance Office
300 Sixth Street '
Rapid City, South Dakota 57701-5035
605-394-4143

September 15, 2014

Honorable Mayor, Members of the
City Council and Citizens of Rapid City
Rapid City, SD 57701

The enclosed Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Rapid City for the
year ended December 31, 2013 was prepared by the City Finance Office. Responsibility
for the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. We believe the data, as
presented, is accurate in all material aspects; that it is presented in a manner designed
to fairly set forth the financial activity of the various funds; and that all disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the City's
financial affairs have been included.

The annual financial report has been prepared to substantially conform to the high
standards for financial reporting promulgated by the Government Finance Officers
Association for the United States and Canada.

Format:

The report has four sections -- Introductory, Financial, Single Audit and
Statistical. ’
1. The Introductory Section includes a description of the form of government, the

names of the elected officials and principal officers of the City, the organizational
chart, and this letter of transmittal.

2. The Financial Section includes the general purpose financial statements
accompanied by our independent auditor's opinion. [t also includes required and
other supplementary statements.

3. The Statistical Section includes tables of unaudited data depicting the financial
history of the government for the past ten (10) years, information on overlapping
governments, demographics, and other miscellaneous information.

4, The Single Audit Section includes the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards. Also included are various auditor reports in regards to compliance and
internal controls.

This Financial Report includes all funds of the City. The City provides a full range of
services, including police and fire protection, highways and streets, sanitation, health
and social services, culture and recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning,

B NG EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER



and general administrative services. The City also operates water and wastewater
treatment facilities and other enterprises. The City Council exercises oversight authority
over an Airport Board, a Civic Center Board and a Library Board; therefore, these
activities are included in the report.

Annual audits of the books of account, financial records, and ftransactions of the
administrative departments of the City are conducted by the State of South Dakota
Department of Legislative Audit or by independent certified public accountants selected
by the City Council, which for 2013 was Ketel, Thorstenson, LLP. The independent
certified public accountants’ unqualified opinion has been included with this report.

The timely preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the
efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Office. | would like to
express my appreciation to all members of the Office for the contributions to its
preparation.

| also want to thank the Mayor and City Council for their interest and support in planning
and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible and progressive
manner.

Respectfully submitted,

i phé

Pauline Sumption
Finance Officer



CITY OF RAPID CITY
BELECTED OFFICIALS AND PRINCIPAL OFFICERS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

The City of Rapid City is under the aldermanic form of government, consisting of a full-time mayor
and ten council members. Fach is elected for a two-year term. Two council meimbers are elected
from each of the five wards, with terms expiring in alternate yeats. The officials and officers as of
December 31, 2013 were as follows:

ELECTIVE OFFICIALS POSITION TERM EXPIRIES
Sam Kooiker Mayor 2015
Bill Clayton Council Representative 2014
Charity Doyle Council Representative 2015
Ritchie Nordstrom Council Representative 2015
Steve Laurenti Council Representative 2014
Chad Lewis Council Representative 2014
Jerry Wright Council Representative 2015
Amanda Scott Council Representative 2014
John B Roberts Council Representative 2015
Bonny Petersen Council Representative 2014
Brad Estes Council Representative 2015

PRINCIPAL OFFICERS

Atrport Manager Cameron Humphres
City Attorney Joel Landeen
Building Inspector Brad Solon
Civic Center Digector Brian Maliske
Community Planning and Development

Service Director Brett Limbaugh
Finance Officer Pauline Sumption
Deputy Finance Officer Tracy Davis
Fire Chief Mike Maltaverne
Library Director Jim McShane
Parks and Recreation Ditector Jeff Biegler
Community Resources Director Jeff Barbier
Police Chief Steve Allender
Public Warks Director Terey Wolterstorff
Street Supenintendent Don Brumbaugh
Sanitation Superintendent Karl Merbach
Water Superintendent John Wagner
Water Reclamation Superintendent Dave VanCleave

Vi



CITY OF RAPID CITY
APPOINTED BOARDS
December 31, 2013

LIJBRARY BOARD -3 YEAR TERMS

Rod Pettigrew, Chairperson
Maryanne Rohrer

Teresa Franzen

Jessica Olson

Robert Pasqualucci

CIVIC CENTER BOARD — 3 YEAR TERMS

John Herr, Chairman
Jeff Bailie

Chris Haugo

Al Cornella

Jennifer Landguth

AIRPORT BOARD — 5 YEAR TERMS

Lisa Modrick, President
Dick McConnell

Rich Huffman

‘'odd Ossenfort

Ray Carpenter

PLANNING COMMISSION - 3 YEAR TERMS

John Brewer, Chairman
Dennis Popp
Kay Rippentrop
ILinda Marchand
Steve Rolinger
Andy Scull

ik Braun
Carlos Beatty, Jr.
Jan Swank

Frik Braun

Tium Rose

Karen Bulman

vii

TERM EXPIRES

December 2014
December 2014
December 2015
December 2016
December 2016

January 2014
January 2015
Januvary 2014
Januvary 2015
January 2016

May 2016
May 2016
May 2016
May 2016
May 2015

July 2016
July 2015
Tuly 2014
July 2016
July 2014
July 2016
July 2015
July 2013
July 2014
July 2015
July 2015
July 2014



CITY OF RAPID CITY
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART
DECEMBER 31, 2013

CITTZENS ELECTORATE QOF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA

CITY COUNCII,
MAYOR
Sam Kooiker
Library Board Civic Center Board
Ron Pettigrew, Chairperson John Hert, Chairman
Library Dircctor Civic Center Director
Jim McShane Brian Maliske
Planning Commission Alrport Board
John Brewer, Chairman Lisa Modrick, President
Comrunity Planning and Development
Director Alrport Manages
Brett Limbaugh Cameron Humphres
Community Parks and Public
Attorney Finarice Resources Recreation Wortks Police Fire .
. Landeen P.Sumpdon . Barbier 1. Bieglex T. Wolterstorff  S. Allender M. Maltaverne
Patks Warer

L. VanDeusen J. Wagner

Water
Recreation Reclamation
D. Lowe D. VanCleave
Streets

D. Brumbaugh

Sanitation
K., Merbach

Transit
R. Sagen
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’@‘ Ketel Thorstenson, LLP
Certified Public Accountants/Business & Personal Consultants
810 Quincy Street

P.O. Box 3140, Rapid City, South Dakota 57709
Telephone (605) 342-5630 * e-mail: ktllp@ktllp.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Sam Kooiker, Mayor

and Common Council
City of Rapid City
Rapid City, South Dakota

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the City of Rapid City (the City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Rapid City, as of
December 31, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Members of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and AICPA Division of Firms for Quality Control
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The Honorable Mayor and Common Council
Page Two

Report on Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s discussion and
analysis, budgetary comparison, and schedules of funding progress for retiree health insurance coverage information
on pages 3 through 10, 60 through 65, and page 66 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
stalements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain Iimited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Report on Other Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining nonmajor fund financial statements,
nonmajor fund budgetary comparison schedules, and statistical section on pages 1 through viii, pages 67 through 86,
pages 87 through 117, and pages 119 through 138, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizalions on
pages 143-144 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements.

The combining nonmajor fund financial statements, nonmajor fund budgetary comparison schedules, and schedule
of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the combining nonmajor fund financial statements, nonmajor fund budgetary comparison schedules,
and schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 15, 2014 on
our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance,

Gl 2o

KETEL THORSTENSON, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

September 15, 2014



CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Rapid City, we offer readers of the City of Rapid Cily’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Rapid City for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2013. We encourage readers to consider it in conjunction with the additional information
presented in the basic financial statements and the notes to the financial statements,

The City of Rapid City provides many municipal services including public safety, streets, parks, general
administration and public utilities. For financial reporting purposces, all funds, agencies, boards, commissions,
trusts and authorities involved in the provision of these services are included if the City is financially
accountable. Financial accountability is determined by several different factors including fiscal dependence,
ability to impose will upon the entity’s governing body, provision of specific financial burdens or benefits, and
separate legal entity status.

Financial Highlights
» The assets of the City of Rapid City exceeded its liabilitics at the close of the most recent fiscal year
by $678,022,202 (Net position). Of this amount, $105,561,556 (unrestricted net position) may be used
to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors in accordance with the City’s

fund designations and fiscal policies,

The City’s total net position increased by $37,855,118 during 2013,

A4

% As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Rapid City’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $81,047,937.

% At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $18,533,965 or
about thirty-six percent (36%) of total general fund expenditures.

The City of Rapid City’s total debt increased by $16,046,378 during the current fiscal year after taking
into account issuances, retitements/payments and increase in post-employment benefit liability.
$25,781,493 of the increase is due to the issuance of government activity revenue bonds, and a
decrease of $15,883,314 due to the payment of business activity revenue bonds and leases. The
remainder of the decrease is primarily due to the payment of tax increment district financing.

\dd

Overview of the Financial Statentents

The discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Rapid City’s basic financial
statements, The City of Rapid City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report
also contains both required and other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statemenls
themselves.

Government-wide financial statements, The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the City of Rapid City’s fifiances, in a manner similar o & private-sector
business,

The staternent of net position presents information on all of the City of Rapid City’s assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net position, Over time, increases or decreases in net position may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Rapid City is improving or
deteriorating,



The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. uncollected taxes and
earned but unused vacation leave),

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Rapid City that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions
that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-
type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Rapid City include general government, public
safely, public works, health & welfare, conservation and development, and culture and recreation, The
business-type activities of the City of Rapid City include water, water reclamation, airport, solid waste, civic
center, golf, cemetery, parking, ambulance, energy plant and transportation terminal,

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 11-12 of this report,

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Rapid City, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City of Rapid City can be divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds Goyernmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financial requirements,

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
povernmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the City’s neat term financial decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Rapid City maintains four individual major governmental funds, Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund and three special revenue funds, all of which
are considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report,

The City of Rapid City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general and special revenue funds. A
budgetary comparison slatement has been provided for those funds to demonstrate compliance with this

budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 13-17 of this report.



Proprietary Funds The City of Rapid City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-lype activities in the government-wide
financial statements. The City of Rapid Cily uses enterprise funds to account for its water, water reclamation,
airport, solid waste, civic center, golf, cemetery, parking, ambulance, energy plant and transportation terminal
operations. Internal service funds are accounting devices used to accumulate and allocate costs internally
among the City of Rapid City's various functions. The City of Rapid City uses internal service funds to
account for its worker’s compensation, health, deutal and liability insurance and unemployment compensation
management. These services benefit all functions and they have been allocated 1o each based on the ratio of the
individual function’s payroll to the total payroll of the City in the government-wide financial statements,

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in
more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the water, water
reclamation, solid waste, airport and civic center which are considered to be major funds of the City of Rapid
City. Data from the other nine enterprise funds are combined into a single aggregated presentation, Individual
fund data for each of these non-major enterprise funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report. Conversely, internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation
in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 18-25 of this report.

Fiduciary Funds Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the
al

resources of those funds are not available to support the City of Rapid City’s own programs. The accounting
used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on page 26 of this report.
Notes to Financial Statements The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full

understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements, The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 27-59 of this report.

Required Supplementary Information The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary information. This section includes a Budgetary Comparison Schedule, and related notes, for
the General Fund and for each major special revenue fund that has a legally adopted annual budget. 1t also
includes Schedules of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions for Retiree Health Insurance Coverage.
The required supplementary information can be found on pages 60-66.

Other Information The supplementary combining statements referred fo earlier in connection with non-major
governmental and proprictary funds and internal service funds and its budgetary comparison schedules are
presented immediately following the required supplementary information can be found on pages 67-117 of this
report.




Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In
the case of the City of Rapid City, assets exceeded liabilities by $678,022,202 at the close of the most recent
fiscal year,

By far the largest portion of the City of Rapid City’s total asscts (66%) reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g. Jand. buildings, machinery and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The City of Rapid City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending, Although the City of Rapid City’s investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Following is a comparison between the current and prior year’s assets, labilities and changes in net position.

CITY OF RAPID CITY'S NET POSITION
(in thousands)

Government Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013

Current and Other Assets $ 79784 § 97932 $ 74713 § 64,955 § 154497 % 162,887
Capital Assets - 267,157 282,261 373,910 404,616 § 641,067 & 686,877

Total Assets 346,941 380,193 448,623 469,571 795,564 849,764
Long-term liabilities outstanding 39,702 57,179 86,648 85950 $ 126,350 $ 143,129
Other jiabilities 18,050 19,676 10,084 8937 § 28134 § 28,613

Total liabilities 57,752 76,855 96,732 94,887 154,484 171,742
Net position: '
Net Investment in capital assels 219,642 235,874 301,033 325,626 § 520,675 § 561,500
Restricted 10,184 4,450 6,660 6,511 & 16844 § 10,960
Unrestricted 59,363 63,014 44,199 42,548 $ 103,562 & 105,562

Total net position $ 289,189 § 303337 § 351,892 § 374,685 & 641,08] $ 678,022

A portion of the City of Rapid City’s net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions
on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position ($103,561,556) may be used to
meel the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Rapid City is able to report positive balances in all three
categories of net position, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and
business-type activities,



Revenues:
Program Revenues
Charges for services
Operating grants & contributions
Capitat granis and contributions
General Revenues
Property taxes
Other taxes
State/County shared revenue
Unrestricled investment carnings
Other
Total Revenues
Expenses:
General governmeat
Public safety
Public works
Liealth and welfare
Culture & recreation
Conservation & development
Interest on long-term debt
Miscelluncous
Water reclamation
Water
Goif’
Exeeutive Golf’
Airport
Waste collection
Waste disposal
Civic center
Cemelery
Parking
Energy plam
Transportation terminal
Ambulance
Total Expenses

Changes in Net Assets:

City of Rapid City's Changes in Net Position

{In Thousands)

Excess (deficiency) before contributions to term and
permanent endowmen(s or permanent fund principal,

special and exwraordinary items and transfers

Fund Transters

Change in Nei Position

Net Position-Beginning
Change in Accounting Principle
NET POSITION -~ ENDING

Gavernmental Business-{ype
Activities Activilics Total
2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013

$ 7,004 § 5.837 % 53,102 § 52,802 60,195 5 5K.638
2,968 5,097 - - 2,968 5,097
8,637 6,008 3,560 4,931 12,197 10,940
19,986 20,637 - - 19,986 20,637
50,785 52,479 3,757 4,172 54,542 56,652
1,732 1,861 - - 1,732 1,861
1,062 (86) 508 94 1,570 8
1,304 472, 663 (6) 1,969 4603
93,568 92,305 61,592 61,993 155,160 154,299
3,579 4,195 - - 3,579 4,195
22,275 25,505 - . 22,275 25,905
18,506 19,111 - - 18,506 19,111
3,078 3,036 - - 3,075 3,056
10,656 10,042 - 10,656 10,642
3,702 1,970 - 3,702 1,970
3,248 4,598 - - 3,248 4,598
1,841 1,499 - - 1,841 1,499
- - 7,215 6,780 7.215 6,780
- 5,070 8,246 5.070 8,246
- - 1,421 1,069 1,421 1,069
209 226 209 226
- - 7,081 6.745 7,081 6,745
- - 2,034 2,256 2,034 2,250
- 5,923 3,446 5,923 5,440
- - 9,841 10,199 9,841 10,199
- - 287 268 287 268
- - 628 663 628 663
- - 339 599 339 599
- - 233 247 233 247
- - 3,033 3,322 3,033 3,322
66,882 70,376 47,313 46,066 114,194 116,443
26,686 21,928 14,278 15,927 40,964 37,855
(7,098) (7,644) 7,098 7,644 - (0)
19,588 14,284 21,376 23,571 40,964 37,858
269,601 289,189 330,513 351,891 600,116 641,081
- (136) - (7718) (914;
S 280,189 § 303,337 $ 351,891 § 374,684 § 641080 § 678,022

Financial Analysis of the Government’s funds

Governmental Funds The focus of the City of Rapid City’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City of Rapid City’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year,



At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Rapid City’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $81,047,957. Approximately 17% of this total amount ($13,698,404) constitutes unassigned
fund balance. The remainder of the fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new
spending because it has already been committed as 1) nonspendable (for inventories, notes receivable,
advances to other funds, and perpetual care cemetery endowment of $6,314,924), 2) restricted (for debt
service, perpetual care cemetery, library, business improvement districts, capital projects and grants of
$22,684,402), 3) Committed (for capital replacements, Vision Fund, consolidated construction and erasion and
sediment control funds of $37,165,248.), 4) Assigned (for next year’s appropriations for §1,184,979).

The General Fund balance decreased by ($923,804) in 2013, which was primarily due 1o an increase in capital
outlay and transfers to other funds. The Vision Fund and Consolidated Construction Fund balances increased
$1,900,353 and $495,793, respectively as a result of increases in tax revenue. The Utility Facilities Fund
palance increased $12,135,799 due to the issuance of 2013 revenue bond ($23,792,788).

GOVERNMENTAL MAJOR FUND BALANCES
Utitity Facilities
Fund
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Proprietary Funds The City of Rapid City’s proprictary funds provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

The unrestricted net positions in the respective major proprietary funds are: Water - $8,694,061, Wastewater -
$9,906,695, Solid waste ~ $9,161,076, Airport - $4,578,885 and Civic Center - $1,451,628.

MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUND NET POSITION BALANCES
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Budgetary Highlights

General Fund. Supplemental appropriations primarily involved grant funds or “windfalls.” It is not legally
required to officially supplement the budget. Tt is the practice of the City of Rapid City to do so to provide full
public disclosure. In 2013 the City of Rapid City spent $443,130 less than the budgeted amount in the General
Fund Police, $428,349 iess than the budgeted amount in the General Fund Fire and $221,642 less than
budgeted in the General Fund Parks. This is due primarily to not being fully staffed and not purchasing as
many supplies and equipment as was anticipated. Also in 2013 the City of Rapid City spent $2,170,511 less
than the budgeted amount in General Fund Highways and Streets, $237,848 less than budgeted in the General
Fund Public Works Administration, $417,644 less than budgeted in the General Fund Transportation Planning
but $1,838,081 more in General Fund Capital Outlay. This is primarily due to purchasing equipment that was
not originally anticipated.

Capital Asset and Debt A dministration

Capital Assets The City of Rapid City’s net investment in capital assets for its governmental and business
type activities as of December 31, 2013 amounts to $561,499,709 (net of accumulated depreciation and related
debt). This investinent in capital assets includes land, buildings, infrastructure, machinery and equipment.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: Performing Arts Facility; land
and structure acquisition for the Fire Department for a future new Station #1; Jackson Springs Water
Treatment Plan; Airport main terminal expansion and Taxiway A relocation; infrastructure improvements;
replacement of multiple vehicles and large pieces of equipment.

City of Rapid City's Capital Assels
(Net of Depreciation)
(It Thousands)

Gavernmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013

Land and land improvements § 42976 § 43,886 $ 15,806 $ 16,308 $§ 58,782 § 60,194
Buildings 71,703 76,485 141,916 161,264 213,619 237,749
fmprovemnents 276,767 293,852 292,411 307,00S 569,178 600,857
Machinery and equipment 27,694 30,263 24,813 25,677 52,507 55,940
Construction in Progress 9,081 13,324 61,126 67,104 70,207 80,428
Total 428,221 457,810 536,072 571,358 964,293 1,035,168
Less accumulated depreciation (161,064) (175,549) (162,162) (172,742) (323,226) (348,291)
Total capital assets $ 267,157 S 282261 § 373910 § 404,616 5 641,067 § 686,877
Long-term debt
Government activities: $ 68,797,214
Business-type activities 88,787,723

$157,584,937
Current portion $14,455,424

The City of Rapid City maintains an AAA to Baa2 rating from Moody’s on all of'its revenue debt.

State statute limits the amount of general obligation debt a South Dakota city may issue to assessed value of
taxable property. The current debt limitation for the City of Rapid City is $986,109,851. $104,399,802 of the
City’s outstanding debt is counted within the statutory limitation although the debt is wholly or partially
financed by revenues other than a general tax levy.



Additional information on the City of Rapid City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 7 1o the Financial
Statements.

Known fact, decisions or conditions
There are no known facis, decisions or conditions that are expected to have a significant effect on financial
position or results of operations.

Requests for Information This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Rapid
City’s finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the
City of Rapid City, Finance Officer, 300 Sixth Street, Rapid City, SD 57701, Component unit financial
statements may be obtained by contacting the Museum Alliance of Rapid City, Inc. at 222 New York St,
Rapid City SD 57701,
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ASSETS:
Cash & Cash Fquivalents (Note 2)
Investments (Note 2)
Accounts Receivable, Net (Note 3)
Inlernal Balances ( Note 8)
Nue from Other Governments (Note 4)
Other Assets
Restricted Assets:
Cash with Fiscal Agent (sce Note 2)
Restricted Cash {see Notes 2 and 17)
Capital Assets (ses Nole 3}
Land and Conshruction
in Progress
Other Capital Assets,
Net of Depreciation
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable
Other Current Liabilities

Nongurrent iabilities (see Nates 7, 12 and 17)
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Debi Service
Cemetery Trust Fund - Fxpendable
Cemetery Trust Fund - Nonexpenduble
Other Purposes - TID Debt Service

Other Purposes - Dwatn Business Inpr Distriet

Other Purposes - Business fmpr District
Other Purposes - Grants
Other Purposes - Component Unit
Other Purposes - Library
Unrestricted (Note 13)
TOTAL NET POSTTION

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

The notes te the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement,

CITY OF RAPID CITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31,2013

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITILS TOTAL UNIT
$ 33,793,520 25922773 59716,202 § 105,714
27,935,125 12,648,117 40,783,242
9.355,177 7,456,906 16,812.083 9,253
(1,258,489 1,258,489 -
3,855,201 1,861,222 5,716,423
256,888 181,247 438,134 68,012
23,821,424 13,551,704 37,373,128
173,173 1,875,000 2,048,173 139,979
57,209,829 83,411,593 140,621,422
225,050,675 321,204,781 546,255,456 78.242
380,192,523 469,571,831 849,764,354 401,200
6,977,818 4,197,011 11,174,829 7,052
12,697,766 4,740,044 17,437,810 20,689
57,179,469 85,950,043 143,129,512 .
76,855,054 94,887,008 71,742,152 77741
235,873,951 325,625,758 561,499,709 78,242
1,985,450 6,511,086 8,496,536 -
12,896 - 12,896 .
50,000 - 50,000 .
2,054,843 - 2,054,843 -
175,994 . 175,994 -
9,201 - 9201 .
114,524 . 114,524. -
. . . 139,979
46,943 - 46,943
63,013,667 42,547,889 105,561,556 155,238
503,337,469 174,684,733 678,022,202 373,459
380,192,523 469,571,831 849,764,354 401,200
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Functions/Proagruas
Primary Government
CGovermenlal Activities:
General Goverament
Publie Safety
Publiv Waorks
Health and Wellare
Cultwre, Recreation
Conservation aid Deveiopmant
Interest on Long Tenm Debl (1)
Misceitaneous Revenue/Expenditures
Total Governiental Activities

Boginexs-Type Activities:
Whter
Wailer Reclamation
Alrpont
Selid Waste Disposal
Civie Center
Solid Weste Collection
Executive Galf Comse
Cemerery
Galf Course
Parking Lot & Ares
Fnergy Plant
Ambulance
Transportation Terminal
Totnl Business-type Activities

Towd Primacy Government

CITY OF RAPTD CITY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Net (Expense) Revenne und

--------- Program Revenues - - - - -~ -~ - -« - Changes in Nef Position - - - -+ - - -
Charges Operating Grants Capital Grunis Governmental Business-Type Component
Expenses for Sorvices and Conpibwtions  and Comuibutions Activities Aglivitics Total Unit
$ 4,193,135 § 848,585 S 3,009,105  § N 3 (237425} § 3 (237.425) $
25,905,390 Ne47 425,246 40,000 24,720,666} - {24,720,666) -
19.111,129 113.861 ~ 4,534,088 (14,463,181) - (14,463,181 -
3,055,728 424,656 916,274 1,434,337 (281,001) - 2 61) -
10,041,878 1,660,477 17,508 - (8,363,833) - (8,361,883} (63,387)
1,970,329 1,910,464 628,444 - 568,570 568,576 -
4,598,065 . - - (4,596,665) {4.598,565)
1.49%.626 159,717 - - {1,338,909) (1,338,909} :
70,376,262 5.816,638 5,096,584 & 008,425 (53,434.616) - (53,434,616 (63,387
£245,070 15,526,045 - 2.428,247 9,709,221 9,709,221 -
6,779,506 - 785,919 - 5,297,234 5267,234 -
6,745,082 1.279.016 166,811 186,811 -
5,446,450 437,960 A7 1,344,767
10,198,657 - - - {4,896,181) {4,896,181) -
2,258,561 - - 376,560 376,580 -
6,278 - - {s0,751) {50.751)
268,383 - - (160,672) {160,672} -
1,069,443 1,011,078 - - {58,365) {58,365) -
062,843 98,171 - - 135,338 135,338
599,429 210,995 - . - (288,434) (288,434) -
3 O8S . - - 304,723 304,723 -
246,630 12,908 - - - {233.722) (233.722)
46,066,291 32,801,699 - 4,931,142 11,606,550 11,660,550

5 1i6,442,552,45 8 SB.€38,336.48 § 509638350 §  10.939,566.53

§ {53434,61593) $

11,666,549.99 § {41 768,065.54)

$ (63,387.00)

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property Taxes
Sales Toaxes
Other Taxes
Srate Shared Revenue
County Shared Revenue
Unreshigied Javestmen! Earnings
Misceilancous Revenue
Gain (1.oss) on disposal of Capital Assets
Transfers
Tetal General Revenue, Loss and Trausfers

Change 1 Net Assets
Net Pusition, Beginning
“hanpe in Accounting Principle {(Note 18)

Met Fosition -~ Restated

Net Pasition, Ending

20,636,948 . 20.636,948 -
50,195,541 4,026,567 54,222,108 .
2,283,407 145,880 2,429,287 -
1,471,697 - 1,471,697
389,142 389,142 -
(85,586) 7,815 -
471,197 493,67 .
512 (28.400) (27,487) -
(2,644,317) 7,644,317 -
67,718,641 V1,904,543 79,623,184
4,284,025 23,571,093 37,855,118 (63,387)
289,189,114 351,891,724 641,080,888 436,846
(135,070) (778,134) (913.8043 -
784,053 444 350,513,600 640,167,084 436,346
§ 3033174605 3M684,733 S 68022202 5 373459

(13 The City does not bave 1terest expense reluted {6 e functions presented above. This amount includes indireet inierest expense on general long-tenn delit

The notes to the financiul stuicments nre an integrai pats of this statement,
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ANSETS
Aszets:

121 Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2)

162 Resticted Cash (Note 2)

106 Cash with Fiscal Agent, Restricted (see Note 2)

IST Investmonts (Nole 2)

110 Property Taxes Reccivable--Delinguent

110 Sales Tax Receivahle

115 Accounts Receivabie. Net

121 Speeinl Assessments Reccivable--Current

122 Special Assessinents Reseivable--Delinquent

123 Specinl Assessments Receivable--Deferred

128 Notes Reeeivable {see Note 3)

131 Due from Other Funds (see Note 8)

133 Advance to Other Funds (sce Note 8

132 Due from Other Goveraments (see Note 4)

135 Interest Recervable

144 Inventory

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES AND FUND
BALANCES:
Lishilisies:

201 Claims Payable

216 Wages Pavabig

208 Dug to Other Funds (see Note 8)

209 Advance from Other Funds {see Nole §)
Towl Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
247 Unavailable Revenue - (rianis
245 Linavailable Revenue -- Prop
246 Unavailable Revenue - Specii
Tatal Deferred inflows of Kesources

Fund Balances:

263 Nonspendeble
263.01 Inventory
263.04 Advances
263.05 Notes Receivables
263.51 Perpetuni Care Cemetery

264 Resiricted
264.01 Debl Service
264.02 Cupital Frojects
264.03 Cemelery Perpetual Care
264.05 Librury
264.09 Business Improvement Distiict
264.97 Gran:

265 Conanitied
265.02 Capital Replacements
265 04 Vision Fund
203.04 Consolidaled Construstion Selus Tax
26599 Erosion/Sediment Control

266 Assigned
266.01 Assigned for Next Year's Appropriation

267 Upnssigned {sce Note 13)

Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND
FUND BALANCES

The notes to the financial staternents wre an istegial part of this staterent.

CITY OF RAPID CITY
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31,2013

Consolidated Utility Other Total
Geaeral Vision Construetion Facilities Governmental  Guvernmental
Fund Fund Fuund fund Funds Punds

9,623,265 S009,635 5 10,801,400 §  (3,085998) § 2473239 5§ 2491185
- - . . 173173 173,473

. 2,948,616 - 20,872 08 - 23,821,424
7,659,284 7,054,199 6,404 878 4,487,204 48,248 26,583,903
238,660 - . . 260,888 499,548
2,601,039 1,300,519 [,300,519 452,355 . 5,654,432
48,606 - . . 81,272 130,378
14,277 . . . 624 14,901
63,044 . - - 63,044
9,490 . . . $,559 105,049
56,015 - 1,671,903 . 1,927,918
302016 . 17,917 565,750 . 485,683
794,839 . 297,293 2,987,086 . 4,080,118
3,774,625 . 66,038 . 14,538 3,855,201
55,209 7317 306,453 38,377 1,556 408,913
256,888 - - . . 256,838
95614957 17200087 31156410 76,318,577 3.062,507 95,172,122
2,102,861 1,342,847 731,070 5,876 294,090 4,476,744
795,825 . . . 9,204 305,029
. - - . 713,639 713,039

- . - - 4,341,560 4,341,560

2 398.686 1,343 647 731.070 5876 5357803 10,336,372
1,662.453 . 66,038 . . 1,728,531
62,552 - - - 25,902 88,494
163,799 . - - 4,568 170,767
1888 885 - 66,038 ; 32,870 T987,193
156,858 . . . . 256,888
794,839 . 297293 2,987,586 4,080,118
56,015 . 1,871,903 - - 1,927,918
. - - 50,000 50,000

- 412,000 . 1,573,450 2,054,843 4,040,293

- . . 18,284,550 - 14,284,550

. . - . 12,896 12,896

. . . . 46,943 46,943

. - . . 185,195 185,195

- - - - 114,524 114,524

. - - 3,466,710 - 3,466,710

. 15,465,439 . . 15,465,439

- - 18,190,106 - . 18,190,106

. . 42,993 43,993

1,184,979 . - . - 1,184,979
; - - {4,835,561) 13,698 404

20,876,686 [5.577.439 20,359,362 26.312.696 (2,328,165) 81,047,957
25614257 § 17220287 S 21156410 § 26318372 § 3062597 § 93372122




CITY OF RAPID CITY
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 81,047,957

Armounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
vesources and therefore are not reported in the funds,

to

8

o
J

t

,260,505

Long term liabilitics, including bonds payable are not dug and
payable in the cutrent period and therefore not reported in the
funds. (68,797,214)

Accrucd interest on long-term debt is not due and payable in the carrent period
and therefore is not reported in the funds.
(270,475}
Property Taxes (delinquent), special assessments (current, delinguent and
deferred) and a grant revenue are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and therefore are deferred inflows of resources in the funds, 1,987,793

Infernal service funds are used by management to charge the

costs of activities, such as insurance, to individual funds.

The assets and labilities of internal service funds are included

in the governmental activities in the statement of net position. 7,108,905

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities $ 303,337,469

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes
313 General Sales and Use Taxes
314 Gross Receipts Business Taxes
320 Licenses and Permits
330 Intergovernmental Revenue:
131 Federal Grants
334 Stale Grants
335 State Shared Revenue:
335.01 Bank Franchise Tax
335.03 Liquor Tax Reversion
335.04 Motor Vehicle Licenses (5%)
335.06 Fire Insurance Reversion
335.08 Local Governiment Highway
and Bridge Fund
338 County Shared Revenue:
338.01 County Road Tax (25%)
340 Charges for Goods and Services:
341 General Government
342 Public Safety
343 Public Works
345 Health & Welfare
346 Culture and Recreation
348 Cemetery
349 Conservation & Developiment
350 Fines and Forfeits:
351 Court Fines and Costs
354 Library
360 Miscellaneaus Revenue;
361 Interest Earnings (1.oss)
362 Rentals
363 Special Assessments
367 Contributions and Donalions
369 Other
Total Revenue

Expenditures:
410 General Government:
412 Executive-Mayor & Council
414 Financial - COMPASS
414 Financial ~ Community Resources
414 Financial - Finance
414 Financial - Altorney
419 Other - Government Buildings
420 Public Safety:
421 Police
422 Fire
429 Other Protection-Code Enforcement
429 Other Profection-ACE
429 Other Protection-Re-entry Program
429 Other Protection-Emergency Mgl

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
Consolidated Utility Other Total
General Vision Construction Facilities Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
14,253,529 § - 3 " $ - $ 6,439,297 $ 20,692,826
23,091,269 11,545,659 11,545,659 4,012,954 - 50,195,541
674,281 - - 1,464,509 2,138,790
2,334,561 - - - - 2,334,561
4,280,847 9,544 - 371,944 4,668,335
183,597 - - - 183,597
116,558 - - - - 116,558
417,004 - - . 417,004
49,959 - - - - 49,959
189,050 - - - . 189,050
699,125 - - - - 699,125
389,142 - - - - 389,142
474,483 - - - - 474,483
672,458 - - - - 672,458
110,085 - - - - 110,085
417,556 - - - . 417,556
1,564,580 - - - - 1,564,580
- - - - 2,826 2,826
- - - 159,717 159,717
7,487 - - - - 7,487
- - . 95,890 95,890
(15,588) (173,472) (18,630) 100,993 20,811 (85,886)
156,876 - - - - 156,876
- - - - 178,027 178,027
- - - 74,574 74,574
235,006 - 15,281 - - 250,287
50,307,865 11,372,187 11,551,854 4,113,947 8,807,595 86,153,449
471,346 - - - - 471,346
166,199 - - - - 166,199
959,664 - 90,000 - - 1,049,664
647,469 - - - - 647,469
201,407 - - - - 201,407
854,791 - 129,156 . . 983,947
11,510,771 - - - - 11,510,771
9,378,878 - - - - 9,378,878
154,173 - - - - 154,173
1,492,037 - - - - 1,492,037
58,997 - - - - 58,997
2,799,337 - - - - 2,799,337



STATEMENT OF REVENULS, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

430 Public Works:
431 Highways and Streets
43x Administration
440 Health and Welfare:
441 Health
444 Tumane Society
449 Other - Public Transit
449 Other - Air Quality
450 Culture and Recreation:
451 Recreation
451 Swimming Pools
451 lee Arena
452 Parks
455 Libraries
457 Historical Preservation
459 Other - Parks & Rec Administration
459 Other - Retived Senior (RSVP)
439 Other - Cemetery
459 Other - Subsidies
460 Conservation and Development:
465 Economie Development
465 Community Development
465 Transportation Planning
465 GIS Information System
470 Debt Service
485 Capital Outlay
490 Miscellaneous:
492 Other Expenditures
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sonrces (Uses);
391.01 Transfers In (see Note 8)
511 Transfers Out (see Note 8)
391.02 Long-term debt issued (Note 7)
391.03 Sale of Municipal Property
391.27 Capital Leases (Note 7)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance (Deficit) - Beginning

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) - ENDING

CITY OF RAPID CITY

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
Consolidated Utility Other Total
General Vision Construction Facilities Governments! Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
5,409,516 - - - 5,409,516
473,713 344,571 968,232 - - 1,786,516
410,774 - - - 410,774
278,318 - - - - 278,318
1,963,513 - . - - 1,963,513
50,035 - - - 50,035
303,369 - - - 303,369
1,428,265 - - - . 1,428,265
579,817 - - - 579,817
2,226,303 - . - - 2,226,303
2,978,671 - - 99,118 3,077,789
17,939 - - - - 17,939
578,046 - 108,172 - - 686,218
- - - 98,304 98,304
. - - - 349 349
200,000 - - - - 200,000
364,250 525,762 - - - 890,012
49,177 - - - 506,140 555,317
416,889 - - - - 416,889
118,096 - - - - 118,096
121,552 4,276,792 920,674 7,918,545 6,872,604 20,110,227
4,164,601 3,479,637 15,844,330 - 2,297,918 25,786,486
9,769 - 14,496 1,650 1,472,711 1,498,626
50,837,684 8,626,762 18,075,060 7,920,195 11,347,204 96,806,805
(529,818) 2,745,425 (6,523,206) (3,806,248) (2,539,609) (10,653,456)
208,541 - 2,377,054 - - 2,582,596
(1,390,503) (845,072) (130,055) (7,850,741) - (10,216,37})
- - - 23,792,788 3,418,221 27,211,009
71,258 - . - 15,000 86,258
719,718 - 4,772,000 - - 5,491,718
(393,986) (845,072) 7,018,999 15,942,047 3,433,221 25,155,209
(923,804) 1,900,353 495,793 12,135,799 893,612 14,501,753
21,750,490 13,977,086 19,863,509 14,176,897 (3,221,778) 66,546,204
20,826,686 $ 15877439 $§ 20,359,302 § 2631269 § (2,328,166) § 81,047,957

The noles to the financial statements are an imegral part of this statement.
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. CITY OF RAPID CITY
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Net change in fund balances - total government funds $ 14,501,753
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Government funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation
in the current period.

Capital Outlay 25,786,486
Deprecialion (15,121,952}
10,604,534

Assets Contributed by Development, 4,524,543

Repayinent of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long term liabilities in the statement of net position (net of premium), 15,545,994

Debt proceeds, including premiums are a revenue in the governmental funds but the proceeds
increase long-term labilities in the statement of net position, (32,7062,727)

Accrued interest on long-term debt is not due and payable in the curvent period and
therefore is not reported in the funds, The amount represents the change in accrued
interest during the current period. (33,838)

Inn the Statement of Activities, the gains and losses on disposal of capital assets are
reported, whereas in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the disposal of capital
assets are veflected, regardless of whether a gain or loss is realized. (85,346)

Other post empioyment beaefit obligations are expenditures in the governmental
funds when they are incurred and they are recorded as a liability in the statement of net
position. (217,265)

Governmental funds report property taxes, special assessments and grants as
revenue when Tunds become available, but the statement of activities includes
the property tax, special assessments and grants as revenue when earned. 1,639,245

Governmental funds recognize expenditures for amounts of compensated absences

actually paid to employees with current financial resources during the fiscal year.

Amounts of compensated absences earned by employees are not recognized in the funds.

In the statement of activities, expenses for these benefits are recognized when the

cruployees earn leave credits. 67,414

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of

certain activities, sueh as inswrance to individual funds. The net revenue

(expense) of the internal service funds has been prorated 1o governmental

aclivities and business-lype activities based on the proportionate share of wages. 379718

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 14,284,025

The notes to financial statements ave an integral part of this staterent,
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Enterprise Funds

Solid Waste
Water Wastewnler Disposal Airport
Fund Fund Fund Fuud
ASSETS;
Current Assels:
101 Cash snd Cash Equivalents (Note 2) M 7,683,772 % 5,842,772 % 2,944,035 § 3,047,198
106 Cash with Fiscal Agent, Restricted (see Note 2 8,766,645 1,148,563 - 2,818,667
107 Restricted Cagh (Notes 2, 17) - - 1,875,000 -
151 Investments (Note 2) 1,976,429 3,826,750 6,580,160 -
1S Accounts Receivabie 496,188 666,551 771,627 860,708
116 Estimated Uncoliectable Accounts Receivable (40,000) (35,000) (50,600 (55,500)
{17 Unbilled Accounts Receivable . 594,678 520,798 150,901 - -
110 Sales Tax Receivable - B 29,699 .
131 Due from Other Funds (see Now 8) 190,762 - B -
132 Dyie from Qther Govermment (see Note 4) 10,27 6,488 437,960 1,344 28]
135 Interest Receivable 22,143 6,218 5,303 3,262
142 Tnventory of Stores Purchased for Resale 30,649 23,696 - -
Total Current Assets 19,725,537 12,007,146 12,745,188 8,018,616
NO}'\CUETODQ ASSC‘S:
133 Advance 1o Other Funds {sce Note §) 372,291 - - -
157 Unamortized Discount (sve Note 7 617.742 - - 10,215
Capital Assels (see Now 5):
160 Land . 6,020,535 948,260 2,499,851 1,084,600
162 Buiidings 12,247 828 24,814,545 13,361,839 41,259,762
164 Improvements Other thar Bldg 137,893,137 80,617,545 6,735,386 65,169,027
164 Furniture & Equipment 592,032 643,304 1,691,072 934,578
166 Machinery and Equipment 201,817 1,759,597 3,759,194 5,411,762
168 Construction Work in Progress 42,048 548 12,617,795 6.140.,154 3,507,848
Tess: Accumulated Depreciation (48,008,590) (32,544,281 (11,260,099) (43,156,606)
Tolal Noncurent Assots 152,685,340 88,856,765 22,927,387 74,220,586
TOTAL ASSETS 172,410,877 100,863,611 35,672,582 §2,239,202
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
202 Accounts Payable (Note 15) 5 1,251,774 § 648,595 % 1,482,667 % 375,279
208 Due te Other Funds {see Note §) 270,000 183,600 - -
215 Accrued lnterest Payable 294 318 097,527 2,681 72,528
220 Customer Deposits 809,201 - - -
216 Wages Payable 96,156 71,996 73,329 72,289
226 OPEB Ciurrent Obligations (see Note 12) 55,278 40,827 37.218 44,627
226 Bonds Payable Current (sex Note 7) 185,629 984,79S - 570,000
226 Capital Lease Payable Current (see Note 7) : - - - -
230 Compensated Absences Payable -- Current (sge Note 7) 15,000 5,000 3.000 6,500
Total Current Liabihties 2,977,356 2,031,740 1,600,895 1,141,523
Noncurrent Lighilities:
209 Advance trom Other Funds (see Note 8) . . .
231 OPEB Long-Term Obligations (see Note 7) 95,708 0,688 64,438 77,187
231 Bonds Paynbie {see Nowe 7} 49,314,833 12,397,624 - 14,555,000
231 Capita! Lease Payabie (see Note 73 - - N -
233 Accrued Leave Payable (see Note 7) 171,877 92,878 43.776 83,176
235 Accrued Land4ll Clesure and Postelosure {(Notes 7 & 17} . - 1,875,000 - -
Taotal Noncurvent Liabilitics 49,582,418 12,561,190 1,983,214 14,715,963
TOTAL LIABILITIES: 52,559,774 14,592,930 3,584,109 15,857,486
NET POSITION:
253,10 Nef Investmenl in Capital Assets 107,514,567 75,474,345 22,927,397 60,450,888
253.20 Restricted Net Position, Restricted for:
253.22 Revenue Bond Retirement 3,642,475 889,940 1,351,943
253,90 Unrestricted Net Position 8,694,061 9,906,695 9,161,076 4,578,885
TOTAL NET POSITION . 119,851,103 86,270,981 32,088,473 66,381,716
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 3 172,410,877 § 100,862 911 § 35,672,582 % 82,239,202

‘The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this satersent,
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Civic Center

Nonmajor

Enterprise Enterprise Infernal
Fund Funds Tolals Service Funds
$ 1,252,143 % 5,152,852 % 25922713 % 8881570
566,743 251,046 13,551,704 -
- - 1,875,000 -
95,380 372,388 12,848,117 1,351,222
137,694 £.578,703 9511471 545,572
- (3.678,576) (3,859,076} .
- 37,728 1,304 102 -
366,667 63,431 459,797 -
- - 190,762
7.519 54,703 1,861,222 -
759 2426 40,611 5,422
123,950 2,652 181.247 -
2,553,895 8,817,350 63,887,73¢ 10,784,186
194 282 - 571,543 -
8121 8.889 544 967
1,091,682 4.663.245 16,307 574
61,i34.223 8 446229 161,204,426
9,067,589 7.5 7 307,005,221 -
3,549,887 1,015,748 R.426,622
437,09¢ 4,98(:,702 17,250,167 -
4,903 2,784,771 67,104,019 -
{28,158,528) (9,613,35¢) (172,741,655) -
47,334,225 19,808 572 405,832,884 -
49,388,120 28,645,922 469,720,614 10,784,186
$ 199,274 § 235422 % 4197080 % 2,501,074
- 10,407 463,407 -
1,135 2,321 470,550 -
- - 8(19,201 -
229,356 79,526 622,653 4,515
96,815 85,923 360,988 -
220,000 9¢,00C 2,050,424 -
51073 123,695 374,758 -
10,000 10,000 51,500 -
807,653 841,294 9,400,467 2.505.580
- 216101 210,101 -
167,626 148,767 623,014
#.280,000 2,026,000 82,567,457
- 700,216 00210 -
175,563 260,053 827323 -

- - 1,875,000 -
4,623,189 3,336,137 §6.805 111 -
5,430, 842 4,180,431 96,205 573 0,505,584

42,583,960 16,674,001 325,025,758 -
421,750 204,978 6,511,086 -
1,451,628 7,565,852 41,378,197 8,278,597
44457278 24,465 490 373,515,041 8,278,397
3 A0 388 120§ 28643922 § 469,720,614 § 10,784,186
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CITY OF RATPID CITY
RECONCILIATION OF THE PROPRIETARY FUNDS NET POSTTION
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Total Net Position - Enterprise Funds

Amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement
of net position are different because:

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the

costs of activities, such as insurance, to individual funds.

Certain amounts reported for business-type activities in the Statement of Net
Position are different because of the Enterprise Funds' participation

in the activiies conducted in the internal service fund

Total Net Position - Business-type Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

20

3 373,515,04]
1,169,692
$ 374,684,733




CITY OF RAPID CITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013

Operating Revenue:
380 Charges for Goods and Services
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
410 Personal Services
420 Other Current Expense
426.,2 Materials (Cost of Goods Sold)
457 Depreciation (see Note 5)
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenue (Expense):
361 Investment Earnings (Loss)
470 Interest Expense and Fiscal Charges
366 Loss on Disposition of Capital Assets
369.01 Other Taxes
369.01 Sales Tax
369.01 Other

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expense)

Tncome (Loss) Before Capital Grants and Transfers

330  Capital Grants
391.7 Contributions from Developers/Others
391.1 Transfers In (sec Note 8)
51 Transfers Out (see Note 8)
Net Capital Grants, Contributions and Transfers

Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning
Change in Accounting Principle (Note 18)

Nel Position - Restated

NET POSITION - ENDING

Sotid Waste

Water Wastewater Disposal
Fund Fund Fund
$ 15,526,645 11,290,821 6,353,263
15,526,645 11,290,821 6,353,263
2,242,319 1,631,739 1,645,488
3,018,248 2,741,104 2,823,579
2,674,768 1,995,353 924,727
7,935,335 6,368,196 5,393,794
7,591,309 4,922,625 959,469
120,30} (26,369) (107,271}
(336,501) (430,634) (70,279)
(1,891) - -
1,273 - -
11 - 99,978
- - (387,983)
(216,807) (457,003) (465,555)
7,374,502 4,465,622 493,914
843,997 181,745 437,960
1,584,250 604,174 -
2,120,083 4,060,335 -
(84,919) (52,963) (84,932)
4,463,411 4,793,291 353,028
11,837,913 9,258,913 846,942
108,289,079 77,127,745 31,263,465
(275,889) (115,677) (21,934)
108,013,190 77,012,068 31,241,531
$ 119,851,103 § 86,270,981 § 32,088,473

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement,
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Enterprise Funds

Civic Center Nonmajor
Airport Enterprise Proprietary Internal
Fund Fund Funds Totals Service Funds
$ 5,652,877 5,302,476 $ 8,675,616 $ 52,801,699 8,372,585
3,652,871 5,302,476 8,675,616 52,801,699 8,372,585
2,088,195 3,814,895 4,318,856 15,741,492 150,829
1,676,904 3,605,254 3,102,092 16,967,181 7,725,161
- 644,255 14,471 658,726 -
2,036,949 1,982,433 1,024,069 10,638,299 -
5,802,048 10,046,837 8,459,488 44,005,699 7,875,990
(149,171) (4,744,361) 216,128 8,796,000 496,595
51,865 (4,499 40,676 93,701 64,178
(964.760) (196,829) (232,102) (2,231,1095) -
(1,785) (23,403) (1,321) (28,400) -
130,885 - 13,722 145,880 -
107 3,748,553 177,918 4,026,567
117,668 292,793 22,478 -
(666,020) 3,542,820 291,686 2,029,121 64,178
(815,191) (1,201,541) 507,814 10,825,121 560,773
1,279,016 - - 2,742,718 -
. - - 2,188,424 -
- - 1,850,630 8,031,048 -
(150,000) - (13,917) (386,731) (10,541)
1,129,016 - 1,836,713 12,575,459 (10,541)
313,825 (1,201,541) 2,344,527 23,400,580 550,232
66,308,280 45,745,813 22,158.212 350,892,594 7,728,365
(240,389) (86,995) (37,249) (778,133) -
66,067,891 45,658,818 22,120,963 350,114,461 7,728,365
b 00,381,716 % 44457278 § 24465490 § 73,515,041 8,278,597
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
RECONCILIATION OF THE PROPRIETARY FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES
EXPENSES AND CHANGES INNET POSITION TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
Net change in net position - Enterprise funds $
Amounts reporied for business-lype aclivities in the statement of activitics
are difterent because:
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of
cerlain activities, such as insurance to individual funds, Certain amounts reported
for business-type activities in the Statement of Activitics are different because of Enterprise
Funds' participalion: in the activities conducted in the internal service fund

Change in Net Position of Business-type Activitics

The notes to financial siatements are an integral part of this stetement.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBJER 31, 2013

Enterprise Funds

Solld Waste

Water Wastewater Disposal Airport
Fund Fund Fund Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Regeipt from Customers $ 15,644,296 3 10,949,545 § 6,261,009 8 5,722,086

Receipt from Interfund Services Provided - - - .

Payments to Supplicrs (4,048,313) (3,067,191) (1,136,158) (2,168,540

Payments o Employees (2,247,491 (1,644,321) (1,635,571) (2,087,950)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activitics 9,348,492 6,238,033 3,489,280 1,465,596
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAFITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Airport Property Tax and Gross Reeeipts Tax {Civie Center) - - . 130,992

tnternal Activity - (Payment) Receipts to Other Funds 118,610 {60,000} - -

Transfers In 2,120,083 4,060,335 - -

Trensfer Out (84,919) {52,963) (84.932) (150.000)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Subsidies and Trensfers 2,145,174 3,947,372 (84,932) (19,008)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds trom Capiint Debt 1,988,705 . - -

Capital Grauls 843,997 181,745 - 356,131

Purchase of Capital Assels (17,973,563) (9,458,103) (6,365,795) (3,815,139

Principal Paid on Capital Debt (118.412) (957,642) (1,462,579) (554,399}

Interest Paid on Capital Debt (333,418) (425,859} (71.461) (980,673)

Procceds from Sale of Assets - - - -

Other Receipts (Payments) 1,284 - (317,704) 117,668
Net Cash (Used) by capital and related financing Activities (15,591,407) {11,059,858) {8.217,539) (4,876412)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Tnterest Earnings 228,023 131,922 158,157 52,383
Net Cash Provided (Uscd) by Investing Activilies 228,025 131,922 158,157 52,383
Wet Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Bgquivalents (3,860,715) (742,531) (4,655,034) (33774413
Balances - Beginning 20,320,133 7,133,866 9,474,069 9,243,305
Balances- Bnding 5 16450417 & 6,9901335 § 4,819,035 8 5,865,864

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Income (1.0ss) $ 7,591,309 § 4,922,625 § 959469 § (149,171)
Adjusimems to Reconcile Operating fncame to
Nel Cash Pravided (Used) by Operating Astivities:
Depreciation Expense 2,674,768 1,995,351 924,727 2,036,949
Landfill Closure & Postelosure Costs - - 445,607 -
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Receivables 65,865 (399,065) (92,2543 69,209
lnvenlories 3,345 (14,945 - -
Cugtomer Deposits 61,000 - - -
Due from other Governments 48,786 57,789 - -
Accounts and Qther Payables (1,094,409) (311,102) 1,241,814 (491,636)
Aceried Wages Payable (18,176) (9,488) (1,567) (10,040)
Acerued Other Post Employment Benefits 25,563 18,269 12,089 9,434
Acerued Leave Puyable (12,361) (21.363) (605) 851
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities S 9,348,492 § 6,238,033 § 3489280 § 1,465,596
Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Avtivities:
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets Not Affecting
Operating Income § (1,891 & . 3 - S (1,785)
Contribution of Assets from Others 1,584,250 604,174 - -
RECONCILIATION OF CASI1 AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
101 Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2) $ 7,683,772 % 5,842,772 § 2,944,035 & 3,047,198
106 Cash with Fisoal Agens, Restricied (see Note 2) 8,766,645 1,148,563 - 2,818,667
107 Restricted Cash (Notes 2, 17) . - 1,875,000 -
$ 16,450417 § 6,991,335 % 4,819,035 § 5,865,865

‘The notes (o the financial statements ave an integral part of this statement.
&
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Civie Center

Nonmajor

Foaterprise Proprietary Internal
Fuud Funds Totals Service Funds
§ 5245561 §$ £,023372 § 51,84587¢  § -
- - - 8,372,184
(4,31¢.,510) (3.018,205) (17,748,917) (7.762,302)
(3,621,697) (4,288.715) (15,525.765) (151,008)
{2,686,645) 716432 18,571,188 438,784
3,902,365 - 4,033,357 -
. (92,3453 (42,338}
1,850,630 8,031,048 -
- {13517 (386,731} (10,541)
2902368 1,744,368 11,635,339 (10,541)
- 1,988,703 -
- - 1,381,873 B
{188,532} (983701} (39,184,834} -
(309,8643 (540,373 (3,043,269} -
(196,865} (232,102} (2,240,377) -
484 433 285,681 -~
(€95,261) {1,271,743;3 (41,712,221) -
18,897 57,296 646,681 112,257
18,897 57,296 646,681 112,257
539,355 1,246,353 (10,859,012) 540,500
1,379,571 4,157,516 52,208 489 8,341,470
$ RI89% § 5403800 ¢ 41349477 $ 8,881,970
$ {4,744,36]1) % 216,128 § 879606C % 496,598
1,962 433 1,024 009 10,638,299
. 445,607
(54,304) (6522403 (1,059,793) (401}
(12,475) (2.657) (26.767) .
. . 61,000 -
(2.641) - 103,964 .
{48,526} 99,682 (604,177 (57.341)
21,444 £13,047) (30.874) {269)
138,104 27,635 231,096 -
33,650 16,863 16,834 -
$ (2.686,645) $ 716,432 S (8,571,188 5 438,784
$ (23,403) S (13213 § (28,399 % -
- - 2,188,424
5 1,252,143 ¢ 5,152,852 % 25922,773 § §,B81,970
566,783 251,046 13,551,704 -
- - 1,875,000 3 -
$ 1818926 % 5403899 8§ 41,349476  § 8,881,970
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31,2013

Agency
Funds
ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,661,596
Investments 336,491
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,998,087
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable 5 90,187
Net Position Held in Agency
Capacity 1,907,900
Total Liabiiities $ 1,998,087

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A, FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The reporting entity of the City of Rapid City (the City) consists of the primary government (which
includes all of the funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, departments and offices that make up the
legal entity, plus those for which the primary government has a fiduciary responsibility); those
organizations for which the primary government is financially accounlable; and other organizations for
which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that their
exclusion would cause the financial reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary
government are financially accountable, The City is financially accountable if its Governing Board
appoints a voting majority of another organization’s governing body and it has the ability to impose its
will on that organization, or there is a potential for that organization to provide specific financial
benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the City (primary government). The City may also
be financially accountable for another organization if that organization is fiscally dependent on the City.

The Museum Alliance of Rapid City, Inc. (MARC), a separate non-profit corporation, was formed as a
special agent of the City for the design and construction of a new musewm, and to operate and maintain
the museum upon completion of the construction. The MARC is reported as a discrotely reported
component unit on the City’s Statement of Position and Statement of Activities as the MARC i3
financially dependent on the City. A complete financial statement can be obtained at the MARC
Administrative Office, located at 222 New York St., Rapid City S 57701.

R. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Government-Wide Financial Statements:

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information about the reporting
entity as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The
statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities and discretely presented
component units, Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, ntergovermmental
revenues and other non-exchange revenues, Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by
fees charged to external parties for goods or services. Discretely prescnted cornponent units are legally
separale organizations that meet certain criteria, as described in note 1.A above, and may be classified
as cither governmental or business-type activities. See the discussion of individual component units in
Note 1.A. above,

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
each segment of the business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City’s
governmenta) activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or
function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a)
charges paid by recipients of goods and services offered by the programs and (b) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as
general revenyes.

Fund Financial Statements:

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is considered
to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of seif-
balancing accounts that conslitute its  assets, ligbilities, fund equity, revenues and
expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into three major categories: governmental, propriefary and
fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the govemmental and proprietary categories.



CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE |. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)
B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)
Fund Financial Statements (Continued):

A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City or it meets the following
criteria:

. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual
governmental or enterprise funds are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for
all funds of that category or type, and

2. Total assets, labilities, revenues, or expenditure/expenses of the individual
governmenta! or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the carresponding total for all
govermmental and enterprise funds combined, or

3. Management has elected 1o classify one or more governmental or enterprise funds as
major for consistency in reporting from year 1o year or because of public intetest in
the fund’s operations.

The funds of the City financial reporting entity are described below:
Governmental FPunds

General FFund - the General Fund is the general operating fund of the City, It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The General Fund is always
considered 10 be a major fund.

Special Revenue Funds - special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources (other than trusts for individuals, private organizations or other governments or for major capital
projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The City reports the following
najor special revenue funds:

Vision Fund Established by Rapid City Municipal Ordinance Chapter
3.16,060 to account for sales tax revenues received to finance
debt service and capital construction relating to Economic
Development  (25%), Civic Improvements (25%) and
Municipal Infrastructure (50%).

Consolidated Construction Fund Established by Rapid City Municipal Ordinance Chapter
3.16.060 to account for sales tax revenues received to finance
debt service and capital construction related to the City's
long-term infrastructure plans,

Utility Facilities Fund Established by Rapid City Municipal Ordinance Chapter
3.16.060 to account for sales tax revenue received to finance
debt service and capital construction related to the City’s
long-term streets, water and sewer plans.

The following remaining Special Revenue funds are not considered to be major funds; Occupancy Tax,
Downtown BID, Erosion/Sediment Control, Community Development, Rehabilitation Loan/Grant,
Cemetéry Perpetual Care, Retited Senior Volunteer, Library Board and all TID funds. There funds are
reported in the fund financial statements as “Other Governmental Funds”.

Debt Service Funds — debt service funds are used to account for the accumuiation of resources, and the

payment of, gencral long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs in relation to the various tax
increment districts that have been established,
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

8. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)
Governmental Funds (Continued)

Permanent Fund — permanent funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that
only earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that suppost the City's programs — that is for the
benefit of the City and its citizenry.

Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund accounts for the payments received for perpetual care of cemeteries
which is permanently set aside and for which only the income from the trust fund investments is
used for care and maintenance of the cemetery. (SDCL 9-32-18) This is not a major fund.

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise funds may be used to veport any activity for which a fee is charged to
external customers for poods or services, Activities are required to be reported as enterprise funds if
any one of the following criteria is mel. Governments should apply each of these criteria in the context
of the activity's principal revenue sources,

I.  The activity is financed with debl that is secured solely by a pledge of the net
reverues from fees and charges of the activity. Debt that is secured by a pledge of net
revenues from fees and charges and the full faith and credit of a related primary
government of component uit, even if that government is not expected to make any
payments, is not payable solely from fees and charges of the activity. (Some debt
may be secured, in part, by a portion of its own proceeds but should be considered as
payable “solely” from the revenues of the activity.)

Laws or regulations require that the activity’s costs of providing services, including
capital costs such as depreciation or debt service, be recovered with fees and charges,
rather than with taxes or similar revenues.

3. The pricing policies of the activity establish fees and charges designed to recover its

costs, including capital costs such as depreciation or debt service.

R

The City veports the following major enterprise funds:

Water Fund Financed primarily by user charges, this fund accounts for
the construction and operation of the municipal
waterworks system and related facilities. (SDCL 9-47-1)

Wastewater Fund Financed primarily by user charges, this fund accounts for
the construction and operation of the municipal sewer
system and related facilities, (SDCL 9-48-2)

Airport Fund Financed primarily by user charges and grants, this fund
accounts for revenues and expenditures of the municipal
airport and current grant activities,

Civic Center Financed primarily by user fees and third penny sales tax
(SDCL 10-52), this fund accounts for the operation of the
municipal civic center.

Solid Waste Disposal Fund Financed primarily by user charges of landfill and portion
of monthly coliection fee, this fund accounts for the
construction and operation of the municipal landfill system
and related facilities. (SDCL 9-32-11)
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)
B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Concluded)

Internal Service Funds - mternal service funds are used to account for financing of goods or services
provided by one departiment or agency to other departments or agencies of the primary government on a
cost reimbursement basis. The City maintains five internal service funds: Medical Insurance, Liability
Insurance, Unemployment Insurance, Dental Tnsurance and Workers' Compensation Insurance. These
funds are utilized to account for the corresponding insurances. Internal Service Funds are never
considered Lo be major funds.

Fiduciary Funds
Ageney Funds - Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal labilities) and do not involve

measurement of results of operations. Agency funds are never considered to be major funds. The
agency funds are as follows:

Fund

Payrotl Withholding Fund To account for anounts withheld from payroll for various
purposes including pension withholdings, savings bond
purchases and insurance.

Section 125 Fund To account for pre-lax withholdings from employees,
directed for medical or childcare expenses.

Deposits held for Others To account for deposits held for various individuals and

organizations.
C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
Measurement focus is a term used to describe “how” transactions are recorded within the various
financial statements. Basis of accounting refers 1o “when” revenues and expenditures or expenses are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements, regardless of the measurement
focus,
Measurement Focus:
Government-wide Financial Stafements:
In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, governmental, business-
type and component unit activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus,
applied on the acerual basis of accounting.
Fund Financial Statements:
In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting are applied to governmental fund types, while the “economic resources”

measurement focus and the acerval basis of accounting are applied to the proprietary and fiduciary fund
types.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)
C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued)
Basis of Accounting:
Government-wide Financial Statements.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, governmental, business-
type and component unil activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenues and related assets are recognized when earned (usually when the
right to receive cash vests); and expenses and related liabilities are recorded when an obligation is
ineurred (usually when the obligation to pay cash in the future vests).

Fund Financial Statements.

All governmental fund types are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Their
revenues, including properly {axes, are recognized when they becoine measurable and available.
“Available” means resources are collected or to be collected soon enough after the end of the fiscal year
that they can be used to pay the bills of the current period, The accrual period for the City is 60 days.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, receivables may be measurable but not available.
Reported deferred inflows of resources are those where assel recognition criteria have been met but for
which revenue recognition criteria have not been met.

Expenditures are generally recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Exceptions to this
general rule include principal and interest on general long-term debt which are recognized when due,

All proprietary and fiduciary fund types are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their
revenues are recognized when they are earned and their expenses are recognized when they are
incurred.

. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The City pools the cash resources of its funds for cash management purposes. For the purpose of the
proprietary funds’ Statements of Cash Flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments and
deposits, including restricted assets, with a term to maturity of three months or less at the date of
acquisition, to be cash equivalents.

E. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

For the purpose of financial reporting, “cash and cash equivalents” includes all demand, savings
accounts, certificates of deposit and cash wanagement pools of the City that have the general
characteristics of demand deposit accounts in that the governmental enterprise may deposit additional
cash at any time and also effectively may withdraw cash at any time without prior notice or penalty,
Investments in open-end mutual fund shares, or similar investments in external investment pools, are
also considered 1o be cash equivalents, All investments are excluded,

Investments classified in the financial statements consist primarily of certiticates of deposit whose term
to maturity at date of acquisition exceeds three months, and/or those types of investment authorized by
South Dakota Codified Laws (SDCL) 4-5-6. All investments with original maturities greater than 18
months at the time of purchase are redeemable at the City’s option, assuming the investments are
marketable.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE |. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)
F. INTERFUND ELIMINATIONS AND RECLASSIFICATIONS

in the process of aggregating data for the government-wide financial staterments, some amounts
reported as interfund activity and balances in the fund financial statements have been eliminaled or
reclassified as follows:

1. In order to minimize the grossing-up effect on assets and liabilities within the
governmental and business-type activities columns of the primary government, amounts
reported as interfund receivables and payables have been eliminated in the governmental
and business-type activities columns, except for the net, residual amounts due between
governmental and business-type activities, which are presented as internal balances.

2. In order to minimize the doubling-up effect on the internal services fund activity, certain
“centralized expenses™ including an administrative overhead component, are charged as
direct expenses to the funds or programs in order to show all expenses that are associated
with a service, program, department, or fund. When expenses are charged in this manner,
expense reduction oceurs in the General Fund, so that expenses are only reported in the
function to which they relate.

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may result
in amounts owed between funds. Those related to goods and service type transactions are classified as
“due to and from other funds.,” Long-term interfund loans (noncurrent portion) are reported as
“advances from and to other funds” and are equally offset by a nonspendable fund balance, which
indicates they are not a component of current assets, and do not constitute “available spendable
resources.”  Interfund receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities and
within the business-type activities are eliminated in the Statement of Net Position, See Note 8 for
details of interfund transactions, including receivables and payables at year-end.

G. INVENTORIES

Inventories in all funds are stated at the lower of cost or market, using the first-in, first-out method cost
flow assumption. Inventories consist of sand, salt and chemicals for snow removal, service connection
repair materials and concession items.

Governmeni-wide Financial Statements: In the government-wide financial statements, inventory is
recorded as an assel at the time of purchase and charged to expense as it is consumed.

Fund Financial Statements: 1o the fund financial statements, purchase of supply inventory items are
recorded as expenditures at the time individual inventory items are purchased. Reported inventories are
equally offset by nonspendable fund balance which indicates that they do not constitute “available
spendable resources” even though they are a component of net current assets.

H. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets include land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, machinery and equipment,
infrastructure, and all other tangible or intangible assets that are used in operations and that have initial
useful lives extending beyond a single reporting period. Infrastructure assets ave long-lived capital
assets that normally are stationary in nature and normally can be preserved for a significantly greater
number of years than most capital assets.

The acvounting (reatment over capital assets depends on whether the assets are used in governmental
fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or
fund financial statements,



CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)
H. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Capital assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated cost, where actual cost could not be determined.
Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date donated. Capital assets
donated by developers are recorded at estimated cost.  Historical cost was used to value the majority of
the assets,

Infrastructure assets used in peneral government operations, consisting of certain improvements other
than buildings, including roads, bridges, sidewalks, drainage systems and lighting systems, acquired
prior to January 1, 1980, were not required to be capitalized by the City. Infrastructure assets acquired
since January 1, 1980 are recorded at cost and are classified as “Improvements Other than Buildings”.

Far governmental activities capital assets, construction-period inlerest is not capitalized in accordance
with USGAAP, while for capital assets used in business-type activities/proprietary fund’s operations,
construction-period intervest is capitalized in accordance with USGAAP.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the government-
wide Statement of Activities, with net capital assets reflected in the Statement of Net Position.
Accumulated depreciation is reported on the government-wide Statement of Net Position and on the
proprietary fund’s Statement of Net Position, Depreciation is provided over the assets’ estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of assot
and the capitalization threshold (the dollar values above which assel acquisitions are added to the
capital assets accounts) is as follows:

Buildings 25-50 years $ 15,000
Improvements 10-50 years $ 15,000
Machinery and Equipment 3-20 years 5 5,000
Utility System 25-50 years $15,000
Infrastructure 25-50 years $ 15,000

Land is an inexhaustible asset and is not depreciated. Construction in Progress is not depreciated.

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for
as expenditures of the appropriate governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used m
proprietary fund operations are accounted for on the accrual basis, the same as in the government-wide
statements.

[. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earmed bul unused vacation and sick pay
benefits. All vacation time and estimated retirement severance are accrued when incurred in
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements and recorded as an expenditure in the
governmental fund statements when the employees use the beneflis,

J. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The accounting treatment of long-term liabilities depends on whether the assets are wsed in
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the
government-wide or fund financial statements.

Al} long-term liabilities to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are reported as
liabilities in the government-wide statements. The long-term liabilities consist primarily of bonds
payable, financial leases, other post-employment benefits liability and compensated absences.

w
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CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)
J. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

In the fund financial statements, debt proceeds are reported as revenucs (other financing sources), while
payments of principal and interest are reported as expenditures when they become due. The accounting
for proprictary fund long-term debt is on the accrual basis, the same in the fund statements as in the
government-wide financial statements.

K. PROGRAM REVENUE

Program revenues derive directly from the program itself or from parties other than the City’s taxpayers
or citizenry, as 4 whole. Program revenues are classified into three categories as follows:

a. Charges for services — These arise from charges to customers, applicants or others who purchase,
use or directly benefit from the goods, services or privileges provided or are otherwise directly
affected by the services.

b. Program-specific operating grants and contributions ~ These arise from mandatory and voluntary
non-exchange transactions with other governmments, organizations, or individuals that are
restricted for use in a particular program,

c. Program-specific capital grants and contributions —~ These arise from mandatory and voluntary
non-exchange transactions with other governments, organizations or individuals that are
restricted for the acquisition of capital assets for use in a particular program

L. DEFERRED INFLOWS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Tn addition 1o assets, the Statement of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent consumption of net position that applies to a future
period or periods. These items will not be recognized as an outflow of resources until the applicable
future period. The City did not have any deferred outflows at year end.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. Deferred inflows of resources represent acquisitions of net position that applies to a future
period or periods. These items will not be recognized as an inflow of resources until the applicable
future period. Deferred inflows of resources consist primarily of property taxes, special assessments
and federal grants.

M. PROPRIETARY FUNDS REVENUE AND EXPENSE CLASSIFICATION

In the proprietary fund’s Statcment of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position, revenues
and expenses are classified in a manner consistent with how they are classified in the Statement of Cash
Flows. That is, transactions for which related cash flows are reported as capital and related financing
activities, noncapital financing activities, or investing activities are not reported as components of
operating revenues or exXpenses.

N. EQUITY CLASSIFICATIONS

Government-Wide Financial Statements:
Equity is classified as Net Position and is displayed in three components:

1. Net Investment in Capital Assets — Consists of capital assets, including restricted capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation (if applicable) and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds,
mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets,

2. Restricted Net Position — Consists of nel position with constraints placed on the use either by 1)

external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments,
or 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continucd)
N. EQUITY CLASSIFICATIONS (Continued)

3. Unrestricted Net Position — Al other net position that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net
investment in capital assets”.

Fund Financial Statements:

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance, and may distinguish betwsen “Nonspendable”,
“Restricted”, “Committed”, “Assigned” and “Unassigned” components. Proprietary fund equity is classified
the saine as in the government-wide financial statements. Agency Funds have no fund equity. The Net
Pasition is reported as Net Position Held in Agency Capacity.

Application of Net Position
It is the City’s policy to first use restricted net position, prior to the use of unrestricted net position, when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net positions are available.

Fund Balance Classification Policies and Procedures
The City classifies governmental fund balances as follows:

1. Nonspendabic — includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not in spendable
form or beeause of legal or contractual constraints.

2. Restricted ~ includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which are
externally imposed by providers, such as creditors or amounts constrained due to constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation,

3. Committed - includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are internally
imposed by the government through the adoption of an ordinance or policy by the Rapid City Common
Council and docs not tapse at year end.

4. Assigned - includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes that are

neither considered restricted or committed, Fund Balance may be assigned by the City Council or by an

official or body to which the City Council delegates the authority.

Unassigned — includes positive fund balance within the General Fund which has not been classificd

within the above mentioned categories and negative fund balances in other governmental funds.

w

The City uses restricted/committed amounts first when both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is
available unless there are legal documents/contracts that prohibit doing this, such as a grant agreement
requiring dotlar for dollar spending. Additionally, the City would first use committed, then assigned, and
lastly unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund balance when expenditures are made. The City does not have
a formal minimum fund balance policy.

0. RESTRICTED ASSETS

Certain assets are classified as restricted on the Statement of Net Position. These restrictions include
those imposed by debt indenture covenants, tax increment financing district developer agreements,
federal grant agreements, Statc law regarding use of cemetery perpetual care funds and landfill
closure/post closure funds.

P, RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 2012, GASB issued Statement Nos. 67 and 68. Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for
Pension Plans, and Statement No. 68, Accounting and Reporting for Pensions, replace the requirements
of Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures and will require additional note disclosures for the City’s
cost-sharing multiple employer, defined benefit pension plan. These statements relate to accounting and
financial reporting issues and how pension costs and obligations are measured and reporfed in audited
financial statements. The standards describe the change from the funding-based approach to an
accounting-based approach in order to improve pension information and increase the transparency,
consistency, and comparability of pension information across governments.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Concluded)
P. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (Continued)

The City will recognize its share of a collective net pension liability, as well as pension expense and
deferred outflows or inflows of resources for its proportionale share. Within the governmental fund
financial statements, pension expenditures should be recognized equal to the total of (1) amounts paid
by the City to a pension plan and (2) the change between the beginning and ending balances of amounts
normally expected 1o be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. Note disclosures will
include deseriptive information about the plan and its tevms, contribution rates and how they are
determined, and amounts attributed to employee service and forfeinwes in the current period. The
standards will be affective for the year ending December 31, 2015,

NOTE 2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS CREDIT RISK, CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK AND
INTEREST RATE RISK

The City follows the practice of aggregating the cash assets of various funds to maximize cash management
efficiency and returns. Various restrictions on deposits and investmenis are imposed by statutes. These
restrictions are summarized below: i

Deposits - The City’s cash deposits are made in qualified public depositories as defined by SDCL. 4-6A~
1, 9-22-6, 9-22-6.1 and 9-22-6.2, and may be in the form of demand or time deposits. Qualified
depositories are required by SDCL 4-6A-3 to maintain at all times, segregated from their other assets,
eligible collateral having a value equal to at least 100 percent of the public deposit accounts which
exceed deposit insurance such as the FDIC and NCUA. In lieu of pledging eligible securities, &
qualified public depository may furnish irevocable standby letters of credit issued by federal home loan
banks accompanied by written evidence of that bank’s public debt rating which may not be less than
“AA” or a qualificd public depository may furnish a corporate surety bond of a corporation authorized
to do business in South Dakota.

Deposits are reported at cost, plus interest, if the account is of add-on type.

The actual bank balances at December 31, 2013 were as follows:

Primary Government Bank Balance
[nsured ~ FDIC $2,000,000
Uninsured, collateral jointly held by State’s/City agent in
the namne of the State and the pledging financial institution 61,346,816
Total Deposits $63,346,816

Investments - [n general, SDCL 4-5-6 permits municipalities’ funds to be invested only in (a) securities
of the United States and securities guaranteed by the United States Government either directly or
indirectly; or (b) repurchase agreements fully collateralized by securities described in (a) above; or in
shares of an open-end, no-load fund administered by an investment company whose investments are in
securities described in (a) above and repurchase agreements described in (b) above. Also, SDCL 4-5-9
requires investments to be in the physical custody of the political subdivision or may be deposited in a
safekeeping account with any bank or trust company designated by the political subdivision as its fiscal
agent.

Investments are reported at fair value, Accordingly, changes in the market value of investments at year
end are veflected as a component of eanings on investments,

Credit Risk - State law limits eligible investments for the City, as discussed above. The City has no investment
policy that would further limit its investment choices.
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NOTE 2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS CREDIT RISK, CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK AND
INTEREST RATE RISK (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits - The risk that, in the event of a depository failure, the City’s deposits may not
be returned to it. The City’s investment policy restricts the maximum holding per institution to 50% of the

City's total pooled cash fund. As of December 31, 2013 none of the City’s deposits in financial institutions
were exposed to custodial credit risk,

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments — The risk that, in the event of the counterparty to a transaction, the City will
ot be able 1o recaver the value of investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. The City’s investment policy restricts the maximum holding per institution to 50% of the City’s total
pooled cash fund. No financial institution held more than 50% of the total pooled cash, All investments are held
in the City’s name with RBC Wealth Management, Edward Jones, Wells Fargo and MidFirst Bank serving as
custodians.

As of December 31, 2013, the City had the following investments:

Investment Credit Total Less than 1-5 Years 5-10 Years 10 Years or
1 Year More

Certificates of Deposit N/A 1,941,623 227,394 1,024,884 689,345
US Treasury Notes N/A 10,647,053 5,536,506 3,330,612 1,779,934
US Federal Agency Obligations:

GNMA (Ginnie Mae) Pool AAA 1,652,938 55,318 1,597,620

GNMA (Ginnie Mae) Treas  |AAA 13,204 13,204

USDA AAA 300,789 45,58] 255,208
US Government Sponsored Enterprises:

FNMA (Fannie Mac) Pool AAA 11,284,684 4,948,719 664,484 5,671,481

FNMA Notes AAA 3,667,515 670,097 2,997,418

FNMA Treasury AAA 1,070,898 1,070,898

FHLMC (Freddie Mac) Pool  JAAA 4,556,036 537,118 593,970 3,424 948

FHLMC Debentures AAA 128,248 128,248

FHLMC Notes AAA 4,373,606 564,348 3,482.211 327,048

FFCRB Bonds AAA 507,587 201,446 306,141

FHLB Notes AAA 690,021 206,534 483,487

FHILB Bonds AAA 285,530 285,530
Total 41,119,733 1,998,066 20,741,435 5,651,040 12,729,191
Presented in the:

Statements of Net Position 40,783,242

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 336,491

41,119,733

Interest Rate Risk — Pursuan( to the City’s investment policy, portfolio duration must always remain within 1 {o
5 years with individual securities required to have a maturity between 30 day Treasury Bills and final maturity of
30 years as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Concentration of Credit Risk — The City limits the maximum holding per issue to 10%. More than 5 percent of
the City's investments are in repurchase agreements which comprise 5.5% of the investments.
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NOTE 2, DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS CREDIT RISK, CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK AND

INTEREST RATE RISK (Continued)

As of December 31, 2013, the City had the following in the cash with fiscal agent accounts:

Investment Credit Total Less than 1-5 Years 5-10 Years
] Year

Money Marlket N/A 10,297,480 10,297,480
Certificates of Deposit N/A 2,976,000 2,090,500 885,500
Repurchase Agreement N/A 3,642,475 3,642,475
US Treasury Note AAA 19,097,154 19,097,154
US Government Sponsored Enterprises;

Freddie Mac Bonds AAA 1,360,019 1,360,019
Total 37,373,128 36,487,628 885,500

Assignment of Investment Income ~ State law allows income from deposits and investments to be credited (o
cither the General Fund or the fund making the investment. The City's policy is to credit all income from
investments to the fund making the investment, except for interest generated by the Cemetery Perpetual Care
Fund, which must be credited to the General Fund, and used only for maintenance of the municipal cemetery, as
required by SDCL 9-32-18.

Restricted Cash:
Assets (included in Note 2) are restricted to use for the following specific purposes:

Amount: Purpose:

$ 1,875,000 Closure and Post-Closure Landfill Costs

$ 121,194 For Grant Expenditures

$51,979 Library Board

NOTE 3, RRCEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Receivables and payables ave not aggregated in these financial statements. The City expects all receivables to be
collected within one year; except for the Infrastructure Development Partnership Fund Notes Receivables
totaling $1,871,903 al December 31, 2013 that have a maximum repayment term ot 10 years and the Life Safety
Loan Receivable totaling $52,068 at December 31, 2013 that has a maximum repayment term of 7 years. These
notes are fully collateralized with letters of credit. Appropriate allowances tor estimated uncollectible accounts
have been established based on the City’s knowledge of current environmental conditions and historical losses.

Business-Type Activities: Business Type Activities receivables are comprised of amounts owed o the City by
City residents for services rendered such as water and sewer and interest income receivable.

Governmental Activities: Property taxes are levied on or before October | of the year preceding the start of the
fiscal year. They attach as an enforceable lien on property, and become due and payable as of the following
January 1, the first day of the fiscal year. Taxes are payable in two instaliménts on or before April 30 and
October 31 of the fiscal year,

The City is permitted by several state statufes to levy varying amounts of taxes per $1,000 of taxable valuation
on taxable real property of the City.
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NOTE 4. DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

At December 31, 2013 the City’s Due from Other Governments consisted of the following:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:
Genera) Fund

Local Government Highway/Bridge 152,196
FEMA 3,048,244
Motor Vehicle 24,195
Liquor Tax Reversion 122,971
Historic Preservation 1,169
Air Quality Grant 8,992
Police Grants 28,552
Blood Testing 11,655
School Liaison 15,135
Re-entry Program 16,288
Wildland Fire 5,873
Homeland Security 4,990
Fire Grant 34,094
Local Counties/Agencies 7,315
Urban Mass Transit Grant 112,703
Transportation Planning 180,253
Total 3,774,625

Consolidated Construction Fund

Consolidated Grant 66,038
Nonmajor Govermmental Fund 124
Cemetery Perpetnal Care —Fees 2,265

RSVP

Community Development Grant 12,149
Total 14,538
Total Governmental Funds 3,855,201

ENTERPRISE FUNDS:
Atrport Fund

Alrport Improvement Project 1,306,982
FEMA 13,134
Pennington County 13,511
TSA Building/Gate Fees 10,654
Total Airport Fund 1,344,281

Water Fund

Bureau of Reclamation 6,134
FEMA 4,137
Total Water Fund 10,271

Wasterwater Fund

FEMA 6,488
Solid Waste Disposal Fund

FEMA 37,960

State of South Dakota 400,000
Total Solid Waste Fund 437,960
Civic Center Fund
FEMA 5,059
Facility Rental 2,460
Total Civic Center Fund 7,519
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NOTE 4. DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS (Continued)

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds

Faergy Plant - Due from RCAS 52,789
Energy Plant -- FEMA 1,914
Total Non-Major Proprietary Funds 54,703
Toial Proprietary Funds 1,861,222
Grand Total 5,716,423
NOTE 5. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2013 is as follows:
Beginning IEnding
Balance Increases Transfers Decreases Balance
Governmental activities:
Capita! Assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 42,976,182 % 910,000 $ - $ - § 43,886,182
Construction in Progress 9,080,786 14,468,533  (10,225,672) - 13,323,647
Total capital assets nat being depreciated 52,056,968 15,378,533 (10,225,672) - 57,209,829
Capital Assets being depreciated:
Buildings 71,702,598 4,782,178 - - 76,484,776
Iroprovements 276,767.303 6,859,496 10,225,672 - 203,852,471
Machinery and Equipment 27,694,051 3,290,823 - (722,199) 30,262,674
Total capital assets being depreciated 376,163,951 14,932,497 (722,199) 400,599,921
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (14,754,900} (1,412,877) - - (16.167,777)
Improvements (125,950,065)  (12,107,198) - 630 (138,056,633)
Machinery and Equipment (20,359,181) (1,601,877) - 636,223 (21,324,835)
Total aceumulated depreciation (161,064,146)  (15,121,952) 636,833 (175,549,245)
Total capital assets being depreciated,
net 215,099,805 (189,455) - (85,346) 225,050,676
Governmental activities capital assets,
$ 267,156,773 § 15,189,078 § $  (85,346) $ 282,260,505

net

Depreciation expense was charged o functions within governmental funds as follows:

Total General Government $
Total Public Safety

Total Health and Welfare

Total Public Works

Total Culture and Recreation

Total Conservation & Development

Total Governmental depreciation expeunse $

40

717,302
662,505
421,453
11,936,367
1,383,848
477

VUL SRS

15,121,952



CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 5. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Capital asset activity in business-type funds for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 is as follows:

Business-type activities:

Capital Assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital Assets being depreciated.
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and Equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Tmprovements
Machinery and Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Beginning
Balance Increases

Transfers

Ending

Decreases Balance

$ 15,805,738 § 501,836 § - - $ 16,307,574
61,125,939 37,191,135 (31,213,055) - 67,104,019
76,931,677 37,692,971 (31,213,055) - 83,411,594

141,915,817 - 19,348,609 - 161,264,426
292,411,001 1,358,775 13,235,445 - 307,005,221
24,813,244 950,512 (86,968) 25,676,788

459,140,062 2,309,287

(45,125,083)  (2,878,292)
(101,686,031)  (6,237,273)
(15,350,810)  (1,502,735)

32,584,054

(86,968) 493,946,435

(48,003,375)
(107,943,304)
$58.568  (16,794,976)

(162,161,924)  (10,638.299)

296,978,138 (8,329,012)

32,584,054

8,568 (172,741,655)

(28,400) 321,204,780

$ 373,909,815

$£29,363,959 %

(28,400) $404,616,374

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type funds as follows:

Total Water Enterprise

Total Wastewater Enterprise

Total Airport Enterprise

Total Civic Center Enterprise

Total Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise
Total Solid Waste Collection Enterprise
Total Ambulance Enterprise

Total Transportation Terminal Enterprise
Total Golf Course Enterprise

Total Parking Lot Area Enterprise
Total Executive Golf Enterprise

Total Cemetery Enterprise

Total Encrgy Plant Enterprise

Total Enterprise depreciation expense

$ 2,674,768
1,995,353
2,036,949
1,982,433

924,727
334,636
213,428
167,039
145,058
88,704
34,847
24,644
15,714



CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6. CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS

The City had construction commitments of approximately $31.3 million as of December 31, 2013. Individual
project commitments of over $100,000 were as follows:

Governimenta) Activitics Total Costs

Proiect Description Asof 1273172013 Towml Contract Remaining
08-1743 Canyon Lake Dam Reconstruction 525,690 3911,141 3.48545])
09-1817 Downtown St impr Ph2 233,294 2,799,213 2,565,919
111942 Horace Munn Park Place Replacement 68,568 395,750 327.182
11-1951 {.eiand Lane/Rushmore ${ Reconstruction 126,207 365,856 239,649
111960 South Valley Dr Extension 28,449 368,588 340,139
11-1963 Perrine Drainage Quifall Elem 748 124,887 226,337 101,450
12-1187 West Chicago & Staton Place Reconstruction 1,161,819 2,012,055 850,236
12-1849 SRC Soccer Complex 737,220 2,165,416 1,428,196
12-2043 ASA Softball Ficids 214,361 1,581,880 1,367,519

Remainder 3125374 3,782,924 057,550
Total Gavernmental Activities 6,345,870 17,609,160 11,263,290

Business-Type Activitics

07-1689 Water Treatment Plant Upgrades 1,745,700 5,467,812 3,722,112
09-1509 Jackson Blvd Usitities 3,362,577 5,699,958 337,381
09-1817 Downtown Street Improvement 11,561 288,462 276,901
09-1836 JSWT Facility 3,689,863 3,895,967 206,104
10-0878 Canyon Lake Dr Reconstruction 19,006 7,250,780 7.231,774
10-183 Jackson Blvd Utility 121,698 401,339 279,641
10-1858 Yackson Springs WTP Construction 21,726,998 22,283,105 556,107
10-1919 Inflow & Infiltration Study 36,289 427,971 391,682
12-1187 W Chicago & Staton Place Reconstruction 366,612 779,873 413,261
12-2039 Alma, Gladys, Lemon Watermain Exlensions 327,100 607,997 280,897
12-5220 Rental Car Lot 1,806,438 2,914,985 1,108,547
132110 Landfill Cell 16 Expansion 612,986 1,848,458 1,235,47
132112 Landfilt Cell 16 Viner System 519,374 793,065 273,691
14-2095 Seuthside Dr Sanitary Sewer 180,185 483,809 303,625
5235 Runway 14-32 & 5-23 1,439,873 3,844,444 2,404,571
Energy Plant Retrofit 2,744,518 3,500,000 755,485
Remainder 21,135,421 21,465,223 329,802
Total Business-Type Activities 61,846,196 81,953,245 20,107,049
Total 68,192,065 99,562,405 31,370,339

Funding for these projects is provided from dedicated sales tax funds (Vision Fund and Consolidated
Construction funds), grants and charges for services. There are many projects that are included in Construction
in Process line item in Note 5 bul are not included in this note because they have either been substantially
completed but not put into service or they are only in the design stage with no commitment for further
construction,
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The reporting entity’s long-term debt is segregated between the amounts to be repaid from
governmental activities and amounts to be repaid from business-type activities.

Governmental Activities:

As of December 31, 2013, the governmenta! long-term debt of the financial reporting entity consisted of
the following:

Revenue Bonds

$22.910,000 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 serviced by
the Utilities Facilities Special Revenue Fund, Payable in semi-
annual principal installments of $885,000 to $1,535,000 through
December 2032, Interest at 2.00 10 4.00 percent. Interest paid in
2013 was $575,804, 22,055,000

$8,055,000 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2007.  Semi-
annual principal installments of $2,060,000 due June 2013
through December 2014, Interest at 4.5 to 5.0 percent. (This
issue is being serviced by the Vision Special Revenue Fund.)
Interest paid in 2013 was $339,313.  This was paid in full

subsequent to year end (Note 19) 4,120,000
$26,175,000
Unamorlized deferred premium 864,113

$27,039,113

Compensated Absences:
Accrued Leave Payable Government Funds $1,941.014
Financing (Capital Acquisition) Leases

$727,717 under a supplement to the master governmental
lease-purchase agreements with Wells Fargo Brokerage
Services, LLC, for the purchase of snow plows and strect
sweepers, which are sceurity for the Lease, Duc annual
installments of $153,020, including interest of 2.56% to 2.84%

percent. The final payment is due October 1, 2017, The lease $573,181
is serviced by the General Fund. Interest paid in 2013 was
$6,484.

$4,772,000 sublease with Pennington County, South Dakota tor
44% 61% and 10% interest in Public Safety Building,
Evidence Lab and Parking Ramp, respectively. Due in annual
installments of $290,058 including interest of 4.11 percent.
The final payment is due December 1, 2040. The lease is
serviced by the Consolidated Construction Special Revenuce
Fund. Interest paid in 2013 was $156,177. $4,678,118

$727,295 under an agreement with Wells Fargo Brokerage
Services, LLC, dated June 10, 2008 for the purchase of an
aerial fire truck, which is security for the Lease. Due in semi-
annual instaliments of $60,776, including inferest of 4.33
percent. The final payment is due June 10, 2015, The lease is
serviced by the General Fund. Interest paid in 2013 was
$11,163. $174,710
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NOTE 7. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Financing (Capital Acquisition) Leases (Continued)

$721,380 under an agrecment with Wells Fargo Sccurities,
LLC, daied September 15, 2010 for the purchase of a fire
engine, which is security for the Lease. Due in annual
installments of $197,937, including interest of 3.83 percent.
The final payment is due September 15, 2014, The lease is
serviced by the Consolidated Construction Special Revenue
Fund. [nterest paid in 2013 was $14,333. 190,636

Total Leases $5.616,645

The principal amount, above, was included in the appropriate classification of capital assets, and is
being depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset, or the lease term (where title
never transfers), as appropriate.

Total cost and accumulated depreciation for all capital leases utilized in the governmental activities is as
follows:

Gross amount of assets recorded under capitai leases 36,935,969

Accumulated depreciation - Public Safety (866,343)
Net assets recorded under capital leases $6,0069,626

Tax Increment Financing District (T1D) Liabilities

Tax increment financing is & method of financing improvements and development in an area which has
been determined to be blighted according to the criteria set forth in SDCL 11-9. In some instances the
City pledges future tax revenues generated by the tax increment district to acquire public improvements
within the established Tax Increment Disirict which were constructed by a private developer,

The City follows GASB 48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-Intity
Transfer of Assets and Future Revenues, in accounting for tax increment financing districts in which the
City has pledged all or some portion of future tax revenues to acquire public improvements within the
established Tax Increment District which were constructed by a private developer. Under GASB 48
these transactions are accounted for as a collateralized barrowing, whereby the City recognizes a
liability and capital assets equal to the amount of the public improvements being acquired. The City
also uses some tax increment districts to fund improvements in which the City has obtained financing or
has used reserves fo fund all or some of the improvements, in which case the City follows its general
policies outlined in Note 1.

In cases where the Cily purchases public improvements from private developers, the City agrees 1o
deposit all positive tax increments received for that district in a special fund, Once the developer has
completed the agreed upon improvements and has certified to the City the total costs of the
improvements, as well as providing reasonable documentation regarding those costs, the City accepls
and records the public improvement along with the related liability for the acquired assets. The City
then begins making payment to the developer based on the amount of positive tax increments received,

Tt is a specific condition of the developer’s agreement and a condition of the City’s obligation that all
sums payable shall be limited to the proceeds of the positive tax increment. It is also specifically agreed
that the City has made no representation that the proceeds from such funds shall be sufficient to retire
the indebtedness incurred by the developer to construct the public improvements.
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NOTE 7. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

At December 31, 2013, there were 15 active lax increment financing districts in which costs had been
certificd in part or in whole. The current principal balances shown below plus interest at the stated
applicable rate over the life of the note represent the amount of future property taxes pledged to fund -
improvements related to these tax increment districts that have been certified as of December 31, 2013,
The maximum payoff amounts represent the amount of future tax revenues that were pledged at the
time of certification. Increment property taxes are projected to produce 100 % of the maximum debt
service requirements presented below.

Tax Increment Financing District (T1D) Liabilities (Continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2013, principal and interest expenditures and property tax
revenues were $6,872,660 and $6,439,296, respectively. These amounts include property tax revenues
and principal and interest expenditures related to improvements within tax increment districts funded
with City debt or reserves. Each of the individual debt issues listed below have their own debt service
fund from which the debt is serviced.

TID 29 - Fiberswitch Technology — Created in 1998, maximum
payoff $90,480 including interest at 9.0 percent, expires 10/5/2018. $76,223

TID 38 - Heartland Business ~ Created 'in 2003, maximum payoff
$5,545,503 including interest at 9.5 percent, expives 2/17/2023. 1,266,802

TID 39 — E Rapid Plaza — Created in 2003, maximum payoff
$2,218,351 including interest at 8.25 percent, expires 4/21/2023. 362,585

TID 40 - SoCreek Village — Created in 2003, maximum payoff
$1,179,192 including interest at 7.0 percent, expires 5/39/2023. 418,701

TID 44 — Mall Drive — Created in 2004, maximum payoff $8,063,771
including interest at 5.0 percent, expires 4/10/2024. 607,120

TID 47 — Tower Road -- Created in 2004, maximum payofl
$4,716,080 including interest at 7.5 percent, expires 10/4/2024, 4,291,963

TID 50 — TFederal Beef — Created in 2004, maximum payoff
$7,458.290 including interest at 9.0 percent, expires 11/07/2025, 4,685,429

TID 52 — E. St Charles — Created in 2005, maximum payoff
$1.050,484 including interest at 5.85 percent, expires 5/2/2025, 392,612

TID 53 ~ Stony Creek Plaza — Created in 2003, maximum payoff
$2,743,799 including interest at 7.0 to 9.75 percent, expires 7/5/2025, 171,819

TID 54 - Rainbow Ridge — Created in 2005, maximum payoff
$4,246,859 including interest at 9.0 percent, expires 10/3/2025. 1,624,156

TID 56 — Rushmore Crossing — Created in 2008, maximum payoff
$16,343,503 including interest at 6.75 percent, expires | 1/11/2025. 8,994,681

TID 63 -~ Copperfield Vistas — Created in 2007, maximum payoff '
$1,798,642 including interest at 7.5 percent, expires 6/7/2027. 252,546

TID 65 — Minuesota Street — Created in 2007, maximum payoff
$18,474,421 including interest at 6.5 percent, expires 9/4/2027. 5,939,038

TID 68 -~ Homestead -~ Created in 2008, maximum payoff
$14,016,197 including interest at 6.0 percent, expires 4/21/2028. 469,003
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NOTE 7. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

TID 69 — North Fire Station -

$4,361,190 including interest at 7.75 percent, expires 7/21/2028.

Total Tax Increment District Liabilities

Other Post Employment Benefit Liabilities (Note 12)

Total Liabilities Payable

Created in 2013, maximum payoff

2,462,617

$32,015,295

2,185,147

$68,797,214

The annual requirements for maturity for governmental activities long-term debt (exciuding
compensated absences and other post-employment benefits) outstanding as of December 31, 2013, are

as follows:

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Year Ending

General Debt Obligations

Capital Lease Obligations

TID Obligations

December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interesi Principal Interest
2014 5,074,603 836,835 541,262 221,306 5,111,879 1,972,208
2015 959,139 654,935 302,599 201,256 5,045,929 1,680,276
2016 984,139 629,610 251,081 191,998 5,332,605 1,390,848
2017 1,004,139 608,385 259,325 183,754 3,878,682 1,080,812
2018 1,034,139 579,360 114,832 175,226 2,847,848 787,913

2019-2023 5,515,695 2,543,453 648,975 801,318 5,489,153 789,198
2024-2028 6,420,695 1,649,300 793,800 656,492 309,139 26,660
2029-2033 6,046,563 414,000 970,944 479,349 - -
2034-2038 - - 1,187,619 262,673

2039-2043 - - 546,209 33,908

TOTALS 27,039,113 7,915,880 5,616,645 3,207,280 32,015,293 7,127,974

The above noted annual requirements for maturity for the tax increment financing debt are based on
actual tax increment revenues received in 2013; estimated tax increment revenues projected by
Pennington County fo receive in 2014; and estimaled tax increment revenues as per the approved

project plans.

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2013:

Government
Activities:

Leases

Revenue Bonds
Compensated Absence
TID

Other Post-
Employment Benefits
Total

Liabilities
Liabilities Payable Due Within
Payable [/172013 lssued Retired 12/31/2013 One Year

$659,338 $5,491,718 ($334,411) $5,616,645 $541,262
14,651,956 23,792,788 (11,405,631) 27,039,113 5,074,603
2,008,427 1,141,028 {1,208,441) 1,941,014 90,000
32,203,025 3,418,221 (3,608,951) 32,015,295 5,111,879
1,867,882 217,265 2,185,147 800,000
$51,490,628 $34,061,020 (316,754,434) $68,797,214 $11,617,744
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NOTE 7. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)
Business-Type Activities:

As indicated below within the description for each debt issue, the City has pledged fulure revenues
associated with various debt agreements. All debt secured by pledged revenues funded capital projects
and improvements, or was used to refinance the debt that originally funded the capital projects and
improvements, within the specific Funds that pledged the future revenues. The current principal
balance plus interest at the stated applicable rate over the life of the debt represents the amount of future
debt requirements over the maturity dates listed below for each debt issue.

The City has pledged the amount of the future debt service requirements on the issues or 100% of the
revenues generated by the Water Fund, Wastewater Fund, Parking Lot Fund and Airport Fund
whichever is greater, or specific revenues based on debt documents for the retirement of the debt issues
associated with those funds as indicated below. Below is a comparison, by Fund, of principal and
interest payments and total pledged revenues for the current year.

Water Wastcwater Parking Lot Airport

Fund ~ Fund Fund Fund
CY Principal and Interest 2,319,712 $1,364,733 $198,623 31,354,383
Pledged Revenue $4,006,008 $11,290,822 $798,171 31,608,276

As of December 31, 2013, the long-term debt payable from proprietary fund resources consisted of the
following: '

Revenue Bonds

$2,465,000 Parking Revenue Bond of 2008. Due in annual
installments of $85,000 to $345,000 through 2028. Interest at 3.5 to
5.7 percent, (This issue is being financed by pledged Parking Facility
revenue). Interest expense in 2013 was $113,623. $2,110,000

$5,540,000 Gross Receipt Revenue Bond of 2008, Due in annual
installiments of $215,000 to $400,000 through 2028. Interest at
2.15 10 4.55 percent. (This issue is being financed by the Civie
Center Fund.) Interest expense in 2013 was $798,800. 4,500,000

$1,330,000 Certificate of Participation (AMT), Series 2004, Due
in annual installments of $155,000 through 2014, Interest at 2,75
to 5.40 percent. (This issue is being serviced by the Airport
Enterprise Fund). Tnterest expense in 2013 was $12,439. 155,000

$45,100,000 Water Revenue Bonds of 2009. Interest only
payments are due in years 2012-2016. Due in annual installments
of $120,000 to $3,360,000 from 2017 through 2039. Interest at
4.0 to 5.25 percent. (This issue is being serviced by pledged
Water Enterprise Fund revenues.) Interest expense in 2013 was
$2,319,713 of which $2,119,084 was capitalized. 45,100,000

$5,000,000 Loan No. 6 from State Revolving Fund of 2011, Due -

in quarterly installments of $45,660 to 83,020 through 2031

Interest at 3.0 percent. (This issue is to be serviced by pledged

Wastewater Fund revenues).  Intercst expense in 2013 was

$142,821, 4,692,418

$4,210,000 Airport CFC Bonds of 2010, Due in annual
instaliments of $125,000 to $370,000 through 2030. Interest at
6.00 to 7.00 percent, (This issue is to be serviced by pledged
Airport Customer Facility Charge revenue). Interest expense in
2013 was $263,200. _ 3,840,000
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NOTE 7. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)
Business-Type Activities (Continued)

$10,605,000 Wastewater Refunding Bonds of 2011, Due in
annual installments of $775,000 to $1,865,000 through 2022,
Interest at 1.00 to 3.70 percent, {This issue is to be serviced by
pledged Wastewater Fund revenue). Interest expense in 2013 was
$264,271,

$11,675,000 Airport PFC Bonds of 2011, Due in annual
instaltments of $587,700 to $900,000 through 2035. [nterest at
2.00 to 5.50 percent. (This issue is to be serviced by pledged
Alrport Passenger Facility Charge revenue). Interest expense in
2013 was $691,183.

$6,000,000 Drinking Water Loan SRF 2 of 2009, Due in
quarterly installments of $25,102 to $42,989 of through 2031
Interest at 3.0 percent. (This issue is to being serviced by pledged
Water Enterprise Fund revenues). Interest expense in 2013 was
$102,510.

Less unamortized discounts on bonds

Compensated Absences:
Accrued Leave payable from Water Fund
Accrued Leave payable from Wastewater Fund
Accrued Leave payable from Solid Waste Fund
Accrued Leave payable from Atrport Fund
Accrued Leave payable from Civie Center Fund
Accrued Leave payable from Non-major Enterprise Funds

Financing (Capital Acquisition) Leases

$2,079,960 under an agreement with Wells Fargo Brokerage Services,
LLC, dated December 14, 2009 for the purchase of 10 new Sotid
Waste Collection trucks, which are security for the Lease. Due in
annual installments of $343,092, including interest at 3.73 percent.
The final payment is due December 14, 2016. The lease is serviced
by the Solid Waste Collection Fund. Interest expense in 2013 was
$46,750.

$113,522 under an agreement with Pioneer Bank, dated August 19,
2010 for a cart barn at Meadowbrook Golf Course which is security
for the Lease. Due in monthly instalhments of $1,593.67, including
interest at 4.75 percent with a balloon payment after 5 vears. The
final payment is due October, 1, 2015, The lease is serviced by the
Golf Course Fund. Interest expense in 2013 was §3,580.

$297,585 under an agreement with Pioneer Bank dated December 3,
2010 for the refinancing of the POS system, which is security for the
Lease. Due in 48 installments of $6,785.97, including interest of 4.50
percent, The final payment is due December 3, 2014. The lease is
serviced by the Civic Center Fund, Interest expense in 2013 was
$4,4006,

48

8,690,000

11,130,000

4,400,463

(644,967)

$83,972,914

186,877
97,878
48,776
89,676

185,563

270,053

$878,823

957,011

$66,900

51,073

$1,074,984
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NOTE 7. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Business- Type Activities (Continued

The principal amount, above, was included in the appropriate classification of capital assets, and is being
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset, or the lease term (where title never
transfers), as appropriate.

Total cost and accumulated depreciation for all capital leases utilized by business-type activitics is as

follows:

Gross amount of ussets recorded under capital leases — buildings
Gross amount of assets recorded under capital leases — equipment
Accumulated depreciation ~ Solid Waste
Accumulated depreciation - Golf
Accumulated depreciation - Civic Center
Nat assets recorded under capital leases

Accrued Landfill Closure (Note 17)

Other Post Employment Benefit Liabilities (Note 12)

Total Liabilities Payable

$113,522
2,601,048
(838,860)

(35,210)

—{147.453)

$1,693,465

1,875,000

986,002

$88,787,723

The annual requirements for matarity for business-type activities long-term debt (excluding
compensated absences, other post-employment benefits and accrued landfill closure) outstanding as of
December 31, 2013, are as follows:

TOTAL BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES

Year Ending

General Debl Obligations

Capital Lease Obligations

December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2014 2,050,424 4,083,960 374,767 39,282
2018 1,952,170 4,024,799 369,462 25,981
2016 2,009,273 3,962,983 330,755 12,337
2017 2,179,883 3,895,470 - -
2018 2,402,731 3,816,249

2019-2023 18,310,439 17,099,388 -
2024-2028 18,317,887 12,788,129 - -
2029-2033 17,354,939 8,052,895 - -
2034-2038 16,070,710 3,422,038 - -
2039-2043 3,324,458 176,400 - -

TOTALS

83,972,914

61,322,311 1,074,984

77,600

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2013:

Leases

Accrued Landfil)
Closure (Note 17)
Revenue Bonds

Other Post-
Employment Benefits
Compensated Absence
Total

Liabilities Liabilities
Payable Payable Due Within
1/1/2013 Issued Retired 12/31/2013 One Year
$1,626.357 50 ($551,373) $1,074,984 $374,767
1,429,393 445,607 1,875,000 -0~
85,376,108 1,988,705 (3,391,899) 83,972,914 2.050,424
754,086 231,916 986,002 360,989
861,988 960,000 (943,165) $78,823 51,500
$90,047,931  $3,626,228 (54,886,437) $88,787,723 $2,837,680
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NOTE 8. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Interfund receivable and payable balances at December 31, 2013 were:

Interfund Receivable Interfund Payable

General Fund; 1,096,855
Special Revenue Funds:
Consolidated Construction 315,210
Urtility Facilities Fund 3,553,736
TID 38 Fund $100,000
TID 39 Fund 1,020,810
TID 42 Fund 2,835,495
TID 56 Fund 1,098,293
Total Governmental Funds $4,965,801 $5,054,598
Enterprise Funds:
Water Fund $563,053 270,000
Wastewater Fund 183,000
Golf Course Fund 21,256
Civic Center Fund 199,252
Energy Plant Fund 199,252
Total Enterprise Funds $762,305 $673,508

The General Fund loaned monies to Tax Increment District 39 Fund for infrastructure improvements.
The current portion expected to be repaid to the General Fund is $32,016.

The General Fund loaned monies to Water Fund for infrastructure improvements, The current portion
expected to be repaid to the General Fund is $270,000.

The Consolidated Construction Fund loaned monies to Tax Increment District 38 and 39 Funds to
construct water mains. The current portion expected to be repaid fo the Consolidated Construction
Fund is $7,510.

The Consclidated Construction Fund Joaned monies to the Golf Fund for infrastructure improvement.
The current partion expected to be repaid is $10,407

The Utility Facilities Fund loaned monies to Tax Increment District 56 and 42 funds for the
construction of water and sewer infrastructure. The current portion expected to be repaid to the Utility
Facilities Fund is $382,750.

The Utility Facilities fund loaned monies to the Wastewater Fund for the construction of sewer
infrastructure, The current portion expected to be repaid to the Utility Facilities Fund is $1 83,000.

The Civic Center Fund loaned monies to the Energy Plant Fund for short-term cash flow needs while
waiting for reimbursement from the Civic Center and the Rapid City Area School District. There is not
current porlion expected to be repaid,

The Water Fund loaned monies to Tax Increment District 42 Fund for the construction of waler
infrastructure. The current portion expected to be paid to the Water Fund is $190,762.
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NOTE 8. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (Continued)

Interfund transfers during the year ended December 31, 2013 were as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:

General Fund
Consolidated Construction
Utility Facilities
Water
Wastewater
Nonmajor Enterprise
Total General Fund

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL

FUNDS:

Vision Fund

Consolidated Construction Fund

General Fund

Jtilitly Facilities
Airport

Solid Waste
Non-major Enterprise

Total Consolidated Construction

Fund

Utility Facilities Fund
General Fund
Consolidated Construction
Water
Wastewater

Total Utility Facilities Fund

Total Governmental Funds

ENTERPRISE FUNDS:
Water Fund
General
Utility Facilities
Internal Service Fund
Total Water Fund

Wastewater Fund
General
Utility Facilities
Total Wastewater Fund

Transfers Transfers
In Out
$15,000 $500,000
20,864
84,919
52,963
31,795 890,503
205,541 1,390,503
845,072
500,000 15,000
1,660,000
150,000
67,054
115,055
2,377,054 130,055
20,864
1,660,000
2,109,542
4,060,335
7,850,74)
$2,582,595 $10,216.371
$84,919
$2,109,542
(0,541
2,120,083 84,919
52,963
4,060,335
4,060,335 52,963

51



CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (continued)

Transfers In

Transfers Out

Solid Waste Fund

General Fund 17,878
Consolidated Construction 67,054
Total Solid Waste Fund 84,932
Airport Fund

Consolidated Construction 150,000
Total Airport Fund 150,000
Nonmajor Enterprise

General Fund 890,503 13,917

Vision Fund 845,072

Consolidated Construction 115,055
Total Nonmajor Enterprise 1,850,630 12,917
Total Enterprise 8,031,048 236,731
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Water Fund 10,541
Total Internal Service Funds 10,541
TOTAL TRANSFERS $10,613,643 $10,613,643

Transfers are used when surplus resources are available in one fund, and are needed in another fund to
support essential functions of government, when the governing body so authorizes.

NOTE 9. CONDUIT DEBT

In the past, the City has issued revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to cerlain private-sector
entities for the acquisition and/or construction of facilities deemed to be in the public interest. These
bonds are secured by the property being financed and are payable solely from payments received on the
underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facility is retained
by the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. Neither the City, the State of South Dakota,
nor any other political subdivision of the State is obligated in any manner for the repayment of these
conduit debt issues. Accordingly, these bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying
financial statements. As of December 31, 2013, there were 3 series of conduit bonds outstanding that
had been issued prior to August 1995, The aggregate unpaid principal amount payable for these bonds
could not be determined: however, their original issue amounts lotaled $24,800,000.



CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The City issued separate revenue bonds to finance the Parking Lot and Area Fund. Summary financial
information for the non-major enterprise fund is presented below. The Parking Lot and Arca
administers the downtown parking lots, parking meters, parking ramp and fines.

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - DECEMBER 31, 2013

Assets/Deferred Qutflows
Current Assets
Cupital Assets

$1,093,299
6,413,930

Total Assets/Deferred Qutflows

$7,507,229

Liabilities/Deferred Inflows
Other Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities

$111,972
2,020,000

Total Liabilities/Deferred Inflows

$2,131,972

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted - Revenue Bond Retirement
Unrestricted

$4,303,930
204,978
866,349

Total Net Position

$5,375,257

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Operating Revenue
Depreciation Expense
Other Operating Expenses
Operating Income
Investiment Loss
Interest Expense
Income Before Transfers
Transfers
Changes in Net Position
Beginning Net Position — Restated (Note 18)
Ending Net Position

CONDENSDED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
2013

Nel Cash Provided (used) by:
QOperating, Activities

Noncapital Finance Activities
Capital and Related Financing Activities
[nvesting Activities
Net Increase
Beginning Cash and Equivalents
Ending Cash and Equivalents

$798,171
(88,704)
(458,402)
251,065
(6,257)
(115,728)
129,080
(6,829)
122,251
5,253,005
$5,375,257

POR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

$282,763

(6,829)
(223,710)
(7,643)
59,868
433,657
$493,525




CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11, RETIREMENT PLAN

All employees, except for part-time employees, participate in the South Dakota Retirement System
(SDRS), a cosl-sharing, multiple employer public employee retirement system established to provide
retirement benefits for employees of the State of South Dakota and its political subdivisions. The SDRS
provides retirement, disability and survivor benefits. The right to receive retirement benefits vests after
three years of credited service. Authority for establishing, administering and amending plan provisions
are found in South Dakota Codified Law 3-12,

The SDRS issues a publicly available financial veport that includes financial staterments and required
supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing fo the SDRS, P.O. Box 1098,
Pierre, SD 575011098 or by calling (605) 773-3731.

General employees are required by state statute to contribute 6 percent of their salary to the plan, while
public safety and judicial employees contribute at 8 percent and 9 percent, respectively. State statute
also requires the employer lo contribute an amount equal to the employee’s contribution. State statute
also requires the employer to make additional contributions in the amount of 6.2 percent for any
compensation exceeding the maximum taxable amount for the social security for general employees
only, The City’s share of contributions to the SDRS for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011 are $2,426,938, $2,355,192 and $2,286,13 1 respectively, equal to the required contributions
cach year.

NOTE 12, OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN
Pian Description:

An employee hired after 1982 who retires from the City after having met the rule of 75 (Public Safety
employees) or 85 (all other municipal employees) may be eligible for health insurance for the retiree
and his/her spouse and eligible children through the City of Rapid City Healthcare Benefit Plan, which
is a single-cmployer plan established under SDCL 9-14-35 and 6-1-16. Coverage ceases when the
retirce attains the age of 65, The retiree is vesponsible for 100% of the full active premium rates for
either single or family coverage.

An employee hired prior to 1982 who retires from the City after having met the rule of 75 (Public
Safety employee) or 85 (all other municipal employees) may be eligible for health insurance with the
City paying 100% of the full active premium rates for the retiree only, until the retirec attains the age of
65. The retiree is responsible for 100% of the full active premium rates for his/her spouse and eligible
children.

The health plan is a self-insured PPO providing benefits to eligible participants. Currently, there are
667 active participants and 141 retirees who are participating in the plan. The health plan does not issue
separately stated stand-alone financial statements,

For fiscal year 2013, the City’s annual OPEB cost for the retiree health insurance was $1,610,181, The
City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEDB costs contributed, and the net OPED
obligation for the year ended December 31, 2013, were as follows:

ARC . 5 1,615,675
jnterest on Net OPER 88,464
Adjustment to ARC (93,958)
Annual OPER Cost 1,610,181
Contributions Made (1,161,000)
Change in net OPEB obligation 449,181
Net OPERB obligation-beg of year 2,721,968
Net OPEB obligation-end of year $ 3,171,149
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NOTE 12. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN (Continued)

Net Ending

Year Anoual OPEB  Actual Employer Percentage OPEB
Ended Cost Contributions Contributed Obligation
1273172010 $1,265,479 $877,553 69.35% $1,986,296
12/3172011 $1,307,896 $971,637 74.29% $2,322,556
12/3172012 $1,569,412 $1,170,000 74.55% $2,721,968
12/31/2013  $1,610,18] $1,161,000 72.10% $3,171,149

The funded status of the benefit based on an actuarial update using age-adjusted premiums as of January 1, 2013,
was as follows:
Actuarial Present Value of Future Benefits..................

Actuarial Accrued Liability........oocooinninnn
Actuarial Value of Benefit Asseis,, ..o
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability..............o
Funded Ratio. oo e

Covered Payroll.......ooivvi i

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability as a percentage
Of Covered Payroll. ... 52.2%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far info the future. Actuarialty determined amounts are subject to
continuous revision as actual resulls are compared to past expectations and new estimates about the future are
formulated. Although the valuation results are based on values which the City’s actuarial consultant believes are
reasonable assumptions, the valuation results reflect a long-term prospective and, as such, are merely an estimate
of what future costs may actually be. Deviations in any of several factors, such ag future iterest rates, medical
cost inflation, Medicare coverage, and changes in marital status, could result in actual costs being less or greater
than estimated.

The schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the
financial statements, will present multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of benefit
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

The City's agreement with retired employees is for single or family health insurance coverage and the retiree is
responsible for 100% of the active preminm rates unless the retiree was employed with the City prior to 1982, 1f
the retiree was employed with the City prior to 1982, the City pays 100% of the active premium rates for the
retiree only. For fiscal year 2013, the monthly rates were $404 for single coverage; $808 for two-party; $1,236
for family (up to 4); $1,360 for family (5+). The contribution requirements of the covered retirees are
established and may be amended by the City Couneil,

The City charges employees and retirees an equal, blended premium rate for single or family coverage.
Although both groups are charged the same rate, GAAP requires the actuarial amounts to be calculated using age
adjusted premiums that approximate costs for retirees separately from those for active employees, The use of
age adjusted premiums results in the inclusion of an implicit rate subsidy in the actuarial acerued liability.

The City’s contributions were financed on a pay as you go basis and the City does not contribute towards these
benefits based on a percentage of payroll.

The entry age normal actuarial cost method was used to determine the annual required contribution. The
actuarial value of assets is equal to the fair value of the assets. The actuarial assumptions included a 3.25%
investment rafe of return. Both the rate of return and the healthcare cost trend rate include an assumed inflation
rate of 3.25%. The health care cost trend rates are as follows:
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NOTE 12. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN (Continued)

Fiscal Year  Expense

Rate
2013 8.5%
2014 7.2%
2015 6.7%
2016 6.6%
2017 6.3%
2018 6.0%
2019 5.8%

2020-2030 5.7%
After 2031 4.7-6,7%

The unfunded accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar amount on an open basis over a period of 30

NOTE 13. DEFICIT FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION OF INDIVIDUAL NONMAJOR FUNDS:

As of December 31, 2013, the following individual nonmajor funds had deficit fund balance/net
position in the amounts shown: TID 56 ($1,020,385), TID 39 ($1,020,810), and TID 42 ($2,794,366),
all of which will be funded through property tax revenues received on the respective tax increment
district. In addition, there was a deficit fund balance in the Workers Compensation Fund of (§21,711)
which will be funded through charges to the various departments,

NOTE 14. VIOLATIONS OF FINANCE-RELATED LEGAL AND CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS:

The City is prohibited by statute from spending in excess of appropriated amounts at the department
level., The following represents the significant overdrafis of the expenditures compared to
appropriations as of December 31, 2013;

General Fund — Health and Welfare $32,311
General Fund — Culture and Recreation 13,080
General Fund - General Government 31,280
Vision Fund — Transfers Out 845,072
Consolidated Construction Fund — Capital Outlay 1,237,798
Consolidated Construction Fund — Transfers Out 115,055
TID 65 — Debt Service 223,444
TID 69 — Debt Service 247,700
TID 39 — Debt Service 14,845

To prevent overdrafts of future expenditures compared to appropriations, the City will evaluate its
budget compliance prior to year-end and make amendments as necessary.

NOTE 15, RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During the period ended
December 31, 2013, the City carried commercial insurance for.insurable risks of loss except for
worker’s compensation, liability insurance, employee health insurance, employee dental insurance, and
unemployment benefits. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial
insurance coverage in the past fiscal year, The City has established self-insurance internal service funds
to pay for medical, workers’ compensation, unemployment compensation and dental claims of City
employees and their covered dependents as well as the deductible portion of liability claims,
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NOTE 15, RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Payments to the self-insurance funds are actuarially determined and are to cover individual claims up to
$100,000 for health insurance, $750,000 for workers' compensation, and any administrative costs
relative o the processing of the claims. Maximum payments for dental isurance are $1,500 per
employee, and liability claims up to $100,000. The claims exceeding this amount are covered through
private insurance carriers (up to $5,000,000 per claim for liability claims). An estimated liability for
claims incurred but not paid is accrued based upon confirmation from the City’s third party
administrators for claims received within 60 days of year-end, and are reported as accounts payable.
The City is a reimbursable employer for purposes of unemployment insurance.

The City has a reserve equity deficit in the workers compensation fund of ($21,711) and rescrve equity
in the medical insurance fund of $7,818,403, in the unemployment insurance fund of $176,571, in the
liability insurance fund of $248,009 and in the dental insurance fund of $57,325 for the payment of such
future claims.

Changes in the apgregate liabilities of the self-insurance funds during 2012 were as Tollows:

Workers

Liability Dental Comp. Medical Unempl.

Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance [nsurance
Benefit Claims Payable at
January 1, 2012 $338,518 $6,842 $1,802,132 $524,795 $0.00
Claims Incurred:
Attributable to Insured
Events of the Current Year 465,663 172,470 920,321 6,648,188 49,112
Claims Paid:
Aftributable to Insured
Events of the Current and
Prior Years (305,137) (172,778) (1,082,252) (6,760,544) (49,112)
Benefit Claims Payable
December 31, 2012 $499.044 $6,534 $1,640,201 $412,439 $0.00

Changes in the aggregate liabilities of the self-insurance funds during 2013 were as follows:

Workers

Liability Dental Comp. Medical Unempl.

Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance
Benefit Claims Payable at
Beginning of Year $449,044 $6,534 $1,640,202 $412,439 $0
Claims Incurred:
Attributable to Insured
Events of the Current Year 211,202 185,981 304,135 6,974,991 52,143
Claims Paid:
Atiributable to Insured
Events of the Current and
Prior Years (382,019 (185,952) (468,534) (6,661,511 (37,580)
Benefit Claims Payable
At End of Year $278,227 $6,564 $1,475,803 $725,919 $14,563

As of December 31, 2013 the City was no longer self-insured for employee dental msurance but
providers have one year to submit outstanding claims for reimbursement.
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NOTE 16. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The City has been named as defendant in several lawsuits that have been referred to the City’s
insurance carriers. The City and its attorneys believe that any liability 1o the City would not be material,
and that loss, if any, could be covered by insurance or would be substantially covered by the City’s
reserve for uninsured claims. The deductible is $100,000 for genera) and auto liability and professional
liability, and $50,000 for building and property damage.

NOTE 17. LANDFILL

State and Federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on its landfill site when it
stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty
years after closure. Although closure and postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date
that the landfill stops accepting waste, the City reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care
costs us an operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet
date. The $1,875,000 reported as landfill closure and postclosure care liability at December 31, 2013
represents the cumulative amount reported Lo date based on 35% percent of the estimated capacity of
the landfill. The City will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure care of
$2.93 million as the remaining estimated capacity is filled. These amounts are based on what it would
cost to perform all closure and postelosure care in 2013, The City expects to close the landfill in the
year 2034, The City does not record a remediation liability as management feels insurance coverage Is
adequate.

However, the recycling plant, in addition to our yard waste and proposed composting facility, could
extend the life an additional 35 years. Actual costs may be higher ov lower due fo inflation, changes in
technology, or changes in regulations.

The City is required by state and federal laws and regulations to make annual centributions to finance
closure and postclosure care. The City is in compliance with these requirements, and, at December 31,
2013, cash of $1,875,000 (Note 2) is held for these purposes, These contributions for the future closure
and post-closure care of the landfill will be used to retire the non-current liability for closure and post-
closure care reported on the enterprise balance sheet. The City expects that future inflation costs will be
paid from interest carnings on these annual contributions. However, if mterest earnings are inadequate
or additional postclosure care requirements are determined (due to changes in technology or applicable
laws or regulations, for example), these costs may need to be covered by charges to future landfill users.

NOTE 18. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE
For the year ending December 31, 2013, the City implemented GASB Statement #65, lfems Previously
Reported as Assets and Liabilities. The implementation of this pronouncement eliminated all deferred
bond issuance costs. Beginning net position for governmental and business-type activities in the
Statement of Activities was restated by $135,670 and 778,134, respectively.

NOTE 19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to year-end, the City council authorized the calling of the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series
2007A. The outstanding balance as of December 31, 2013 was $4,120,000

Subsequent to year-end, the City entered info a capital lease with Wells Fargo for the purchase of a dump
truck and street sweeper,  The total lease amount is $371,814 with an interest rate of 3.09% for five years.
This will be financed through the General Fund. -
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NOTE 19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

Subsequent to year-end, the City entered into a capital lcase with Wells Fargo for the purchase of ambulances
and chest compression system, The total lease amount is $460,000 with an interest rate of 3.04% for 45
months. This will be finances through the Ambulance Enterprise Fund.

Subsequent 1o year-end, the City signed a promissory note with Pioneer Bank & Trust for the purchase
of new financial software package and consulting contract.  The total loan amount is $1,680,170 with
an interest rate of 3.0% for five years. The loan will be financed through those programs/departments
utilizing the new financial software,
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Revenues;
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes
313 General Sales and Use Taxes
314 Gross Receipts Business Taxes
320 Licenses and Permits
330 Intergovernmental Revenue:
331 Federal Grants
334 State Granis
335 State Shared Revenue:
335,01 Bank Franchise Tax
335.03 Liquor Tax Reversion
335.04 Motor Vehicle Licenses (5%)
335.06 Fire Insurance Reversion
335.08 Local Government Highway
and Bridge Fund
338 County Shared Revenue:
338.01 County Road Tax (25%)
340 Charges for Goods and Services:
341 General Government :
342 Public Safety
343 Public Works
345 Health & Welfare
346 Culture and Recreation
350 Fines and Forfeits:
351 Court Fines and Costs
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:!
361 Interest Earnings
362 Rentals
363 Special Assessments
369 Other
Total Revenue

Expenditures;
410 General Government:
411 Contingency
Transferred
412 Executive-Mayor & Council
414 Financial - Community Resources
414 Financial - Finance
414 Financial - Aftorney
414 Financial - COMPASS
419 Other - Government Bldgs
420 Public Safety:
421 Police
422 Fire
429 Other Protection-Code Enforcement
429 Other Protection-Comm Dev - Nongrant
430 Other Protection-Re-entry Program
429 Other Protection-Emergency Mgt
430 Public Works:
431 Highways and Streets
43x Administration
440 Health and Welfare:
44] Health
444 Humane Society
449 Other - Public Transit

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL
BUDGET BUDGET (Budgetary Basis) VARIANCE
14,249,649 § 14,249,649 14,253,529 3,880
22,142,618 22,142,618 23,091,269 948,651
670,000 670,000 674,281 4,281
2,038,000 2,038,000 2,334,561 296,561
1,513,089 1,571,398 4,286,847 2,715,449
110,497 110,497 183,597 73,100
100,000 100,000 116,558 16,558
300,000 300,000 417,004 117,004
25,000 25,000 49,959 24,959
180,000 180,000 189,050 9,050
500,000 500,000 699,125 199,125
300,000 300,000 389,142 89,142
167,500 167,500 474,483 306,983
485,951 485,951 672,458 186,507
45,000 45,000 110,085 65,085
400,000 400,000 417,556 17,556
1,271,655 1,678,797 1,564,580 (114,217)
20,000 20,000 7,487 (12,513)
282,000 282,000 (15,588) (297,588)
10,000 10,000 156,876 146,876
25,000 25,000 - (25,000)
315,000 681,835 235,006 (446,829)
45,150,959 45,983,245 50,307,865 4,324,620
150,000.00 150,000 - 150,000.00
- {80,109) - (80,109,00)
463,064 527,746 471,346 56,400
994,628 1,021,099 959,664 61,435
754,408 762,113 647,469 114,644
145,178 170,127 201,407 (31,280)
198,000 198,785 166,199 32,586
827,779 928,279 854,791 73,488
11,729,799 11,788,365 11,510,771 277,594
9,299,498 9,539,539 9,378,878 160,661
167,671 168,282 154,173 14,109
50,751 50,823 49,177 1,645
82,071 82,250 58,997 23,253
91,606 3,091,606 2,799,337 292,269
5,322,488 5,455,333 5,409,516 45,817
590,679 639,594 473,713 165,881
442,000 442,000 410,774 31,226
278,318 278,318 278,318 -
1,861,274 1,931,202 1,963,513 (32,311)
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449 Other - Air Quality
450 Culture and Recreation:
451 Recreation
451 Swimming Pools
451 lce Arena
452 Parks
455 Libraries
457 Historic Preservation
459 Other - Parks & Recreation Admin
459 Other - Subsidies
460 Conservation and Development!
465 Economic Development
465 Community Development
465 Transportation Planning
465 GIS Information System
470 Debt Service
485 Capital Outlay
490 Miscellaneous:
492 Other Expenditures
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
391.01 Transfers In
511  Transfers Out
391.03 Sale of Municipal Property
391,27 Capital Leases

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

57,498 59,810 50,035 9,776
299,726 303,423 303,369 54
1,440,360 1,442,610 1,428,265 14,345
566,213 566,737 579,817 (13,080)
2,355,728 2,539,326 2,226,303 313,023
2,684,408 3,131,402 2,978,671 152,731
24,410 44,372 17,939 26,433
594,759 603,055 578,046 25,009
200,000 200,000 200,000 -
358,000 386,250 364,250 22,000
1,554,013 1,658,451 1,492,037 166,414
426,516 833,677 416,889 416,788
137,174 122,045 118,096 3,949
483,047 483,047 121,552 361,495
1,170,437 4,447,073 4,164,601 282,472
30,000.00 30,000 9,769 20,231
45,831,501 53,996,630 50,837,684 3,158,946
(680,542) (8,013,385) (529,818) 7,483,567
169,677 255,541 205,541 -
(550,000) (1,390,503) (1,390,503) -
- - 71,258 71,258
- 306,700 719,718 413,018
(380,323) (828,262) (393,986) 434,276
(1,060,865) (8,841,647) (923,804) 7,917,843
21,750,490 21,750,490 21,750,490 -
$20,689,625 $12,008,843 $20,826,686 7,917,843

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
VISION FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL

BUDGET BUDGET (Budgetary Basis)  VARIANCE
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

313 General Sales and Use Taxes $ 10,080,237 § 10,180,237 § 11,545,659 1,365,422
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Interest Eamings - - (173,472) (173,472)
Total Revenue 10,080,237 10,180,237 11,372,187 1191950
Expenditures:

430 Public Works:

43x Administration 276,924 835,236 344,571 490,665
460 Conservation & Development -

465 Economic Development 600,000 600,000 525,762 74,238
470 Debt Service 4279313 5479313 4,276,792 1,202,521
485 Capital Outlay 4,924,000 7,612,415 3,479,637 4,132,778
Total Expenditures 10,080,237 14,526,964 8,626,762 5,900,202
Excess of Revenue Qver (Under)

Expenditures - (4,346,727) 2,745,425 7,092,152
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

511 Transfers Ou - - (845,072) (845,072)
Tota! Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - (845,072) (845,072)
Net Change in Fund Balances - (4,346,727) 1,900,353 6,247,080
Fund Balance - Beginning 13,977,086 13,977.086 13,977,086 -
FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 13,977,086 § 9,630,359 § 15877439 6,247,080

The notes to the required supplementary information ave an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CONSOLIDATED CONSTRUCTION FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL
BUDGET BUDGET (Budgetary Basis) VARIANCE
Revenues:
310 Taxes:
313 General Sales and Use Taxes $ 10,946,309 $ 10,946,309 § 11,545,659 599,350
330 Infergovernmental Revenue:
331 Federal Grants - - 9,544 9,544
334 State Grants - 664,181 - (664,181)
340 Charges for Goods and Services: - -
341 General Government - . - -
343 Public Works - - - .
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Interest Earnings ) - - (18,630) (18,630)
367 Contributions and Donations - - - -
369 Other - 163,057 15,281 (147,776)
Total Revenue 10,946,309 11,773,547 11,551,854 (221,693)
Expenditures:
410 General Government;
414 Financial - Community Resources 90,000 90,000 50,000 -
419 Other - Government Blidgs 129,156 129,156 129,156 -
430 Public Works:
431 Highways & Sireets - - - -
43x Administration 968,232 968,232 968,232 -
450 Culture & Recreations
452 Parks - - - -
459 Other - Parks & Rec Administration 147,552 147,552 108,172 39,380
470 Debi Service 378,323 938,523 920,674 17,849
485 Capital Outlay 10,663,737 14,606,532 15,844,330 (1,237,798)
490 Misccllancous
492 Other Expenditures 16,976 16,976 14,496 2,480
Total Expenditures 12,393,976 16,896,971 18,075,060 (1.178,089)
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures (1,447,667) (5,123,424) (6,523,206) (1,399,782)
Other Financing Sourees (Uses):
391.01 Transfers In 500,000 2,310,000 2,377,054 67,054
511 Transfers Out . (15,000) (130,055) (115,055)
391.27 Capital Leases (Note 7) - - 4,772,000 4,772,000
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 500,000 2,295,000 7,018,999 4,723,999
Net Change in Fund Balances (947,667) (2,828,424) 495,793 3,324,217
Fund Balance - Beginning 19,863,509 19,863,509 19,863,509 -
FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 18,915,842 17,035,084 § 20,359,302 3,324,218

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

UTILITY FACILITTES FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
313 General Sales and Use Taxes
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Interest Earnings
369 Other
Total Revenue

Expenditures:

431 Administration
470 Debt Service

490 Other Expenditures
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Lises):
S1U 0 Transfers Out
391.02 Long-term debt issued
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in 'und Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

ORIGINALL FINAL ACTUAL
RUDGET BUDGET (Budgetary Basis)  VARIANCE
$ 1,867,630 % 1,867,630 % 4,012,954 2,145,324
- - 100,993 100,993
1,867,630 1,867,630 4,113,947 2,246 317
1,862,630 8,182,630 7,918,545 264,085
5,000 5,000 1,650 3,350
1,867,630 8,187,630 7,920,195 267,433
- (6,320,000} (3.806,248) 2,513,752
- (7,850,741 (7,850,741) -
- 200,000 23,792,788 23,592,788
{7,650.741) 15,942,047 23,592,788
- (13,970,741 12,135,799 26,100,340
14,176,897 14,176,897 14,176,897
$ 14176897 § 206,156 § 26312696 26,106,540

‘I'he notes to the required supplementary information arc an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Note 1. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting:

The municipality follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial

statements:

I. At the first regular board meeting in September of each year or within ten days thereafier, the
governing board introduces the annual appropriation ordinance for the ensuing fiscal year,

2. After adoption by the governing board, the operation budget is legally binding and actual
expenditures for each purpose cannot exceed the amounts budgeted, except as indicated in
Number 4.

3. A line item for contingencies may be included in the annual budget. Such a line item may not
exceed five percent of the total municipal budget and may be transferred by resolution of the
governing board to any other budget category that is deemed insufficient during the year.

4, Tf it is determined during the year that sufficient amounts have not been budgeted, state statute
allows the adoption of supplemental budgets.

S, Unexpended appropriations lapse at year end.

6. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the
General Fund and special revenue funds,

7. Budgets for the General Fund and special revenue funds are adopted on a basis consistent with

accounting principles generally accepied in the United States of America.



CITY OF RAPID CITY
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
FOR RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE COVERAGE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Schedule of Funding Progress for the Retiree Health Insurance Coverage

Actuarial Value Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAAL asa

Actuarial of Assels Liability {AAL) AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroli Covered Payroll

Date {n) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (¢) ({b-a)ie)
1273172009 § - $ 12,867,931 § 12,867,931 0.0% $ 32,525,263 39.6%
12/3172010 % - $ 14,813,015 § 14,813,015 0.0% 3 32,802,511 45.2%
1273172001 § - b 15,184,543 § 15,184,543 0.0% 3 32,354,565 46,9%
1273122012 % - $ 18,342,552 § 18,342,552 0.0% $ 33,436,443 54.9%
127312013 § - $ 18,669,804  $ 18,669.804 0,0% $ 35,742,638 52.2%
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INFORMATION



ASSETS:
Assels:
Y01 Cash and Cash Equivalents
102 Reswicted Cash
151 Investiments
V10 Property Tax Receivable
115 Accousts Receivabie, Net
121 Special Assessments Receivable--Current
123 Special Assessments Receivable--Deferred
132 Due from Other Government
135 Interest Receivable
TOTAL ASSETS ¢

CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND

BALANCES:
Liabilities:
201 Claims Payable
208 Due to Other Funds
209 Advanee from Other Funds
216 Wages Payabie
“Fotal Liabilities

Deterred Inflows of Resources:

245 Unavaiiabic Revenue -- Property Taxes

246 Unavailabie Revenue - Special Assessmonts
Total Deferred [nflows of Resources:

Furd Balances.
263 Nonspendable
.51 Perpetual Care Cemelery
264 Restricted for:
26401 Debt Service
264.03 Cemetery Perpetusl Care
2064.05 Library
264.09 Business Lnprovement District
264.97 Gram Bxpenduures
265 Comitied lo;
265.99 Frosion/Sediment Contro
267 Unassigned
Tota Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABHJTIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

AND FUND BALANCES:

Occupancy Downtown Erosion/
Tax BID Tax Sediment Contro} TID 67 TID 70 TID 68
Fund Fund Tund Fund Fund
$ 200998 % 173,350 § 46,028 § 453326 § 271,936 § 38,308
- . - 1,441} 5,056 -
79,519 - - -
624 - - - -
8,559 . - .
74 429 - 234 1 20
$ 280591 § 182,062 % 46,028 § 455,001 § 277,134 § 38,328
$ 270234 % - $ 599§ - $ - § .
1,156 - 2,436 - -
271,390 - 3,03s - - -
- 6,968 - . - .
. 6,968 - - - -
- - - 455,001 277,134 38,328
9,20] 175,994 - - -
. 42,993 - -
9,201 175,994 42,093 455,001 277,134 38,328
§ 280,391 % 182,962 § 46,028 § 455,001 % 277134 § 38,328
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ASSETS:
Assets:
101 Cash and Cash Equivalents
102 Restricied Cash
151 Investments
110 Property Tax Receivable
115 Aceounts Reeeivable, Net
{24 Special Assessments Receivable--Curient
123 Special Assessments Receivable--Datened
132 Due from Other Government
135 Interest Receivable
TOTAL ASSETS ¢

CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND

BALANCES:
Laabilities
201 Claiims Payable
208 Due to Other Funds
209 Advance froms Other Funds
216 Wages Payable
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:

245 Unavailabie Revenue - Property Taxes

246 Unavailable Revenue - Special Assessments
Total Deferved Inflows of Resourees:

Fund Balances:
263 Nonspendable
263.51 Perpetual Care Cemetery
204 Restricted For:
26401 Debt Servic
264.03 Cemetery Perpetual Care
264.05 Library
264.09 Business Improvement Distict
764,97 Grant Expenditures
265 Commilied to.
265.99 Erosion’Sediment Contro
267 Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

AND FUND BALANCES:

TID 65 TID 61 TID 63 TID 29 TID 56 TID 69 TID 54
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fuud
$ N6770 § 509458 - $ 2,225 53,162 8 139818 % 444
- . 2,069 24719 - 29,613
6u 263 - 1 27 72 .
$ 116830 3 509721 % 2,069 § 2,226 § 77908 $ 119890 § 306,055
$ $ - § - $ . - $ - S .
- - . 166,702 - -
. . B 231,591 - -
- - - - 1,098,293 -
. - B - - - 159
R . . . . - 159
116,830 509,721 2,069 2,276 - 139,850 29,896
. . . - (1,020,385) : -
116,830 509721 2.06% 2,220 1,020.385) 139,890 29,896
$ 116430 % 50972% % 2,060 § 2,226 § 77908 § 139,89¢  $ 10,055




CITY OF RAPID CITY
CONBINING BALANCE SHELRT
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31,2013

TID 44 TTD 50 TID 82 TID 7Y TID 53 TN 38 TID 3Y
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

ASSETS:

Assels:
101 Cash and Cash Equivalenis $ 80,859 §$ - $ 45 3 620 § - S 294,997 § .
102 Restricted Cush - - . . - - .
151 Invesunents . .
110 Property Tax Reccivable 115,691 9,846 - 601 588 25,743 R
115 Accounts Receivable, Net - - . .
121 Special Assessments Recaivable--Current . - - - . . R
123 Special Assessments Receivable--Defeired - - - - . - .
132 Due from Other Governmen! - - - - R - .
135 terest Receivable 42 - - - - 152 -

TOTAL ASSETS : $ 196,592 &% 9,846 % 45 3 1221 § 588 § 320,892 8 -

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND

BALANCES:

Liabiliues:
201 Claims Payable $ - S - S - $ - $ - 3 . -
208 Due te Other Funds - - - - - 100,000 39,527
209 Advance from Other Funds - - - - - - 981,283
216 Wages Payable - - . - - -

Toial Liabilities - - - - - 0,000 1,020,810

Peferrsd Inflows of Resowrges:
245 Unavailable Revenue -- Property ‘Faxes - - - - - 25,743
246 Unavailabie Revenue -+ Special Assessmenls - - - - - -

Total Deferred Inflows of Rusources: - - - -

25,743

Fund Balances:
263 Nonspendable
263.51 Perpelual Care Cemetery - - - -
264 Restricled tor
204.01 Debt Service 196,592 9,846 45 1,221 588 195,149
264.03 Cemeiery Perpetual Care - - - - . -
264.05 Library - - - - -
264.09 Business Improvement District - - -
264.97 Grant Expenditures - . - - -
265 Connitied to:
265.99 Frosion/Sediment Controt - - - - .
267 Unassigned - - - - - - (1,620,810)
Tatal Fund Ralances 196,592 9,846 45 1,221 548 195 149 (1,620,810}

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES: 3 196,592 § 9846 $ 15 3 1221 % 588 & 320,892

o
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

CITY OF RAPID CITY

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

ASSETS:
Assels:
101 Casb and Cash Equivalents
107 Restricted Cash
15! Investments
i 10 Property Tax Receivable
115 Acceunts Receivable, Net
121 Special Assessments Reeeivable--Current
123 Special Assessments Receivable--Deferved
132 Due from Other Government
135 Imeres{ Recetvabie
TOTAL ASSETS :

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND
BALANCIES:
Liabilities:
201 Claims Payable
208 Dug 10 Other Funds
209 Advanee from Other Funds
216 Wages Payable
Total Liabilities

Deferred inflaws ol Resources:

245 Unavailable Revenue -- Property Taxes

246 Unavailable Revenue - Special Assessinents
Towal Deferred Inllows of Resourcos:

Fund Balances:
263 Nonspendable
263.51 Perpetual Care Cametery
264 Restricted for:
264.01 Debt Service
264.03 Cometery Perpeiuat Care
264.05 Jilrary
264.09 Business Improvement Disirict
264.97 Grant Expenditures
265 Connmitied to:
265.99 Erosion/Seditient Control
267 Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES;

Community  Rehabllitation Cemetery Retired Senfor
TID 41 TID 42 Development  Loan/Grant Perpetual Yolunteer
Fund Fund Fund Fund Care Fund Fund
$ 75,875 § - s - $ - 3 14,220 § 25
- - 18,347 34,758 68,092
. . - - 48,248 -
4,394 44,129 - - -
. R - - 304 -
- - 12,149 . 124 2,265
40 - - -
3 80,309 $ 41,129 ¢ 30496 % 34,755 § 62,896 § 70,382
$ - $ - ¥ 16,391 3 - $ - 3 343
. 406,810 - - -
- 2428685 - - - -
. - . - 4,378
- 2,835,495 16,391 - 1,718
. - - - 50,000
8¢,309 - - . . .
. - . . 12,896 -
. - 14,108 34,755 . 65,664
- (2,794,366) - M . -
80,306 (2,794,366 14,105 34,755 62,896 65,604
3 80,309 § 41,120 ¢ 30496 § 34,755 % 62,896 3 70,382
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ASSETS:
Assels:
101 Cash and Cash Liguvalents
102 Restricted Cash
151 Invesiments
110 Property Tax Reeeivable
115 Accounts Receivable, Nel
21 Special Assessmenis Receivable--Current
Special Assessments Reccivable--Deferred
132 Due from Other Government
135 nterest Receivable
TOTAL ASSETS ;

CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND

BALANCES:
Liabdities:
201 Claims Payable
208 Due to Other Funds
209 Advance from Other Funds
216 Wages Payable
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:

245 Unavailable Revenue -- Property Taxes

246 Unavaitable Revenue -- Special Assessiments
Total Deferred Inflows of Resourees:

Fund Balances:
263 Nuonspendable
263.51 Perpetual Care Cemetery
264 Restricted for:
264.01 Bebt Service
264.03 Cemetery Perpetual Care
264.05 Librmy
264,09 Business mprovement District
264,97 Grant Expenditures
265 Committed to:
265.99 Erosion/Sediment Control
267 Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

AND FUND BALANCES:

Total
Library Nonmajor
Boarel Governenta)
Fund Funds

$ 758 2,473.239

5197 173,173

- 48,248

- 260,888

1,949 81,772

- )24

- 8,559

- 14,538

- 1,556

$ 54,703 3 3,062 597
b 6,523 % 294,090
. 713,039

- 4,341,560

1,237 9,204

7.760 5,357,893

- 25,902

- 0,908

- 32,870

50,000

. 2,054,843

- 12,896

46,943 46,943

- 185,195

- 114,524

- 42,993
- (4,835,561)
46,943 {2,328,166)

$ S4,703 § 3,062,597

71



CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Erasion/
Sediment Control
Fund

Downtown
BID
Fund

Occupancy
Tax
Fund

TID 66
Fund

TID 67
Fund

TID 68
Fund

TID 1
Fund

Revenues:
316 Taxes;
311 General Propenty Taxes
314 Gross 13uiress Receipts Tax
331 Federal Grants
340 Charges for Goods and Services:
348 Cemetery
345 Other-Conservation & Development
350 Fines and Foricitures
354 Library
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investment LZarnings
363 Spucial Assessments
367 Contributions and Donations
Total Revenue

Expenditures:

450 Culture and Recreation:
455 Libraries
459 Relired Senier Yolunteers
459 Cemetery

460 Conservalion and Development:
463 Commianity Development

470 Debt Service

485 Capital Outlay

492 Other Expenditures

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Qver (Under)
Expenditures
Other Financing Sourses {Uises):
511 Transfers Out
391.02 Long-lerm debt issued
391.03 Sate of Municipal Property
Total Qther Financing Sources {Uses)

Net Change it Fund Balances

Fund Bajance (Deficit) - Beginning

FUND BALANCE (Deficit)- ENDING

- ¥
1,464,509

2,000

- 41,175

978 -
178,027 -

197,039 %

3.806

46,991

b3

44,176

1,466.509

179,003 41,175

200,845

44,534

1,468,366

4,345 -

32,690

1. 468,366

4,345

32,690

(1,857}

174,660

200,845

49,751

11.844

(1.857)

11,058

174,666 (10,5503

53.543

{491

491

200,845

254,156

49,751

227,383

11,844

20484

ki

9,201 %

42,993

$

455,000 §

277,134

18,328
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013

T 65 TID 62 TID 61 TID 63 T 29 TID 56 T 69
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Propeny Tuxes 3 147,772 % - $ 366,428 § 236,264 § - 3 1,341,783 § 280,406

314 Gross Buiness Receipts Tax - - - - . - .
331 Federal Grants - - - - . R .
34( Charges for Goods and Services:

348 Cemelery - . R . .

349 Other-Conservation & Devclopinent - - - - - .
350 Fines and Forfeitures

354 Library - . - . - - .
360 Miscelancous Revenuc:

361 Investment Earnings 964 233 3,380 - 25 691 2164

363 Special Assessiments - - - . - - .

367 Contributions and Donations - - - - . - .
‘Total Revenue 148,736 233 369,808 236,204 25 1,342 474 282,570
Expenditures:
450 Culture and Reereation:

455 lLibraries . - - - - - -

459 Retired Senior Yolunteers - - - - - - -

459 Cemetery - - - - - - -
460 Conservation and Development:

463 Community Develapment - . - - - - -
470 Debt Service 372,023 459,897 - 234,578 - 1,176,734 980,804
488 Capital Outlay - - - - - 16,225 2.278.693
492 Other Lxpenditiires - - ~ - - -

Total Expenditures 372,023 459,897 234,878 - 1,195,959 3,259,497
Excess of Revenue Over (Lnder)
Expenditures (223,287) (459,664) 369,808 1,686 25 140,518 (2.976,927)
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
511 Transfers Out - - - - - - -
391.02 Long-tenm deb! issued 287.054 - - - - - 2,812,389
391.03 Sale of Municipal Property - - - - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Usces) 287,054 - - - - - 2,812,389
Net Change in Fund Balances 63,767 (459,664) 369,808 1,686 25 146,515 (164,538}
fund Balance (Deficit) - Beginning $3,063 459,604 139,913 383 2,201 (1,166,900) 304,428
FUND BALANCE (Deficit)- ENDING 3 116,830 § - 1) 509,721 § 2,069 § 2226 % (1,020,385) § 139,890
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013

TID 54
Fund

T 44
Fund

TIiD 50
Fund

TID 82
IFund

TID 71
Fund Fund

TID 83

TID 47

Fund

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Propenty Taxes %
314 Gross Buiness Receipts Tax
331 Federal Grants
340 Charges for Goods and Services:
348 Cemelory
349 Other-Conservation & Development
350 Fines and Forfeitures
354 Library
360 Miscellancous Revenue:
361 Investment Earnings
363 Special Assessments
367 Contributions and Donations

368472 8

882314 3§

93

252,196 §

1,218 %

107,334 §

107,648

Total Revenue

368,477

882,407

252,196

1,221 107,334

107,648

Expenditures:

450 Culture and Recreation:
4535 Libraries
459 Retired Senior Volunteers
459 Cemetery

460 Conservation and Development:
463 Community Development

470 Debt Service

485 Capital Outlay

492 Other Expenditures

363.810

413,154

- 106,746

264,373

Total Expenditures

363,810

413,154

- 106,746

264,373

Excess of Revenue Over (Uinder)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
511 Transfers Out
391.02 Long-term debl issued
391.03 Salc of Municipal Property

4,667

{160,958)

164,082

1,221 588

(156,725)

154,696

Total Other Financing Sources {(Lises)

164,082

154,696

Nel Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance {Deficity - Beginning

43,468

3,124

6,722

(2,029)

2,029

FUND BALANCE (Deficit)- ENDING b

196,592 §

9,846 $

4s

%
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CITY OF RAPLD CITY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Community Rehab
TID 38 TID 39 TID 40 TID 41 TID 42 Development  Loan/Grant
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes 3 428,675 § 78,136 § 80,188 $ 1,056,056 § 393,209 § - $
314 Gross Buiness Receipts Tax - - . . .
331 Federal Grants - - - - 324,679 -
340 Charges for Goods and Services:
348 Cemetery - - - - - . .
349 Other-Conservation & Development - . - - - 48,799 (69,743
350 Fines and Forfeitures
354 Library - . - . _ B
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investment Barnings 2,969 - - 133 - -
363 Special Assessments - - - . - .
367 Contributions and Donations -

Total Revenue 431,644 78,136 80,188 1,050,189 393,209 372,878 69,743

Expendifures:
450 Cuiture and Recreation:

455 Libraries - - - - - -

459 Retired Senior Volunieers - - - - - -

459 Cemetery - ' - - - - -
460 Conservation and Development:

463 Community Deveiopmen? . . - - 373,773 80,642
470 Debt Service 385.676 92,981 80,188 975,163 175,076 - -
485 Capital Outiay - . - .
492 Other Expenditures - - - - -
Total Expendilures 385,676 92,981 $0,188 975,163 175,676 313,713 80,642

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Lixpenditures 45,968 (14,845} - 75,026 218,133 (895) (10.899)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
SUE Transfers Qur - - - - -
391.02 Long-term debt issued - . - - -
391.03 Sale of Municipal Property - - - - - 15,000 -
Total Other Financing Sources ({ises) - - - - - 15,060

Net Change in Fund Balances 45,968 (14,845) - 75,026 218,133 14,105 (10,899)

Fund Balance (Deficit) - Beginning 149,181 (1,005,965) - 3,283 (3,012,499) - 45,654

FUND BALANCE (Deticit)- ENDING $ 195,149 § (1,020810) § - $ 80309 § (2,794,366) § 14,105 % 34,755
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CITY QF RAPID CITY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013

Total
Cemetery Retired Senior Library Nonmajor
Perpetual Volunteer Board Goveramental
Care Fund Fond Fund Funds
Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes 3 . $ - $ - $ 6,439,297
314 Gross Buiness Reeeipts Tax . - - 1,464,509
331 Federal Grants - 47,865 - 371,944
340 Charges for Goods and Szrvices:
348 Cemetery 2,826 - - 2,820
349 Other-Conscrvatien & Development - - - 159717
350 Fines and Forfeitures
354 Library - - 95,890 95,890
360 Miscellancous Revenue:
361 Investmeny Eamings - - 244 20,811
363 Special Assessmients - - . 178,027
367 Contributions and Donations - 74,574 - 74,574
Total Revenue 2,826 122,439 96,134 8,807,595
Expenditures:
45G Culture and Recreation:

455 Librarics . - 99,118 99,118

459 Retired Sentor Volunteers . 98,304 - 98,304

459 Cemetery 349 - - 349
460 Conservation and Development:

463 Community Development . - - 506,140
470 Debt Service - - - 6,872,664
485 Capital Quflay - - - 2,29791¢
492 Other Expenditures - - - 1A7271
Total Expenditures 349 98,304 99,118 11.347,204

Fixcess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures 2477 24,135 (2,984) (2.539.609)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
51 Transiers Out - - - -
391.92 Long-werm debt issued B B - 3,418,221

391.03 Saic of Municipal Property - - - 15,600
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) - - - 3,433,221
Net Change in Fund Balances 2,477 24,133 (2,984) 893,612
Fund Balance {(Deficit) - Beginning 60,419 41,529 49,927 (3,221,778}

FUND BALANCE (Deficit)- ENDING $ 62,896 § 65,664 3 46,943 & (2,328,160)
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ASSETS;

Current Assels:
101 Cash and Cash Lquivalents
106 Cash with Fiscal Agent
102 Restricted Cash
151 [nvestments
115 Accounts Receivable
116 Estimated Uncollectable Accounts Receivable
117 Unbilled Accounts Recgivable
110 Sales Tax Receivadble
131 Due from Other Funds
132 Due from Other Governments
135 Interest Receivable
142 Inventory of Stores

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

157 Unamortized Discount
Capital Assets:
160 Tand
162 Buildings
164 improvements Other than Bldg
164 Fumiture & Equipment
166 Machinery and Equipment
168 Construction Work in Progress
Less: Accumuylated Depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
202 Accounts Payable
208 Due 1o Other Funds
215 Accrued Inierest Payable
216 Wages Payable
226 OPEB Currens Obligalions
226 Bonds Payable Current:
226 Capital Lease Payable Current
230 Compensated Absences Payable -- Current

.....

Noneurrent Liabilities:

209 Advance from Other Funds
231 OPEB Long-Term Obligations
231 Bonds Payable:

231 Capital Lease Payable
233 Accrued Leave Payable
Total Noncurrent Liahilities

NET POSITION:
253, 10 Net Investment in Capital Assets
253.20 Restricied Net Position, Restricted o
253.22 Revenue Bond Retirement
253.90 Unrestricied Net Position
Total Net Position
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUND

DECEMBER 31, 2013
Solid Waste Stormwater Executive Cemetery
Collection Enterprise Golf Caurse Euterprise
Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 2,953,692 % 840,503 § 8,376 § (84,264
- - - 22,703
280,823 - 230 2,571
(15,600) . - -
37,725 - - -
63,431 - - -
1,528 . 22 32
- - 2,652 -
3,322,199 840,503 11,280 (58,958)
138,430 - 596,357 24,151
- - 180,240 22,954
712,089 - 1,489,602 657,414
- - 77,409 115,966
3,427,225 - 6,449 133,913
(2,422,295) - (850,220 (580,970)
1,855,449 - 1,499,837 373,428
$ 5,177,648 § 840,503 § 151,117 § 314,470
$ 85,794 . 193 8,312
1,663 - - -
36,725 - 1,022 6,437
17,569 - 1,586 3,430
307,396 - - -
3,000 - - 1,000
452,147 - 2,801 19,179
30,420 - 2,746 5,939
649,613 - - -
48,650 . - 9,741
728,683 - 2,746 15,680
898,438 - 1,499,837 373,428
3,098,378 840,503 5,733 (93.817)
3,996,816 840,503 1,505,570 279,611
5 5,177,648 % 840,503 & LSLL1I7 § 314,470
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Golf Course Parking Lot Energy Plant Ambulance Transportation

Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Terminal
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals

$ 23,875 % 242,479 % 20,280 § 1,049,209 % 98,702 § 5,152,852
- 251,046 - - - 251,046

- 349,685 372,388
27,776 328,350 24,090 5,914,863 - 6,578,703
- (78,644) - (3,584,932) - (3,678,576}

- - - - - 37,725

- - - - - 63,431

- - 54,703 - - 54,703

20 383 - 393 48 2,426

- - - - - 2,652

51,671 1,093,299 99,073 3,379,533 98,750 8,837,350
8,889 - - - 8,889

1,424,242 2,212,499 - - 267,567 4,663,245
1,610,540 4,908,331 776,571 30,659 916,934 8,446,229
2,472,084 511,468 - - 1,679,939 7,522,537
507,348 - 96.499 218,527 - 1,015,748
174,983 16,025 20,5587 1,201,550 - 4,980,702
40,256 - 2,744,515 - - 2,784,771
(1,958,019) (1.243,222) (557,410 {1,142,508) (858,906) (9,613,550)
4,271,433 6,413,930 3,080,732 308,228 2,005,534 19,808,572

¥ 4,323,104 % 7.507.229 §  3,179.805 & 3,687,761 % 2,104,284 § 28,645,922

8,249 21314 12,040 95,612 7,908 239,422
10,407 - - - - 10,407

- 658 - - - 2,321
5,199 - 19,053 11,088 - 79,526
4,964 - 8,691 49,683 - 85,923

- 90,000 - - - 90,000
16,299 - - - - 323,695
1,000 - 2,000 3,000 - 10,000
46,118 111,972 41,786 159,383 7,908 841,294
10,849 - 199,252 - - 210,101
8,594 - 15,047 - 86,021 - 148,767

- 2,020,000 - - - 2,020,000
30,601 - - - - 700,216
14,069 - 73.647 113,946 - 260,053
84,113 2,020,000 287,946 199,967 - 3,339,137
4,204,533 4,303,930 3.080,732 308.228 2.005,534 16,674,661
- 204,978 - - . 204,978
(11,660) 866,349 (230.659) 3,020,183 90.842 7,585,852
4,192,873 5375,257 2.850,073 3,328,411 2,096,376 24,465,490

$ 4,323,104 § 7,507,229 § 3179805 & 3,087,761 % 2,104,284 % 28,645,922
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POS
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Solid Waste Stormwater Executive Cemetery
Collection Enterprise Golf Course Eunterprise
Fund Fund Fund Fund
Operating Revenue:

380 Charges for Goods and Services $ 2,632,141 § - by 175,527 8 107,711
Total Operating Revenue 2,632,141 - 175,527 107,711
Operating Txpenses:

410 Personal Services 869,254 - 93,550 174,27}

420 Other Current Expense 1,013,752 - 84,162 71,092

426.2 Materials (Cost of Goods Sold) - - 14,471 -

457 Depreciation . 334,636 - 34,847 24,644
Total Operating Expenses 2,217,642 - 227,029 270,007
Operating Income (Loss) 414,499 - (51,502) (162,296)
Nonoperaﬁng Revenue (Expense):

361 Investment Earnings (L.oss) 31,326 - 379 (1,976)

470 Inierest Expense and Fiscal Charges (46,235) - - -

(492)366 Gain (Loss) on Disposition of Capital Assets - - - -

369.01 Other Taxes 13,722 - - -

369.01 Sales Tax 174,814 - - 3,104

369.01 Other 592 - - -
Tatal Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) 174,219 - 379 1,128
Income (LLoss) Before Transfers 588,718 - (51,123) (161,168)

391.1  Transfers In - 840,503 - 25,000

511 Transfers Out - - -
Net Transfers - 840,503 - 25,000
Change in Net Position 588,718 840,503 (51,123) {136,168)
Net Position - Beginning 3,408,098 - 1,556,693 415,779
Change in Accounting Principle - - - :
Net Position - Restated 3,408,098 - 1,556,693 415,779
NET POSITION - ENDING $ 3,996,816 § 840,503 & 1,505,570 § 279,611
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ITION

Enterprise Funds

Golf Course Parking Lot Energy Plant Ambulance Transportation
Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Terminal
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
3 1,011,078 § 798171 & 310,995 § 3,627,085 § 12,908 § 8,675,616
1,011,078 798,171 310,995 3,627,085 12,908 8,675,616
327,206 - 407,862 2,446,713 - 4,318,856
592,605 458,401 179,967 622,522 79,591 3,102,092
- - - - - 14,471
145,058 88,704 15,714 213,428 167,039 1,024,069
1,064,869 547,105 603,543 3,282,663 246,630 8,459,488
(53,791) 251,066 (292,548) 344,422 (233,722) 216,128
742 (6,257) - 15,089 1,373 40,676
(6,923) (115,728) - (63,216) (232,102)
(1,321) - - - (1,321
- - - - 13,722
- - - . - 177,918
- - 292,201 - 292,793
(7,502) (121,985) 292,201 (48,127) 1,373 291,686
(61,293) 129,081 (347) 296,295 (232,349 507,814
115,055 - 845,072 - 25,000 1,850,630
(7,088) (6,829) - - - (13,917)
107,967 {6,829) 845,072 - 235,000 1,836,713
46,674 122,252 844,725 296,295 (207,349) 2,344,527
4,146,199 5,290,254 2,005,348 3.032,116 2,303,725 22,158,212
- 37,249) - - - (37,249)
4,146,199 5,253,005 2,005,348 3,032,116 2,303,725 22,120,963
$ 4,192,873  § 5,375,257 8§ 2,850,073 $ 3,328,411 § 2,096,376 § 24,465,490
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Enterprise Funds

Solid Waste Stormwaler Executive
Collection Enterprise Golf Course
Fund Fund Fumd

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES;

Reeeipt from Customers 3 2,554,189 § - $ 184,715

Payments to Suppliers (973,725) - (101,299)

Payments to Employees (865,7935) - (96,494)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 714,669 - (13,078)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Internal Activity - Payment 1o Other Funds - .

Transfers In - 840,503 -

Transiers Qut - - -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Subsidies and Trunsfers - 840,503 -

CASH FILOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Capital Assets -
Principal Paid on Capital Debt (296,343) - -

Interest Paid on Capital Debt (46,235) - N

Other Receipts (Payments) 189,128 - -
Net Cash (Used) by capital and related financing Activities (153,450) - -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest Earnings (Loss) 31,325 - 379
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activitics 31,323 - 379
Net Tacrease (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 592,544 840,503 (12,699)
Balances - Beginning 2,361,148 - 21,075
Balances- Ending § 2,953,692 % 840,503 % 8,376

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating ncome (Loss) by 414,499 § - $ (51,502)
Adjustiments to Reconeile Operating Income o
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Depreciation Expense 334,636 - 34,847
Change in Asscts and Liabilities:
Receivables (77,952) - 9,188
Inventories - . 2,652)
Accounts and Other Payables ' 40,027 a4
Accrued Wages Payable (2,994) (2,594)
Acerved Leave Payable 1,740 (53)
Acerued Other Post Employroent Benefits 4,713 (298)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 714,669 § - $ (13,078)

Noneash Investing, Capilal and Financing Activities:
Loss on Disposal of Capital Asseis Not Affecting
Operating Income g - 3 - b

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
101 Cash and Cash Lquivalents 5 2,953,692 § 840,503 § 8,376

106 Cash With Fiscal Agent, Restricted

$ 2,953,692 § 840,503 § 8,376
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Cemetery Golf Course Parking Lot Encrgy Plant Ambunlance Transporfation
Enterprise Euterprise Enterprise Enterprise LEnterprise Terminal
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
A 14,771 8 943,302 § 725,838 § 315,328 % 3,132,285 % 12,944 % §,023,372
(64,623) (593,512) (443,074) (181,027) (585,997) (74,949 (3,018,205)
(173,052) (335,871) - (406,222) (2,411,300) - (4,288,735)
(122,904) 53,919 282,764 (271,921) 134,988 (62,005) 716,432
- (38,183) - (54,163) - (92,345)
25,000 115,055 - 845,072 - 25,000 1,850,630
- (7,088) (6,829) - - - (13917}
25,000 69,784 (6.829) 845,072 (54,163) 25,000 1,744,368
(115,085) (23,575) (845,072) - - (983,702)
- (15,543) (84,407} - (144,080) - {540,373)
- (6,923) (115,728) . (63,210) - (232.102)
3,104 - - 282,201 - - 484,433
3,104 (137.521) (223,710) (552,871) (207,296) - (1,271,743)
745 742 7,643 - 15,089 1,373 57,296
745 742 7,643 15,089 1,373 37,296
(94,055) (13,075) 59,868 20,280 (111,381) (35,632) 1,246,353
9,791 36,951 433,657 1,160,590 134,334 4,157,540
& (84,264) § 23,875 3 493,525 % 20,280 % 1,049,209 % 98,702 % 5,403,899
M (162,296) § (53,791 % 251,066 % (292,548) § 344,422 % (233,722) § 216,128
24,644 145,058 88,704 15,714 213,428 167,039 1,024,069
7,060 {27,776) (72,333) 4,333.00 (494,800) 36 (652,244)
- - - - - - (2,652)
6,469 (2,235) 13,327 (1,060} 36,525 4.642 99,682
(307) (5,496) - (1,773) 117 - (13,047)
597 (906) 920 14,565 - 16,863
929 (934) - 2,494 20,731 - 27,635
$ (122,900 § 53,919 % 282,764 § (271.92)) § 134,988 & ((52.605) 3 716,432
§ (1,321 § - $ - $ - § $ (1.321)
¥ (84,2064) $ 23875 % 242,479 % 20,280 § 1049209 § 98,702 § 5,152,852
- - 251,046 - - - 251,046
$ (84,264) & 23,875 3§ 493,525 § 20,280 % 1,049,209 § 98,702 § 5,403,899
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Medical Liability Unemployment Dental Worlers
Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance Compensation
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Toials
ASSETS:
Current Assets:
101 Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 7771081 % 530,482 $ 26,730 § 63,856 $ 489,821 % %,881,970
115 Accounts Receivable 545,572 - - - . 545,572
151 Investments 223,543 - 164,403 - 963,276 1,351,222
135 Interest Receivable 4,126 268 - 33 995 5,422
TOTAL ASSETS $ 8,544,322 § 530,750 % 191,133 § 63,889 § 1,454,092 % 10,784,186
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
202 Accounts Payable g 725919 § 278,226 % 14,562 § 6,564 § 1,475,803 § 2,501,074
216 Wages Payable - 4,513 - - - 4,518
Total Current Liabilities 725919 282,741 14,562 6,564 1,475,803 2,505,589
NET POSITION:
253.90 Unyestricted! Net Position 7.818,403 248,009 176,571 57.325 [ANADD) 8,278,597
Totel Net Position 7.818,403 248,009 176,571 57,323 L7110 §.278,597
TOTAIL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 3§ 8,544,322 % 530,750 & 191,133 § 63,889 % 1,454,092 % 10,784,186
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Medieal Liabiiity Unemployment Dental Workers
Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance  Compensation
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
Operating Revenue:
380 Charges for Goods and Services $ 6,638,106 3 651,636 % 33,818 § 141,534 % 907,491 § 8,372,585
Operating Expenses;
410 Personal Services 11,135 91,299 - 48,395 150,829
420 Other Current Expense 6,971,700 211,202 52,142 185,982 304,135 7,725,161
Total Operating Expenses 6,982,835 302,50 52,142 185,982 352,530 7,875,990
Operating Income (Loss) (344,729‘; 349,135 (18,324) (44.,448) 554,961 496,595
Nonoperating Revenue (Expense):
361 Investment Earnings (Loss) 80,155 3,235 - 836 (20,048) 64,178
St Trensfers In / (Out) - (10,541) - - - (10,54 1)
80,155 (7,306) - 836 (20,048) 53,637
Change ir Net Position (264,574) 341,829 (18,324) (43,612) 534,913 550,232
Net Position - Beginning 8,082,977 (93,820) 194,895 100,937 (556,624) 7,728,365
NET POSITION - ENDING $ 7,818,403 § 248,009 § 176,571 § 57,325 % (21,711) 8 8,278,597
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CITY OF RAPID C1TY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Medical Linbility Unemployment Dental Workers
Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance Compensation
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from Interfund Services Provided $ 6623900 § 651,848 § 33818 § 135,246 § 97,372 $  8,372,i84

Payments to Employees (11,135) (91,568} - - (48,395) (151,098)

Payments for Claims & Services (6,658,220) (A32,016) (37,580) (185,952) (468,534) (7,782,302)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (45,453) 128,264 (3,762) {30,706) 390,443 438,784

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Transter Out - (10,543} - - (10,341)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities - (10,541) - - - (10,5413
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest Received 107,177 3,235 33S 836 674 112,257
Het Cash Provided by investing Activities 107,177 3,238 335 836 674 112,257
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash end Cash Equivalents 61,722 120,958 (3.427) (29,870) 391,117 540,500
Balances - Beginning 7,709,358 409,524 30,157 93,726 98.705 8,341,470
Bulances- Ending § 7,771,080 $ 530,482 % 26,730 % 63,856 § 489822 § RB88i970
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating Income (Loss) $ (344,729) § 348,135 § {18,324} S (44,448) 3 554,961 % 496,595

Adjustments te Reconcile Operating Incore to

Change in Agscts and Liabilities:

Accounts Receiveble {14,206) 212 13,712 (119) (401)

Aceounts Payables 313,480 (220,814) 14,562 29 (164,399) (57,141)

Wages Payable - (269) (269)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Aclivities $ {45,455) § 128264 § (3,762) § (30,706) § 390,443 § 438,784
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ASSETS;
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable
Net Position Held in Agency
Capucity

Total Liabilities

CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2013
Deposits Held Payroll Section
For Others Withholding 125
Fund Fund Fund Total
b 1,323,243 % 296,068 § 42,185 1,661,596
336,491 - - 336,491
$ 1,659,734 % 296,068 § 42,185 1,998,087
b - $ 90,187 § 90,187
1,659,734 205,981 42,185 1,907,900
$ 1,659,734 § 296,168 $§ 42,185 1,998,087
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
QCCUPANCY TAX FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
314 Occupancy Tax
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Interest Earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures:
490 Other Expenditures
492 Other Expenditures
Total Expenditures
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL

$ 1,463,992 § 1,464,509
- 2,000

1,463,992 1,466,509
1,463,992 1,468,366
1,463,992 1,468,366
- (1.857)

11,058 11,058

$ 11,058 % 9,201
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
DOWNTOWN BID

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Revenues:

360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Interest Earnings
363 Special Assessments

Total Revenue

Expendifures:
490 Other Expenditures
492 Other Expenditures
Total Expenditures
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

FINAL

BUDGET ACTUAL
-8 978
183,511 178,027
183,511 179,005
183,5 4.345
183, 4,343
174,660
1,334 1,334
1,334 $ 175,994
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
EROSION/SEDIMENT CONTROL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
340 Charges for Goods and Services:

349 Other-Conservation & Development $ 55,331 § 41,175
Total Revenue 55,331 41,175
Expenditures:

460 Conservation and Development:

463 Community Development 535.331 51,725
Total Expenditures 55,331 51,725
Net Change in Fund Balances - (10,550)
Fund Balance - Beginning 53,543 53,543
FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 53,543 % 42,993
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 66 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $ 718 % 211
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Earnings - 5
Total Revenue 718 216
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 718 707
Total Expenditures 718 707
Net Change in Fund Balances 718 (491)
Fund Balance - Beginning 491 491
FUND BALANCE- ENDING 3 1,209 % 0
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 67 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $ 201,062 § 197,039
360 Misceilaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Earnings - 3,806
Total Revenue 201,062 200,845
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 198,824
485 Capital Outlay 2,238
Total Expenditures 201,062
Net Change in Fund Balances - 200,845
Fund Balance - Beginning 254,156 254,156

125

FUND BALANCE- ENDING 254,156 § 455,001
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 70 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $ 49360 3§ 46,991
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Earnings - 2,760
Toral Revenue 49,360 49,75)
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service . 49,360 -
Total Expenditures 49,360 -
Net Change in Fund Balances - 49,751
Fund Balance - Beginning 227,383 227,383
FUND BALANCE- ENDING 3 227,383 8§ 277,134
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

TID 68 FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investment Earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures:

470 Debt Service

Total Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL

b 44,488 § 44,176
- 358

44,488 44,534

44,488 32,690

44,488 32,690

- 11,844

206,484 26,484

$ 26,484 § 38,328
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

TID 65 FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investment Earnings

Total Revenue
Expenditures:
470 Debt Service

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Under
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources :
391.02 Long-term debt issued

Tota) Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL

$ 148,579 § 147,772
- 964

148,579 148,736

148,579 372,023

148,579 372,023
- (223287)

- 287,054

- 287,054

- 63,767

53,063 53,063

$ 53,063 $ 116,830
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 62 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes $ 1,000 §
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Earnings - 233
Total Revenue 1,000 233
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 460,588 459 897
Total Expenditures 460,588 459,897
Net Change in Fund Balances (459,588) (459,664)
Fund Balance - Beginning 459,664 459,664
FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 76 % 0
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 61 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $ 369,042 $ 366,428
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Earnings - 3,380
Total Revenue 369,042 369,808
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 369,042 -
485 Capital Quitlay - -
Tota! Expenditures 309,042 -
Fxcess of Revenue Over (Under)

Expenditures - 369,808
Other Financiug Sources (Uses):

391.02 Long-term debt issued -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uises) - -
Net Change in Pund Balances - 369,808
Fund Balance - Beginning 139,913 139,913

FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 139913 § 509,721
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 63 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes $ 234,578 § 236,264
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investment Earnings - -
Total Revenue 234,578 236,264
Expenditures:
470 Debt Service 234,578 234,578
Total Expenditures 234,578 234,578
Net Change in Fund Balances - 1,686
Fund Balance - Beginning 383 383

FUND BALANCE- ENDING 3 383 % 2,069
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investmenl Earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures:

470 Debt Service

Total Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

TID 29 FUND

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
$ 2
25
22 25
22 -
22
- 25
2,201 2,201
$ 2,201 2,226
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDCETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 56 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $ 2,062,831 § 1,341,783
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Earnings . 691
Total Revenue 2,062,831 1,342,474
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 1,318,831 1,176,734
485 Capital Outlay 744,000 19,225
Total Expenditures 2,062,831 1,195,959
Net Change in Fund Balances - 146,515
Fund Deficit - Bepinning (1,166,900) (1,166,900)
FUND DEFICIT- ENDING 3 (1,166,900) $ (1,020,385)
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDCETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
T1D 69 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $ 733,104 § 280,406
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 [nvestment Earnings - 2,164
Total Revenue 733,104 282,570
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 733,104 980,804
485 Capital Outlay 2,500,000 2,278,693
Total Expenditures 3,233,104 3,259,497
Excess of Revenue Under
Expenditures (2,500,000) (2,976,927)
Other Financing Sources:
391.02 Long-term Debt Issued 2,500,000 2,812,389
Total Other Financing Sources 2,500,000 2,812,389
Net Change in Fund Balances - (164,538)
Fund Balance - Beginning 304,428 304,428
FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 304428 % 139,890
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

TID 54 FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes;
311 General Property Taxes $ 363,813 368,472
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investment Earnings - S
Total Revenue 363,813 368,477
Expenditures:
470 Debt Service 363,813 363,810
Total Expenditures 363,813 363,810
Net Change in Fund Balances - 4,667
Fund Balance - Beginning 25,229 25,229

FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 25,229 29,896
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 44 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes 3 1,010,090 $ 882,314
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Earnings - 93
Total Revenue 1,010,090 882,407
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 1,010,090 729,283
Total Expenditures 1,010,090 729,283
Net Change in Fund Balances - 153,124
Fund Balance - Beginning 43,468 43,468
FUND BALANCE- ENDING b 43,468 % 196,592
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 50 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $ 549,072 3 252,196
Total Revenue 549,072 252,196
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 549,072 413,154
Total Expenditures 549,072 413,154
Excess of Revenue Under
Expenditures - (160,958)
Other Financing Sources:
391.02 Long-term debt issued - 164,082
Total Other Financing Sources - 164,082
Net Change in Fund Balances - - 3,124
Fund Balance - Beginning 6,722 6,722
FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 6,722 % 9,846
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 52 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $ 28,781 3 28,781
Total Revenue 28,781 28,781
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 28,781 28,781
Total Expenditures 28,781 28,781
Net Change in Fund Balances - 0
Fund Balance - Beginning 45 45
FUND BALANCE- ENDING ¥ 45 $ 45
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 71 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes $ 619 § 1,218
360 Miscetlaneous Revenue:
361 Invesiment Earnings

Total Revenue 619 1,221

Expenditures:
470 Debt Service 619 -

Total Expenditures 619 -

Net Change in Fund Balances - 1,221

Fund Balance - Beginning - .

FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ - $ 1,221
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 83 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes $ 106,746  $ 107,334
Total Revenue 106,746 107,334
Expenditures:
470 Debt Service 106,746 106,746
Total Expenditures 106,746 106,746
Net Change ir Fund Balances - 388
Fund Balance - Beginning -

FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ - $ 588
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 47 FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes
Total Revenue

Expenditures:

470 Debt Service

Total Expendifures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
391.02 Long-term debt issued

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
359,677 $ 107,648
359,677 107,648
359,677 264,372
359,677 264,372
. 154,696
- 154,696
- (2,029)
2,029 2,029
2,029 % 0
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 38 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes $ 435,994 $ 428,675
360 Miscellaneous Revenue;
361 Investment Earnings - 2,969
Total Revenue 435,994 431,644
Expenditures:
470 Debt Service 435,994 385,076
Total Expenditures 435,994 385,676
Net Change in Fund Balances - 45,968
Fund Balance - Beginning 149,181 149,18)

FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 149,181 & 195,149
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 39 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues;
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $ 78,136 § 78,136
Total Revenue 78,136 78,136
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 78,136 92,981
Total Expenditures 78,136 92,981
Net Change in Fund Balances - (14,845)
Fund Deficit - Beginning (1,005,965) (1,005,965)
FUND DEFICIT- ENDING $ {(1,005,965) $ (1,020,810)




CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 40 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $ 80,188 § 80,188
Total Revenue 80,188 80,188
Expenditures;

470 Debt Service 80,188 80,188
Total Expenditures 80,188 80,188
Net Change in Fund Balances - -
fund Balance - Beginning - -
FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ - $ -
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 41 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $ 1,250,949 § 1,050,056
360 Miscellaneous Revenue: ’

361 [nvestment Earnings - 133
Total Revenue 1,250,949 1,050,189
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 1,250,949 975,163
Total Expenditures 1,250,949 975,163
Net Change in Fund Balances - 75,026
Fund Balance - Beginning 5,283 5,283

FUND BALANCE- ENDING b 5,283 3§ 80,309
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 42 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes 5 379430 $ 393,209
Total Revenue 379,430 393,209
Expenditures:

470) Debt Service 379,430 175,076
Total Expenditures 379,430 175,076
Net Change in Fund Balances - 218,133
Fund Deficit - Beginning (3,012,499) (3,012,499
FUND DEFICIT- ENDING $ (3,012,499) § (2,794,366)
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Revenues:

331 Federal Grant

340 Charges for Goods and Services:
349 Conservation and Development

Total Revenue

Expenditures:

460 Community Development:
463 Community Development

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Under
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources
391.03 Sale of Municipal Property

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

FINAL

BUDGET ACTUAL
371,188 § 324,079
10,555 48,799
381,743 372,878
381,743 373,773
381,743 373,773
- (895)
- 15,000
- 14,105
: 14,105
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
REHABILITATION FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
340 Charges for Goods and Services:

349 Conservation and Development  § 95,000 § 69,743
Total Revenue 95,600 69,743
Expenditures:

460 Conservation & Development

463 Community Development 95,000 80,642
Total Expenditures 95,000 80,642
Net Change in Fund Balances - (10,899)
Fund Balance - Beginning 45,654 45,654
FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 45,654 § 34,755
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
340 Charges for Goods and Services:

348 Cemetery b 1,000 $ 2.826
Total Revenue 1,000 2,826
Expenditures:

437 Cemetery 1,000 349
Total Expenditures 1,000 349
Net Change in Fund Balances - 2,477
Fund Balaoce - Beginning 60,419 60,419
FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 60,419 § 62,896
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
RETTRED SENIOR VOLUNTEER FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
331 Federal Grants b 46,800 § 47,865
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

367 Contributions and Donations 70,000 74,574
Total Revenue 116,800 122,439
Expenditures:

450 Culture and Recreation

4xx Retired Senior Volunteers 112,142 98,304
Total Expenditures 112,142 98,304
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)

Expenditures 4,658 24,135
Net Change in Fund Balances 4,658 24,135
Fund Balance - Beginning 41,529 41,529
FUND BALANCE- ENDING by 46,187 § 65,6004
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
LIBRARY BOARD FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Revenues:
350 Fine und Forfeitures
354 Library
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investment Earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures:

450 Culture and Recreation
455 Library

485 Capital Qutlay

Total Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

FINAL

BUDGET ACTUAL

$ 156919 § 95,890
. 244
156,919 96,134
72,283 71,829
84,636 27,289
156,919 99,118
; (2.984)
49,927 49,927
$ 49,927 § 46,943
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Rapid City’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures and required supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial
health,

Contents:

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to assist the reader to understand how the
City’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most significant
local revenue sources, property and sales tax.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
City’s current levels of outstanding debt and its ability to issue additional debt in the
future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to assist the reader to
understand the environment within which the City’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service data to assist the reader to understand how the
information in the City’s financial report relates to services the City provides and the
activities it performs.

Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant years. The City of Rapid City
implemented GASB 34 in 2001 and schedules presenting government-wide data include
information beginning in that year.
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Table 1

CITY CF RARID CIT
NET ASSETS [2004-2011¥NET POSITION {2012-2013) BY CONMPCONENT
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)
{accrual basis of accounting}

Fiscal Year
2004 2305 2008 2007 2008 2008 2010 2011 2012 2013

Govemmental activities

Ne: Invesiment in capital assets $160,563,057 $132,910,951 $743,728,280 $145,2688,244 $ 160C,485700Q s 172,182,308 § 187,793.015 $208.837.358 $213.642454 §$235873,951

Restdcted 6,682,829 5327937 47,176,384 40,7C1,262 18,303,485 14,758,896 13,388,775 9,046,123 10,183,637 4,449,852

Unrestricted 45,050,470 45,666,208 £$1,19¢,627 43,275,878 54 506 534 50,636,346 59,30C,225 51,717,850 £8,362.723 63,013,667
Total governmerital activiies net asseisinet position 212,236,155 232,858.536 242,108,301 235,265,408 232,384,719 237,877,551 2£1,48C,018 269,501,351 283,189,114 303,337,488
Business-type activites

Net Investment in capital assets 158,723,257 169,802,852 188,750,708 215,637,355 244,068,207 025G G8B.2BE  § 248,033,105 $788.392485 § 301,032,885 $325,625758

Reastricied 1,411,216 1,292,171 733,070 1.099,008 8,411,972 3.093,249 26,206,565 9.062,148 8.660.0624 6,511,086

Unrestricted 14,418,185 18,455,480 18,759,835 25,281.48€ 24,458,018 25,673,545 33,066,750 356,052,917 44.198,86€ 42,547 88%
Total business-type acliviies net assets/net position: 174,552,559 483,551,503 208,243,613 243,017,856 276.847,1S7 292,755,880 367,306,421 330,514,528 351.891.774 374,684,733
Primary government

Net Investiment in capital assets 319225374 302713803 332,479,998 361.925.806  404,56%,807 432,170,685 435826121 495236833 520675338  5681.499,70¢

Restricted 8,093,845 54672547 47,808,454 41,800,297 ° 26715458 17.852,845 38,673,340 18,108,269 16,843,961 10,960,938

Unrestricied 54,468,656 £5,121,889 68,959,462 74,557,362 79,064,552 8C,609,8¢1 83,366,975 88,770,777 103,554,589 105,561,556
Total primary government net assets/net position $386,788,815  $422,508.039 $45C.348,514 3478283265 5510,341.918 $530.633,431 $558,755,436  $600,115,879 $641,080.888 $678,022.202
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Expenses
Govemnmental activities
General govemment
Public Safety
Public Works
Health & Wellare
Cuiture & Recreation
Conservation & Develepment
interest on Long-Tem Debt
Miscellanecus Experdituras
Total gnvemmentat aclivities expenses

Business-type ativities
Water
Water Reclamation
Alirport
Sofic Waste Disposal
Civic Center
Sofid Waste Caliection
Execitive Goif Course
Cemetery
Goll Course
Parking Lot & Area
Energy Piant
Ambulance
Transporation Terminai
Tctal business-type activities

Totat primary government expense

Program Revenues
Governmentzi activities
General government
Bublic Safety
Puplic Works
Health & Welfare
Culture & Recreations
Conservation & Developmant
Miscefiangous Revenue
Deerating Grarks & Contributions
Cazpital Grants & Contr
Total govemmental act

Business-dype activites
Water
Water Reclamation
&pont
Soiid Waste Dispesal
Civic Center
Sotid Waste Coliection
Executive Gotf Course
Cemetery
Goif Course
Parking Lot & Area

CiTY CF RAPIC CiTY
CHANGE tN NET ASSETS {2004-2071 1YNET POSITION (2012-2013}
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)

(accrual basis of accounting}
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Fiscal Year
2004 2803 2008 2007 2008 2009 prichle) 2011 2012 2013

3 2882804 S 3286840 5 2880364 5 3481138 § 2928869 § 357BTBE § 4195113
19.62%.554 26,163,551 20481518 20,482,278 20831125 22274808 26.205.320
14,223,924 15,866,521 16,768,780 18,573,254 18,456.438 18,505,644 18,111,728
1,687,044 2,52£ 80 2,722,023 2,563,046 3,118,121 2.861.340 3.075,286 3,056,728
3,259.883 9,154 180 10,37C,786 $,628.459 8.920,803 9,761,625 10,656,488 10,641 B78

g 4,269,60€ 4,636,872 4,789,817 4,685,342 3,754,414 3477 885 3.701.548 1.870,32
] 1,305,582 3,206,896 3,35C,937 3.388,742 5,072,380 3,721,652 3248228 4.598,083
3 452,578 1.783.573 1,29C.526 1.239,852 1.482 151 1,483,084 1.841.008 1,£98.826
& 43.2710.87C 58,035,510 61,943,801 62.053.414 65,672,246 §5,623.108 SE.881,E03 70,378,262
5,880,867 6,312,383 7183375 7.337,355 9271094 10,258,187 S,08% 932 B8.245.670
5,094,455 5,524,521 ©.328.02¢ 6,712,830 €,854,714 7,168,432 7214734 5,779,508
4,122,845 4,501 446 4,542 984 §,112.567 £,485,507 8,851,183 6,745,082
4,225,465 4,121,807 4,241,224 3,181,183 £,838,472 £,573,683 5,446,458
5,941,291 $,082,438 6,346,388 £,598,565 10,135,684 10.198.657
1,515,099 1.624,172 1,733,117 1,847,829 , 1,825,482 2,255,564
256,268 265,590 262,630 228.342 228376 213,419 228278
257614 247.501 241,785 251,580 248,174 241,880 268,383
786,569 787,028 i81.247 795172 1.6 1,020,808 28C, 111 1,320,071 1,085,443
417,395 421837 486.22C 458,C0¢ 551.039 577,254 587,240 880578 652,833
247,388 286218 339.298 301,85% 335,356 243,797 387,837 294,442 338,738 599.429
1,885,819 1,877,822 1.818,699 2,165,208 2,608,728 2,566,521 2,831,836 2.727.571 3,032,843 3,322,362
65,387 74275 84,018 86,237 83,855 100,856 85450 146,886 23287 248620
30,675,103 32.1C6.508 34,923.283 35,187,695 35,845,268 40,971,369 44,566,788 47.314.2¢4 47.312,582 46,088,221
$ 76939028 § 81317678 S 90,973784 § 93223,2CC S$10D0,886.063 $103.024.783 $110.939,034 3112537402 §114,154,387 $118,442,552
$ 2248815 § 2318558 § 2291657 § 2229738 § $ 742270 8 874020 $ 1448838 5 308888 S B4E 58S
778,487 819,212 1.034 316 50,462 heil 733,085 1,108,582 1,734,406 718,478
1,007,620 2,869,211 1.57¢,148 794,555 o8 125698 391,789 7T0.083 113,581
223,463 233,081 283,795 235404 7,825 344,628 389373 422,428 424,056
1,181,478 1,343,438 1,492,145 1,467.547 1.621.920 1,715,176 1,584 728 1,658.222 1,680,477
172,473 139,4C6 72701 1,688,132 1,445.312 1,086,334 542275 1,861,835 1,551,543 1,810,484

- - - 80.229 75,727 46,258 158,204 82,127 147,073 158,717
2,004,095 2,068,813 1,785,807 7,944,338 1.523.282 2,301,631 2,284,827 3,104,360 2,958,268 5,095,584
9,180,723 9.709.472 1,566,051 $,231.808 6.853.041 3.7151.826 3778706 2.316.681 8.637.0724 6,008,425
16,768,258 19,501,282 11,125,318 15,872,221 15,317.8C5 11,416,759 10,952,725 12,185,818 18,898,915 16,941 646
8,169,833 9,413,770 1C,041.212 10.996,41C 2679252 11.846.358 11,478,757 13,457,402 16,892,221 15,825,645
4,782,345 6,226,225 €.887.504 8,023,176 §.452.855 8,988,427 9,503,087 2,990,865 0,668,468 11,290,821
3,541,933 4,053 585 3,835,588 4,238,878 4,217,350 4,689 692 5,160,055 £,348,491 . 7 5652877
4,771,308 4,962,366 £.189,507 Z,096,765 5,836,287 5.723.747 5,939,532 €,418,827 €.864.507 6,353,263
3,140,705 3,525,052 3,082.211 3,174,852 4,208,645 5,830,860 5,403,176 5,403,015 5,171,880 £302.478
1,571,225 1,685053 %.756.437 1,844,672 2.195 862 2,276,363 2.247 258 2.330,246 2,403,399 2,832,141
128,587 120,435 131,362 137,418 148,257 139,365 137,337 134,729 180,030 175,527
132,244 156,458 185,945 149,839 158,502 133.273 154,602 150,386 107,711
787,760 731,161 FITIVT 793,208 1,078,771 952 481 967,139 1,337.322 1.011.078
566,185 528.082 532,415 520,044 627.201 664,450 878,854 743.221 786,471




Enery Flant

Ambulance

Transporaticn: Terminal

Qparating Grants & Contributions

Capital Grants & Contribttions
Total business-ype aclivities

Total primary govemment revenue

Net {(Expense) Revenue
Governmentat activities
Business-tyoe activities

Togt primary governimert ret expense

CITY GF RARID CITY

THANGE IN NET ASSETS {2004-2011/NET POSITION (2012-2013}

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)
{accrual basis of accourding)

Fiscal Year
2007 racioc] 2010 2011 2012
Z80,995 284,478 312.225 243,207 220718
2,602,158 2,677,049 2,782,755 3,3C1.530 2100212
28,141 29,854 26,387 28,257 13,908
£382.212 8,257,768 10,439,307 5,536,678 1,532,527 7,233,185 10,689,852 3659514 4,931,142
35,507,569 £3.374,838 45,491,823 44,657,253 45,810,164 52,032,428 39,462,230 56.681.985 57.732.841
§ S52,275825 $§ €2875.930 § 56617838 § 80,529,474 3 37228523 S 83,003,152 § 71585243 § 7S360,900 3 T4,674.487
{29.708,578) (44,324.8¢6) {42.163.389) (45625936} {5C,828,855) {54,808,521) (53,437,281} (48,182,888} 153.434,516)
11.267.83C 10,568,540 9,468,563 7,238,597 4838785 7,472,638 12,087,937 £,345,401 11,666,550
$ (24.663.203) £ (18,441,748} § (34,355,156 § (32.683,826) §(39.350,399) § (45.737,860; 3 (47,125.883) § (41.349354; & {36.633.487}) §

(43,768 066}

General Revenue and other changes net assets

Governmental activites:
Taxes:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Other taxes
State shared revenue
Ceourty shared revenue
Non-program grants & contributions
Urrestricted investment eamings
Miscellanecus reverue
Gain {loss) on cisposal of capital assats
Cemp for Loss/Damzge to Capital Assets
Transfers
Tcotal governmentai act

Business4ype activ
Taxes
Gross Recepts Tax
Other 1axes
Urrestricted investment eamings
Misceitaneous reveriuve
Gein (loss) on disposal of capital assets
Transfers
Total business-tyne activities
Tetal primary government

Change in Net Assets/Net Position
Government activities
Business-type activities

Total primary government

$ 9074257 § 11132202 § 12258052 5 15094006 § 15635842 § 15260302 § 2153G507 § 2164318 § 19985872 § 20635548
32,484 875 35,852,430 38875471 40,802 422 43,203,511 42,203,206 43,324,549 <43 980,961 485,543,581 50,195,541
252281 760,324 1,791,451 266,596 2.133.282 2.371,249 2,183,763 2,083,578 2241268 ‘2,283,407
1,013,404 888,271 1,401,198 1,147,108 1,137,188 1,054,584 1,207,122 %.260.17¢ 1.351.828 1,471,827
241,368 241881 246,242 282,357 241,300 250.300 256,458 265,848 330285 288,142

60,571 40.574 47,801 88,546 - - - - - -
1,185,817 1,260,324 4,458,221 4,770,186 2,872.201 1,245,258 2,093,239 2,218,353 1.081,76€ {85,886}
229,443 184,137 153,020 195,158 185,74 190,887 159,242 168,552 178.317 471,197
115,937 563,695 (246,867) 5,348 {24,180) {361,824} 137,431} {62.188) €1.1%C g12

- - - N - N - . 1,664,005 -
{773.544} {772,400) (4,520,224  (20,837.446)  (21,394,867) {5.804,288; (3.258,120) {6.479.184) {7.098.178} (7.844.317)
£3,858.819 45,957,348 73.465 41,714,281 44,098,697 £6,321.001 67 460,033 67,008,323 67,718,641
2,332,C24 2,438 B53 2.634,751 2,797 148 2522525 3,082,280 3,217,615 3,263.328 3,588,168 4,025,567
162,877 233,088 169,500 227308 253,022 243,812 204,836 177,138 158,373 145,880
375,082 358,223 821,988 1,138,803 1,547,483 505,089 1,328,439 1,505,645 807,71 93,701
(88 300} 13,692 - €63,280 441,478 658,883 937,473 708.272 22,478
29,835 { {8,785} 411 445 {81,428) {128,014} {453,808} (878,798) {42,637} {28,400)
772,344 772400 4520225 20.937,446 21,284,867 3,804,259 3,258,120 £479,154 7,098,178 7,644,317
3,575,443 3,894.805 8,023,572 28.513.251 25,593,745 14,146,887 8,222,304 11.482.982 12,027,845 11,804,543
S 47,434,762 5 53.852.154 $ B2.197,C37 $ 57,227,542 $ 70,790.442 § £3.44C888 § 75.6%_%,33? $ 7£551305 § 79798487 S 72,523.184
74,163,150 20,247 771 $.248,769 {448,098} (2.523.299) 4,584 348 12,851,512 13,831,033 19,587,763 14,284,025
8,507,806 15162838 18,592,112 34,882,814 33,826,342 18,958.682 15,694,842 23.572.819 21,377,246 23,571,093
$ 22771056 $ 35,410,406 $ 27840381 S 34532716 3 31400043 § 23543028 § 28546455 § 37,201,957 S 4G,95501C § 37.855.118




TABLE 3

CITY OF RAPID CITY
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Fiscal Year
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011+ 2012 2013
General Fund
Reserved S 751 $ 1,072 % 920 % 685 % 2351 % 2,067 $ 2232 § - $ - 3 -
Unreserved 17,409 17.470 16,792 16,214 15,190 11,998 10,486 - - -
Nonspendable - - - - - - - 1,872 1774 1,108
Restricted - - - - - - - - - -
Committed - - - - - - - - - -
Assigned - - - - - - - 524 556 1,185
Unassigned - - - - : - - - 15,469 19,421 18,534
Total General Fund $ 18,160 $ 18,542 $ 17,712 $ 16,898 $ 17541 $ 14065 $12718 § 17,865 § 21750 § 20,827
All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved $ 9441 $55241 $48454 $46632 S 19,134 $ 23,288 520575 $ - $ -
Unreserved, reported in
Special Revenue 19,069 22,885 28,899 22,410 30,825 31,012 32,829 - -
Debt Service - - - - (3,960) {8,776) (7,305} - - -
Permanent Funds - - - - 68 61 55 - - -
Nonspendable - - - - - - - 6,547 6,317 5,207
Restricted - - - - - - - 8,996 3,312 22,684
Committed - - - - - - - 28,739 40,352 37,165
Assigned - - - - - - - - - -
Unassigned - - - {5,645) (5,185) (4,836)

Total All Other Governmental Funds $ 28,510 $78226 §$ 77,453 $69042 % 46067 $45585 $46,154 § 38636 $§ 44796 S 60,221

* mplementation of GASB 54 changed the nature of reserved funds
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses & Permits
intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeits
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health & Welfare
Culture & Recreation
Development
Debt Service

Interest
Principal
Capital Outlay
Miscellaneous
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over
(Under) Expenditures

Qther Financing Sources
{Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers Out
Comp for Loss/Damage to Capital Asset
Proceeds for Borrowing
Sales of Property
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Debt Service as a percentags
of Noncapital Expenditures

Fiscal Year
2004 2008 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
$ 42391 $47,078 $52,279 $56278 $60751 $62,569 S 66,828 § 69,977 §70,715 $ 73,027
1,874 2,048 2,019 2,362 1,813 1,506 1,278 2.892 1,936 2,335
3,259 3,13¢ 4,134 5,134 4,721 5147 7773 4,661 12,442 6,713
3,500 5,616 4,503 5,127 4 367 4,247 3,539 3,739 5,050 3,402
240 158 231 207 167 1582 134 133 108 103
1,703 1,866 4,792 5,594 3,658 2,628 2,567 2.660 1,564 574
52,967 59,805 67,958 74,702 75,577 76,249 82,119 84,063 91,814 86,153
2,092 2,283 2,215 2,719 2,851 2,842 2,735 2,441 2,944 3,520
16,531 16,938 18,022 19,591 19,419 20,263 20,084 20,112 21,122 25,394
7.267 5,782 6,308 15,251 7.380 7,367 7,740 6,936 6,292 7,345
1,632 1,868 2.007 2,827 2,382 2,447 2,492 2,535 2,648 2,703
5,498 6,988 7,497 13,476 9,138 8,457 8,524 8,266 9,116 3618
1,397 4,252 4,007 4,558 4,717 4,742 3,787 3,498 3,633 1,980
1.463 1,376 2,842 2,865 3.351 3,359 5,072 5722 3,248 4,561
5,392 5,887 7.264 9,366 10,350 12,0610 16,921 15,131 11,762 15,549
11,982 10,861 11,478 2,194 35,068 27,833 30,164 20,400 16,508 25,638
842 452 3,406 1,693 1,291 1,239 1,482 1,483 1,841 1,499
55,103 56,787 65,045 74,540 95,926 90,466 98,002 86,523 79,111 896,807
(2,136) 3,118 2,913 161 (20,348) (14,218} (15,882) {2,480) 12,703 (10,653}
1.060 1,539 1,550 1,107 2,169 873 1.396 2,372 1,420 2,583
{1,834} 2,011) 6,070y (21,308} (10,528) (10,777} (4,654) {8,851y (8,168) (10,216}
- - - - - - - - 1,064 -
160 46,824 - 10,820 6,355 16,858 17,610 2,055 2,920 32,703
378 629 4 86 20 53 22 4 106 86
(238) 46,981 (4,516) {9,154) {1,983) 7,107 14,374 {4,420)  (2,658) 25,155
(2,372) 50,099 {1,603) {9,032) (22,332) (7,710) (1,509) (6,881) 10,045 14,502
15.9% 16.0% 18.9% 16.9% 22.5% 24.6% 30.9% 31.5% 24 .0% 28.3%

TABLE 4




CITY OF RAPID CITY
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL TAX REVENUE BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)
(modified accrual basis of accounting}
{amounts expressed in thousands)

BANK GROSS
FISCAL PROPERTY FRANCHISE FRANCHISE LIQUOR TAX AMUSEMENT COUNTY RECEIPTS
YEAR TAX SALES TAX TAX TAX REVERSICN TAX ROAD TAX TAX TOTAL
2004 9,622 32,484 284 92 339 - - - 42,821
*2005 11,063 35852 362 74 309 - - - 47,460
2008 12,011 38,875 410 58 333 - - 77 51,764
2007 15,475 , 40,802 - 94 417 - 284 266 57,338
2008 15,695 43,204 - 98 364 - 242 1,883 61,454
2009 18,459 42,204 - 111 363 - 251 1,906 63,204
2010 21,835 43,325 - 94 374 - 256 1,868 67,552
2011 22,057 45,990 - 100 377 - 296 1,830 70,750
2012 20,119 48,544 115 379 350 2,053 71,560
2013 20,693 50,196 - 117 417 - 389 2,139 73,950

* First year developer funded Tax increment Districts part of governmental funds
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS {(UNAUDITED)

TABLE S

Ratio of Total
Assessed to
Total Estimated
Actual Value (2)

Real Property Personal Property Totals

Fiscal Assessed Estimated Assessed  Estimated Assessed Estimated

Year Value Actual Value Value  Actual Value Value Actual Value
2004 3,220,316,408 3,788,607,639 (1) (1) 3,220,316,408  3,788,607,639
2005 3.438,568,538 4,045,374,751 (1) (1) 3,438,668,538  4,045,374,751
2006 3,727,410,934 4,385,188,334 (1) (1) 3,727,410,934 4.385,188,334
2007 4,018,678,206 4,727,856,713 (1) (1) 4,018,678,206 4,727,856,713
2008 4,324,369,253 5,087,483,239 M (1) 4,324,369,253  5,087,493,239
2008 4,682,575,409 5,0952982,636 ] (1) 4,682,575,409 5,095,292,636
2010 4,676,621,855 5,000,023,366 ) (1) 4,676,621,855 5,000,023,366
2011 4,548,347,320 4.921,921,341 (1) (1) 4,548,347,320 4,921,921,341
2012 4,581,268,458 5,296,771,100 (1) (M 4,581,268,458 5,296,771.100
2013 4,287,434,133  4,845,137,408 (1 (1) 4,287,434,133  4.845,137,408

SOURCE: Pennington County Audilor, Director of Equalization and South Dakota Department of Revenue

{1) No personal property assessed in state.

(2) Ratio percentage indicates full and true assessed value of real property only versus estimated actual value.

0.85

0.85

0.85

0.85

0.85

0.92

0.92

0.92

0.86

0.87

The City has no General Obligation Bonded Debt; therefore, no statistics are provided for G.O. bonded debt to assessed value.

125



CITY OF RAPID CITY

PROPERTY VALUE AND CONSTRUCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)

TABLE 6

Commercial Construction Residential Construction Assessed

Fiscal No. of No. of Property Value

Year Permits Value Permits Value Commercial Residential  Nontaxable (1)
2004 79 33,144,799 456 77,101,976 1,376,532,288  1,843,784,120 N/A
2005 59 34,755,729 475 70,648,172 1,422,673,534  2,015,895,004 N/A
2006 83 55,259,062 355 66,530,424 1,504,953,622  2,222,457,412 N/A
2007 83 60,676,861 282 61,623,981 1,580,826,294 2,437,851,912 N/A
2008 56 44,798,267 204 30,225,075 1,756,482,768  2,567,886,485 N/A
2009 39 37,383,580 145 28,917,468 1,905,733,014  2,776,842,386 N/A
2010 33 29,401,549 182 33,430,324 1,897,935,604 2,778,586,251 N/A
2011 42 46,768,678 219 33,808,421 1,811,751,821  2,736,585,499 N/A
2012 35 52,155,587 405 65,766,313 1,961,140,294  2,232,370,753 N/A
2013 23 55,931,678 861 77,497,797 1,859,066,830  2,328,310,353 N/A

(1) Source: Pennington County Auditor and Director of Equalization. Values are not assigned to exempt

(nontaxable) properties.
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TABLE 7

CITY OF RAPID CITY
PROPERTY TAX RATES - ALL OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
(PER $1000 OF ASSESSED VALUATION)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)

City
Special Debt

Fiscal General Revenue  Service School

Year Fund Funds Funds Total District County Total
2004 3.06 - - 3.06 16.40 473 24.19
2005 3.03 - - 3.03 16.01 4,70 23.74
2006 2.97 - - 2.97 15.16 4.58 22.71
2007 2.96 - : 296 1445 457 2168
2008 2.99 - - 2.99 13.91 4.75 2165
2009 3.03 - - 3.03 13.69 4.90 21.61
2010 3.00 - - 3.00 13.94 4.84 21.79
2011 3.15 - - 3.16 13.69 4.84 21.68
2012 3.34 - - 3.34 13.74 5.21 22.29
2013 3.36 - - 3.36 16.23 5.21 23.80
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS (UNAUDITED)

CITY OF RAPID CITY

DECEMBER 31, 2013

TABLE 8

Percent of

2013 Assessed Total Assessed

Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Valuation

SM Rushmore Mall Shopping Mall $ 28,413,758 0.66%
Midland Rushmore LLC Rushmore Crossing $ 16,877,108 0.39%
Stoney Creek Associates Stoney Creek South $ 13,497,456 0.31%
Black Hills Surgery Center Medical Center $ 12,599,851 0.25%
Rushmore Plaza Holiday Inn Motel $ 12,220,018 0.29%
Waimart Real Estate Business Trust Discount Retail $ 11,807,066 0.28%
Walmart Real Estate Discount Retail $ 10,684,648 0.25%
Rushmore Cedar LILC Lodging $ 10,057,200 0.23%
Perkins Delaware Shopping Center $ 9,946,137 0.23%
Harmony Heights Multi Residential Low Rise $ 9,904,608 0.23%

$ 138,007,851 3.17%
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) CITY OF RAPID CITY
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)

TABLE 9

Percent of Percent of
Percent of Delinquent Total Total Tax Qutstanding Delinguent
Fiscal Total Current Tax Levy Tax Tax Collections Delinquent Taxes
Year Tax Levy (2) Collections (2)  Collected (2} Collections (2) Collections {2) To Tax Levy (2) Taxes (2) To Tax Levy (2)
2004 9,250,187 9,050,289 97.8% 162,855 9.213,144 98.6% ) Mm
2005 9,858,569 9,723,310 98.6% 118,892 9,842,302 93.8% (N 1)
2006 10,509,158 10,113,356 96.2% 205,243 10,318,599 98.2% N (1
2007 . 11,030,680 - 10,895,764 - . 99.7% 205,585 . 14,201,449 101.5% N 1
2008 11,645,877 11,400,163 97.9% 298,571 11,698,734 100.5% N hH
2009 12,307,468 12,099,832 88.3% 167,780 12,267,612 99.7% M )
2010 12,610,519 12,458,768 98.8% 377,817 12,837,586 101.8% 1N M
2011 12,758,891 12,822,877 101.3% 404,565 13,327,442 104.5% ) N
2012 13,167,585 13,525,216 102.7% 237,258 13,762,475 104.5% H (1)
2013 14,233,160 13,992,309 98.3% 261,220 14,253,529 100.1% Q) (1)

(1) Outstanding delinquent taxes are not known and are assumed {0 be negligible.
(2) Excludes Tax Increment Financing District property taxes.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
TAXABLE SALES BY CATEG

ORY

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)
{amounts expressed in thousands}

TABLE 10

Fiscal Year

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2008 2010 2011 2012 2013
A. Agriculture, Forestry $ 15255 % 16533 % 17,372 $ 20028 § 20147 $ 19366 S 18334 % 17,178 $§ 18552 3 24,425
B. Mining 12,251 14,518 17,175 12,218 18,040 20,913 5,028 6,029 5,270 15,887
C. Construction 3,137 3,056 2,866 2,656 3,312 2,675 44752 42,487 45,534 3,292
D. Manufacturing 56,610 61,712 74,599 63,597 68,139 41,513 46,057 62,377 71,395 51,510
E. Transportation & Ultility 189,469 180,378 197,472 200,465 208,102 211,201 218,423 222 039 228,786 232,607
F. Wholesale Trade 127,620 93,439 99,669 101,264 99,249 83,720 110,130 o 137,130 145787 .. 111,328
G. Retail Trade 1,100,896 1,218,739 1,141,396 1,309,433 1,336,008 1,335,832 1,310,694 1,385,775 1,732,134 1,566,118
H. Finance, insurance 39,245 42 497 40,047 37,418 31,804 28,554 26,002 29,292 33,677 40,638
|. Services 307,191 321978 347,832 367.140 396,052 378,986 399,596 385,459 518,292 441378
J. Public Administration - - - - - - 30 62 55 -
K. Other - 42 63 - - - 52 1,142 2,808 32
Total $1.851,674 $1,952933 $1,938491 $2114221 $2,180,954 $2122,860 $2,1739,098 $2,298970 $2803390 $2497.212

Source: SD Department of Revenue
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TABLE 11

CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
- DECEMBER 31, 2013 (UNAUDITED)

ASSESSED VALUE OF PROPERTY $ 4,287,434,133
DEBT LIMITS - General Purposes
Debt Limitation - 5% of Assessed Value 214,371,707
Utilities (Water & Sewer) - 10% of Assessed Value 428,743,413
Streets, Railways or Electric - 8% of Assessed Value 342,994,731
Total Debt Limit 986,109,851

DEBT APPLICABLE TO LIMITATION *
General Purposes (5%)

Sales Tax Bonds 26,175,000
Gross Receipts Bonds 4,500,000
Parking Revenue Bonds 2,110,000
Airport Revenue Bonds 14,970,000
Airport Certificate of Participation 155,000
Waste Water Refunding Bonds 8,690,000
Tax Increment Financing 32,015,295
SRF Loans 9,092,881
Capital Leases 6,691,626

104,399,802

Utilities (10%) *
Outstanding Debt -

Streets, Railways or Electric (8%)
QOutstanding Debt : -

Total Applicable Debt 104,399,802
LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS NOT SUB'JECT TO LIMITATION 32,015,285
TOTAL DEBT AND LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS $ 72,384,507

*  The following debt is not included in the schedule:

Water Revenue Bonds serviced by Water Enterprise Fund Debt 45,100,000

45,100,000

ReeaR

Source: Pennington County Auditor (includes Railroads & Utilities)



TABLE 12

CITY OF RAPID CITY
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Fiscal Year
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Debt Limit $740,673 $790.871 $857,305 $S04.924 $994605 $1,171.917 $1,075600 $1.046,120 $1053692 $ 886,110
Total net debt applicabie to limit 49,509 87,400 79,719 80,743 77.944 122,914 78,814 66,675 89,969 104,400
Legal debt margin $691,164 $703,471 $777,586 $824,181 $916667 $1,045003 § 996,786 §$ 979445 S 963.723 § 881,710
Total net debt applicable to limit
as percentage of debt limit 6.68% 11.05% 8.30% 8.92% 7.84% 10.49% - 7.33% 6.37% 8.54% 10.59%
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
WATER, WASTEWATER, AIRPORT AND PARKING BONDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)

Direct Net Revenue

Fiscal Gross Operating Available for Debt Service Requirements

Year Revenue (2} Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
2004 17,449,741 10,362,410 7,087,331 1,147,940 785,442 1,933,382 273
2005 20,928,615 11,850,025 9,278,590 1,488,398 951,352 2,438,751 2.63
2008 21,885,948 13,805,413 8,080,535 1,558,739 776,582 2,335,321 2.89
2007 23,828,508 19,630,615 4,197,893 1,610,630 727,097 2,337,726 1.80
2008 23,676,658 19,255,466 4,421,192 779,213 (3) 664,603 1,443,822 3.06
2008 26,189,975 19,474,691 6,715,284 2,040,269 922,632 2,962,901 2.27
2010 26,824,773 16,882,004 9,942,768 741,237 2,740,194 3,481,431 2.88
2011 29,481,893 14,849,137 14,632,756 1,252,584 3,176,144 4,428,728 3.30
2012 33,549,615 21,547,589 12,002,026 1,260,000 3,651,988 4,915,355 2.44
2013 33,170,730 19,697,334 13,473,396 1,290,000 3,620,295 4,910,295 2.74

(1) Does not include Airport information as debt has been serviced.
(2) Does not include capital grants or capital contributions
(3) Parking debt was refunded. Principal payment was netted to refunding proceeds.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Per Capita Median

Year Population (5) Income (1) Age
2004 64,021 31,783 34.8
2005 65,891 33,165 34.8
2006 67,447 35,038 34.8
2007 69,242 36,718 34.8
2008 70,092 37,621 34.8
2009 70,004 N/A 34.8
2010 67,956 33,906 34.8
2011 68,886 35,360 35.6
2012 69,5629 41,286 35.6
2013 70,555 44,626 35.68

(1) Pennington County. Statistics per SD Department of Labor

(2) Rapid City Independent Schoo! District

(3) Official 2000 Census

(4) Official 2010 Census

(5) Estimate provided by the City Transportation Planner

N/A Not available
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TABLE 14

School Unemployment
Enroliment (2) Rate (1)
12,914 3.3%
12,932 3.7%
13,018 3.1%
12,773 2.9%
'13,116 3.0%
13,340 4.7%
13,369 5.2%
13,671 4. 1%
13,697 4.3%
13,884 3.6%



PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS (UNAUDITED)

CITY OF RAPID CITY

DECEMBER 31, 2013

Percentage

of Employed

Employer Employees  Rank Work Force

Ellsworth AFB 4,503 1 7.36%
Rapid City Regional Hospital 3,281 2 5.36%
Federal Government 2,905 3 4.75%
City of Rapid City 1,908 4 3.12%
Rapid City Area School District 1,684 5 2.75%
State of South Dakota 1,125 B8 1.84%
SD Army National Guard 1,013 7 1.66%
Walmart/Sam's Club 888 8 1.45%
Pennington County 639 8 1.04%
Black Hills Corporation 555 10 0.91%
18,499 30.24%

Source: Rapid City Economic Development Partnership
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TABLE 16

CITY OF RAPID CITY
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED}

Function: 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Generai Government 28 29 30 30 40 44 46 46 46 47

Public Safely

Police 128 428 131 131 130 134 138 142 146 146
Fire 11 4106 106 108 106 106 105 105 105 108
Code Enforcement 3 3 2 3 4 3 3 3 3 3
Advocates for Communily Enhancement 2 2 1 1 1 - - - - -

Public Works

Strest 50 G0 50 50 52 52 52 52 52 52
Public Works Administration 24 24 28 26 26 27 27 28 37 37
Waler Operations 36 36 36 36 38 37 37 37 37 37
Waslewater Operations 27 27 28 28 28 29 29 28 29 29
Soli¢ Waste Coliection 12 12 12 12 12 14 14 i4 14 14
Solid Waste Disposal 7 7 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8
Waste Municipal Recycling 23 23 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 25
Heaith ard Weiare
Ambulance 57 23 24 30 30 30 30 30 30 30
Public Transit 19 20 23 23 25 27 27 27 27 28
Air Quaiity 1 1 1 1 1 4 1 1 1 1
Cullure and Recreation
Recreation 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 2
loe Arena 4 4 4 4 5 4 4 4 3 3
Golf Course 8 5} 7 [ 6 [§ 8 3} 7 7
Parks 20 20 20 20 22 21 21 21 19 19
Swimming Pools 8§ 6 6 [ 6 7 7 7 [ 8
Cemetery 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Library 33 33 33 33 34 39 39 39 38 39
Parks and Recreation Admiristration 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 3 7 7
Civic Cenier 33 33 33 33 36 36 38 36 40 40
Energy Plant 7 7 7 7 7 & 5 5 3 §
RSVP 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Alrport Operations 47 18 19 20 23 23 23 23 23 24
Conservaticn and Deveiopment
GIS Mapping 4 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3
Growlh Management 28 29 30 23 33 32 30 29 19 19
Transporiation Planning 4 4 4 4 5 5 4 4 4 4
Community Devetopment 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 4 4 2
Parking Lot and Area 4 4 4 4 4 4 - - - ~
670 672 685 698 719 734 733 738 743 748

Based on Permanent Budgeled Empioyees



TABLE 17

CITY OF RAPID CITY
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS (UNAUDITED)
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Date of Incorporation - February 1883
Form of Government - Mayor/Coundil
Area - Square Miles - 55.04

Miles of Streets - 387.57
Number of Street Lights - 4,432

Fire Protection
Number of Stations - 7
Number of Firefighters and Officers (including EMS) - 130
Number of Fire Hydrants - 4,245

Police Protection
Number of Stations - 1
Number of Police Officers - 118

Education (Elementary Only)
Attendance Centers - 16
Number of Students - 6,852

Municipal Water Department
Number of Residential Consumers - 22,020
Average Residential Monthly Consumption - 7,547 gallons
Miles of Water Mains - 426

Sewers
Miles of Sanitary Sewer - 324.5
Miles of Storm Sewer - 133
Building Permits Issued (including remodeling and repair) - 4,861
Culture and Recreation
Number of Parks - 32 (consisting of more than 1,600 acres)
Number of Libraries - 3
Number of Volumes - in excess of 165,000

City Employees - 748

Total Salaries - $ 40,278,247
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Finance Officer

Bonding Company:

Bond Number:
Expiration Date:

Coverage

CITY OF RAPID CITY

SURETY BONDS (UNAUDITED)

DECEMBER 31, 2013

Auto-Owners Insurance Company
05701077423651
Continued until cancelled

All employees

Excess Coverage:

Finance Officer

Deputy Finance Officer

Data Processing Director

Civic Center Manager

Civic Center Business Manager

Civic Center Administrative Secretary
Civic Center Concessions Manager
Accounting Clerk

Accounting Clerk
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TABLE 18

$ 5,000

$250,000
$120,000
$120,000
85,000
856,000
95,000
45,000

5,000

5,000



SINGLE AUDIT SECTION
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AN
@ Ketel Thorstenson, LLP

Certified Public Accountants/Business & Personal Consultants

810 Quincy Street
P.O. Box 3140, Rapid City, South Dakota 57709
Telephone (605) 342-5630 © e-mail: ktllp@ktllp.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Sam Kooiker, Mayor

and Common Council
City of Rapid City
Rapid City, South Dakota

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Rapid City (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated September 15, 2014,

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings, Questioned Costs, and Corrective Action Plan, we identified
certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings, Questioned Costs, and Corrective Action Plan as 2013-001 and 2013-002 to be
material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the
deficiency described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings, Questioned Cost and Corrective Action Plan as
2013-005 to be a significant deficiency.

Members of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and AICPA Division of Firms for Quality Control
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance aboul whether the City's financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of
noncompliance or other matters that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which is
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings, Questioned Costs, and Corrective Action Plan as 2013-003.

City’s Response to Findings

The City’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings,
Questioned Costs, and Corrective Action Plan. The City’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose. As required by South Dakota Codified Law 4-11-11, this report is a matter of public
record and its distribution is not limited.

/v/ﬁ:% %ﬁw Les

KETEL THORSTENSON, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

September 15, 2014
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@ Ketel Thorstenson, LLP

Certified Public Accountants/Business & Personal Consultants

810 Quincy Street
P.O. Box 3140, Rapid City, South Dakota 57709
Telephone (605) 342-5630 * e-mail: ktllp@ktllp.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE AS REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Sam Kooiker, Mayor

and Common Council
City of Rapid City
Rapid City, South Dakota

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the compliance of the City of Rapid City (the City) with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each
of the City’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2013. The City's major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings, Questioned Costs,
and Corrective Action Plan.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City's major federal programs based on our
audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City's compliance.

Unmodified Opinion on Each of the Major Federal Programs

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings, Questioned Costs, and Corrective Action Plan
for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed other instances of noncompliance, which are required to be reported
in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings,
Questioned Costs, and Corrective Action Plan as 2013-004. Our opinion on each major federal program is not
modified with respect to these matters.

Members of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and AICPA Division of Firms for Quality Control
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The City’s response to the noncompliance finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule
of Findings, Questioned Costs, and Corrective Action Plan. The City’s response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance,
we considered the City's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in the internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be a material weakness and a significant deficiency.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
We consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings, Questioned Costs, and Corrective Action Plan as 2013-004 to be a material weakness.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance. We consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings, Questioned Costs, and Corrective Action Plan as 2013-005 to be a significant deficiency.

The City’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings, Questioned Costs, and Corrective Action Plan. The City’s response was not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
the response.

Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. As required by South Dakota Codified Law 4-11-11,
this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

ftt W, L2
KETEL THORSTENSON, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

September 15, 2014



CiTY OF RAPID CITY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

CFDA
NUMBERS AMOUNT

11,8, Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Direct Federal Funding:

Community Development Block GrantEntitlement (Notes 2_and 4) 14.218 324,079
U.S, Department of the Interior:
Direct Federal Funding:
Wildland Urban Interface Community Assistance 15.228 68,356
Pass-Through the SD Department of Tourism and State Development

Historic Preservation Fund Grant-in-Ajd 15.904 17,518
Total 1.8, Department of Interior 85,874
U.S. Department of Justice:

Direct Federal Funding:

Buliet Proaf Vest Partnership Program 16.607 2,135

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 5.495

Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grant 16.710 250,227

ARRA - Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grant 16.710 35,7

Total Public Safety Partnership and Cormmunity Palicing Grant 286,001
Total U.S. Department of Justice 293,631
U.S, Department of Transportation:
Pass-Through the S.D. Department of Transportation:

Airport Improvement Program (Note 2) 20,106 1,215,738

Metropolitar: Planning Grants (Note 2) 20.505 304,362

Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 66,038
Pass-Through the $.D. Departnent of Games Fish and Parks:

Recreational Trails Program 20,219 9,545
Pass-Through the S.D. Department of Public Safely:

Highway Safery Pedestrian Grant 20.600 40,000
Direet Federal Funding:
Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 843,861
Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants 20.500 1,389,629
Total Federal Transit Cluster (Note 2) 2,233,490
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 3,869,173
1.8, General Services Administration:
Pass-through the SO Bureav of Administration - SI) Federal Property Agency:

Donation of Federal Surplus Property (Note 3) 39.003 68,111
U.S, Environmental Protection Agency:

Direct Federal Funding:

Congressionaily Mandated Projects 66,202 181,745
Pass-through the SO Departnient of Environment and Natural Resources

Capiralization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds (Note 2) 66,468 843,997
Direct Federal Funding:

Performance Partnership Grant 66.605 40.830
Total U.S. Environmentai Protection Apency 1,066,572
.S, Department of Agriculture:

Pass-Through the SD Department of Witdland Fire

Cooperative Forestry Assistance . 10.664 34,094
Corporation for National and Community Service:

Direct IFederal Funding:

Retired and Senior Yolunleer Program 94.002 47,865

11.S, Department of Homeland Security:
Pass-Through the SD Depariment of Public Safety -- Office of 1 Tomeland Security

Homeland Seeurity Grant Progam 97.067 29,166
Pass-Through the SO Department of Public Safety -- Office of Emergency Management

Disaster Grants -- Public Assistance (Note 2) 97.036 2,776,406
Total U.S. Depariment of Homeland Security 2,805,572
Total 8,594,971
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
SCHEDULE QF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Nole 1 - Basis of Accounting - This schedule is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting
Note 2 - Major Program

Note 3 - Noncash Assistance

Note 4 - The City had subrecipients of the CDBG program as follows:

Teton Housing Coalition 3 69,594
Dakot Land Trust 89,719
Rapid City Community Development C 17,214
Behavior Management Systems 38,240
Minneluzahan Senior Center 9,800
Salvation Army 7,400
Waorking Against Violence 6,933
Habitat for Humanity : 5,250
Dakota Plains Legal Services 5,000
Goodwill Industries 5,000
Youth & Family Services 2,625
Canyon Lake Senior Center 1,613
Consumer Credit Counseling 1.500
211 Helpline N

230,503
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS, QUESTIONED COSTS, AND CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

I.

The auditor’s report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of the City of Rapid

City (the City).

Four deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards. Two deficiencies are considered material weaknesses.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the City were disclosed during
the audit.

Two deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the major federal award program are reported in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control over
Compliance as Required by OMB Circular A-133. One of these deficiencies is considered a material
weakness.

The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award program for the City expresses an
unmodified opinion.

Audit findings relative to the major federal award program for the City are reported in Part C of this
schedule.

The programs tested as a major program for 2013 were:
a. Community Development Block Grant (CFDA #14.218)
b. Federal Transit — Capital Investment and Formula Grants Cluster (CFDA #20.500 and
20.507)
Airport Improvement Program (CFDA #20.106)
Metropolitan Transportation Planning Grant (CFDA #20.505)
Disaster Grants — Public Assistance (CFDA #97.036)
Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds (CFDA #66.468)

e Ao

The threshold for distinguishing type A and B programs was $300,000.

The City was not considered a low-risk auditee under the criteria established in OMB Circular A-133,
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS, QUESTIONED COSTS, AND CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT
MATERIAL WEAKNESSES

2013-001 Finding: Financial Statement Preparation

Condition and Cause: The Grants Compliance and Financial Reporting Manager (Grants Manager) was responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements, including note disclosures. The Finance Officer reviewed the
financial statements. Year-end reconciling schedules and adjustments were not prepared or reviewed timely.
Several year-end adjustments were not posted until weeks into audit fieldwork. As a result, the financial statements
were not completed timely. As noted in finding 2013-002, we also made material audit adjustments.

Criteria and Effect: Accurate and timely financial reporting is important to the City. The City’s financial
statements are provided to numerous granting agencies and current and future debt providers. Errors identified
during the audit process were corrected in the accompanying financial statements.

Recommendation: The City should review its process of preparing and reviewing the financial statements. The
financial preparation process should include which positions are responsible for preparing year-end adjustments, and
a deadline for when such adjustments must be completed. The City should consider having certain year-end
adjustments be made more often than at year-end, such as quarterly. At a minimum, information used for year-end
adjustments needs to be accumulated and tracked throughout the year, versus accumulating such information after
year-end. Additional supporting schedules should be prepared by the Grants Manager to ensure that all accounts are
properly adjusted and reconciled. All year-end adjustments, supporting schedules, and reconciliations should be
reviewed by the Finance Officer for accuracy. Once all year-end adjustments are posted, reviewed, and approved,
the Grants Manager should prepare the financial statements by April 1 each year. The entire financial statements
and notes should be reviewed by the Finance Officer for technical accuracy and completeness. Ongoing training
should be provided to key finance office personnel to obtain the expertise necessary to prepare year-end entries,
prepare the financial statements, and to review the financial statements.

Response/Corrective Action Plan: The preparation of the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
is a process that requires the coordination, cooperation, information and availability of multiple City
departments/staff. The preparation of the financial statements and note disclosures is one of the final steps in this
process and can only be completed once information, year-end adjustments, supporting schedules and
reconciliations have been prepared, reviewed for accuracy/completeness and approved. The Finance Office is in
agreement that year-end reconciling schedules, adjustments and financial statements were not completed timely and
modification of the current process is needed. As such, the auditor’s recommendations are welcomed and will be
implemented.

The Finance Officer is responsible for this corrective action plan.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS, QUESTIONED COSTS, AND CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
(CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

B. FINDINGS — FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL WEAKNESS (CONTINUED)

2013-002 Finding: Internal Controls Over Significant Accounts

Condition and Cause: The City finance office has experienced significant turnover during the past several years.
The new Grants Manager, who prepared many of the year-end adjustments, has a limited history with the City’s
financial records. This inexperience combined with lack of adequate review over the year-end process resulted in
the following material audit adjustments.

1. We recorded several adjustments to correct debt expenditures, debt proceeds, and deferred charges
related to debt issuance costs.

We adjusted cash to match the bank reconciliations.

We posted several entries to reclassify revenues to appropriate accounts.

We adjusted accounts payable and workers compensation and health insurance claim accruals.

We capitalized interest expense related to the Water Fund.

We determined that the capital asset adjustment posted at year-end was incorrect and improperly
recorded construction in progress and expenditures.

IS S

In addition, we identified subsidiary schedules that did not match the general ledger balance and aliowance accounts
were not properly analyzed and adjusted. No audit adjustments resulted from these situations as such changes were
not material to the City’s financial statements as a whole.

Criteria and Effect: The City’s financial statements are provided to numerous granting agencies and current and
future debt providers. The City does not have adequate internal controls to ensure the identification and accurate
recording of all revenues and expenditures at year-end.

Recommendation: City finance personnel should prepare additional supporting schedules and analytically review
year-end balances to assist in determining the financial statements are accurate. City finance personnel should
obtain additional training to gain an understanding of the year-end entries, reconciliation processes, and awareness
of City financial policies. Year-end entries and supporting schedules should be reviewed by the Finance Officer
before the financial statements are prepared.

Response/Corrective Action Plan: The Finance Office agrees that several material audit adjustments were
subsequently recorded in order to accurately report account balances/transactions. As mentioned, the City’s Grants
Manager was new to the City’s year end reconciliation process and financial records, as well as current and past
year’s activity, which consequently resulted in incorrect year-end adjustments that were not discovered during the
reconciliation or review process.

Modifications to the year-end reconciliation process have or will be implemented. These not only included those
recommended by the auditor but others that ensure the accuracy and completeness of account balances/transactions.

The Finance Officer is responsible for this corrective action plan,
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS, QUESTIONED COSTS, AND CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
(CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

B. FINDINGS — FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT (CONCLUDED)

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

2013-003 Finding: Budgetary Overdrafts

Condition and Cause: Due to a lack of proper budgetary controls, the City has budget overdrafts in numerous
departments of several funds in violation of South Dakota Codified Law 9-21-9.

Criteria and Effect: The City did not follow state law.

Recommendation: The City in the future should complete supplemental appropriations for unbudgeted expenditures.
Response/Corrective Action Plan: The Finance Office continues to develop procedures to ensure supplemental
appropriation ordinances are approved as budget overdrafts are identified. The Finance Office will also continue to
evaluate compliance with the budget prior to year-end and make any amendments considered necessary through the
supplemental appropriation process.

The Finance Officer is responsible for this corrective action plan.

2013-005 Finding: Segregation of Duties

Condition and Cause: The Deputy Finance Officer has access to the general ledger, has access to enter and modify
purchase order and check information within the accounting software, prepares and posts journal entries, and
handles signed checks of the primary checking account of the City. The Deputy Finance Officer also maintains the
manual check stock, maintains the signature stamp for such bank accounts, and has access to the general ledger

Criteria and Effect: Proper segregation of duties results in adequate internal control over the safeguarding of assets
and the reliability of financial records and reporting. Without proper segregation of duties, an intentional or
unintentional error could go undetected resulting in a misappropriation of assets or inaccurate records.

Recommendation: The Deputy Finance Officer should not have access to signed checks or to the signature stamp.

Response/Corrective Action Plan: The Finance Office functions and processes have not changed for several years
and the department was not fully aware until this audit of the noted segregation of duties deficiencies. In
coordination with the implementation of the City’s new financial software package the Finance Office will modify

existing functions and processes to ensure adequate segregation of duties.

The Finance Officer is responsible for this corrective action plan.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS, QUESTIONED COSTS, AND CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
(CONCLUDED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

C. FINDINGS - COMPLIANCE AUDIT

Finding 2013-005 relates to allowable costs for all major programs.

MATERIAL WEAKNESSES

2013-004 Finding: Federal Grant Monitoring and Reporting

Condition and Cause. The City’s federal grant monitoring process was assigned to the new Grants Manager in late
2013. With most grants, a department head or program director is also assigned to each grant, and their duties
include monitoring compliance with their grant. In addition, some of the federal grants come through the State of
South Dakota, who also assigns a person to monitor grant compliance. There is substantial effort expended by these
personnel to monitor compliance. For many grants, these efforts are coordinated and reviewed between two or more
personnel noted above. However, for some grants there is limited or no coordination and review among these
personnel. The lack of complete coordination of grant monitoring procedures resulted in deficiencies in 2013 and
may result in future deficiencies.

We noted no questioned costs with grant requirements during 2013, but we noted several grant internal control
issues. The City was unaware of a reporting requirement for the Community Development Block Grant Cluster
(CDBG Grant) and did not properly file such report (CFDA #14.218). No supporting documentation could be
provided by the City to support the CDBG activity reported in the 2013 grant year Financial Summary Report. The
City failed to determine that CDBG subrecipients were not suspended or debarred. None of the 2013 CDBG
subrecipients were suspended or debarred based on audit procedures. The City did not timely or properly file all
required reports for Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds (CFDA #66.468).

Major Programs Affected: This finding related to all major programs.

Criteria and Effect: The City receives many different federal grants that include numerous compliance
requirements. Without proper review and tracking processes of these compliance requirements, the City could fail
to maintain compliance with the federal grants. Such noncompliance with federal grants could potentially result in
the City losing federal funding.

Questioned Costs: None

Recommendation: The City should change and/or strengthen its grant monitoring procedures as follows:

a) Coordination of grant monitoring should be required for each federal grant between the Grants Manager and at
least one grant program person. When each grant is awarded, each person should be assigned duties related to
monitoring grant compliance. There should be a cross review of each other’s monitoring work.

b) Periodic (e.g. at least semi-annual) compliance update reports should be made to the Finance Officer for review
and follow-up.

¢) All federal funds should be drawn down as available to maximize the City’s cash flows.”

Response/Corrective Action Plan: The Finance Office continues to evaluate its grant monitoring and reporting
process in an effort to ensure compliance with grant requirements. The Grants Manager did discuss grant
compliance requirements and prior year findings with each department head/program manager during the first
month of employment. The control deficiencies noted during the course of the audit were direct result of the
position vacancy for the majority of 2013. All of the auditor’s recommendations have been already been
implemented.

The Finance Officer is responsible for this corrective action plan.



-150-

CITY OF RAPID CITY

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Status of Prior Audit Findings and Recommendations:

Finding 2012-1 Financial Statement Preparation: This finding has been substantially repeated as part of finding
2013-001,

Finding 2012-2 Internal Controls over Significant Accounts: This finding has been substantially repeated as part of
finding 2013-002.

Finding 2012-3 Budgetary Overdrafts: This finding has been repeated as Finding 2013-003.

Finding 2012-4 Federal Grant Monitoring: This finding has been substantially repeated and expanded as Finding
2013-004.

Finding 2012-5 Preparation of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards: The new Grants manager prepared
a federal grants revenue, expenditure, and accrual reconciliation to prepare the SEFA, and we noted no significant
changes. The finding will not be repeated for 2013.



